

SHANGHAI JIAODA WITHUB INFORMATION INDUSTRIAL COMPANY LIMITED*

(a joint stock company incorporated in the People's Republic of China with limited liability)

Stock Code: 8205



*for identification purpose only

CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE "STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and medium-sized companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Main Board. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

The companies listed on GEM are mostly small and medium-sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report for which the directors (the "Directors") of Shanghai Jiaoda Withub Information Industrial Company Limited* (the "Company") collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rule Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange ("GEM Listing Rules") for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.

Contents

- 2 Corporate Profile and Highlights
- 3 Corporate Information
- 4 Chairman's Statement
- 5 Management Discussion and Analysis
- 9 Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
- 15 Report of the Supervisory Committee
- 16 Report of Corporate Governance
- 30 Environmental, Social and Governance Report
- 55 Report of the Directors
- 65 Independent Auditors' Report
- 70 Consolidated Balance Sheet
- 72 Balance Sheet of the Parent Company
- 74 Consolidated Income Statement
- 76 Income Statement of the Parent Company
- 78 Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
- 80 Cash Flow Statement of the Parent Company
- 82 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
- 84 Statement of Changes of Equity of the Parent Company
- 86 Notes to the Financial Statements
- 195 Five-Year Financial Summary

Corporate Profile and Highlights

CORPORATE PROFILE

上海交大慧谷信息產業股份有限公司 (Shanghai Jiaoda Withub Information Industrial Company Limited*) founded on 4 May 1998. It is an incorporated joint stock company jointly invested by Shanghai Jiaotong University, Shanghai Technology Venture Capital Company Limited, Shanghai Xin Xuhui (Group) Co., Ltd.. On July 2002, the Company was listed on the GEM of Hong Kong. The Company encompasses technology research, production and operation together. It is mainly engaged in computer network and internet security integration, application software development, building intelligent system integration as well as IT products sales agent, etc.

The Company relies on the rich resources provided by Shanghai Jiaotong University, for example, transformation of scientific and technological achievements in high school, nurture and hatch high technology enterprise, high-tech park construction and services, etc.. Currently, the business of the Company covers fields such as government, the court, police, high school and enterprise. The Company treats the demands from society as the pursuit of own business development. The Company strictly follows the base of system innovation, operation innovation as the guide, technological innovation as back-up. Its enterprise strategies are combining production, study, research as the model. It emphasizes to talents' training, brand building, customer cultivation and market development. It keeps stable, healthy and fast growing in economic efficiency.

The Company takes advantages of the rich resources of Shanghai Jiaotong University in scientific research. It treats the demands from society as the pursuit of business development in depth. The Company strictly follows the base of system innovation, operation innovation as the guide, technological innovation as back-up. Its enterprise strategies are combining production, study and research as the model. It emphasizes talents' training, brand building, customer cultivation and market development. It keeps stable, healthy and fast growing in economic efficiency.

HIGHLIGHTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023,

- turnover of the Group amounted to RMB42,661,494.19 (2022: approximately RMB36,002,830.52) which represented an increase of 18.49%;
- the profit attributable to owners of the Company was approximately RMB-6,989,010.94 (2022: loss of approximately RMB21,606,146.55): The difference from the approved amount of the previous year is mainly due to changes in accounting policies, which led to the recognition of deferred income tax on lease transactions. The impact amount of the previous year is -232108.66.)
- the Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend (2022: Nil).

Corporate Information

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Xiaobo *(Chairman)* Mr. Shuai Ge *(Vice Chairman)* Ms. Cao Zhen Mr. Hu Lunjie Ms. Gu Xiaomin Mr. Sun Jingchen

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yuan Shumin Mr. Liu Feng Mr. Zhou Guolai

Supervisors

Mr. Yang Qing *(Chairman)* Mr. Rong Yinsheng Ms. Sun Yunyun Ms. Sun Guofang Mr. Yang Binghua

Company Secretary

Ms. Ho Wing Yan ACG HKACG (PE)

Audit Committee

Mr. Yuan Shumin *(Chairman)* Mr. Liu Feng Mr. Zhou Guolai

Remuneration Committee

Mr. Yuan Shumin *(Chairman)* Mr. Zhang Xiaobo Mr. Liu Feng Mr. Zhou Guolai

Nomination Committee

Mr. Zhang Xiaobo *(Chairman)* Mr. Yuan Shumin Mr. Liu Feng

Legal Address

2nd Floor, Block 7 471 Gui Ping Road Shanghai The PRC

Principal Place of Business in Hong Kong

Suite 2703, 27/F. Shui On Centre Nos. 6-8 Harbour Road Wanchai, Hong Kong

Principal Place of Business in the PRC

Building A, Shanghai Jiaoda Withub Information Park No. 951 Panyu Road Shanghai The PRC

Authorised Representatives

Mr. Zhang Xiaobo Ms. Ho Wing Yan

Principal Bankers

China Merchants Bank China CITIC Bank Industrial and Commercial Bank Construction Bank

Auditor

ShineWing Certified Public Accountants (Special General Partnership)9/F., Block A, Fu Hua Mansion.No. 8, Chao Yang Men Bei Da Jie,Dong Cheng District,Beijing, the PRC

Hong Kong Share Registrar and Transfer Office

Union Registrars Limited Suites 3301-04, 33/F., Two Chinachem Exchange Square, 338 King's Road, North Point, Hong Kong

Stock Code 8205

Company Website www.withub.com.cn



Chairman's Statement

To All Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the "Board") of the directors (the "Directors") of 上海交大慧谷信息產業股份有限 公司 (Shanghai Jiaoda Withub Information Industrial Company Limited*) (the "Company"), I announce the results review of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the "Group") for the prior year, and would also like to take this opportunity to introduce the business plan of the Company and development direction which the Company will focus on the coming financial year.

To cope with the future challenge and sustainable development, the Company will continue to actively transform and expand its operating direction based on the objectives and plans set up in 2024. For business, the major direction is to continue concentrating on operation which can bring going concern to develop software development and system integration business, continuously push forward the commercialization process with vigorous effort in software department, and continuously push forward the expansion of system integration business department in intellect zone solutions industry; for management, along with the on-going business development, the operating management of various aspects will be further enhanced and improved and the process control will be strengthened in operations department.

In the future, the Company will continue to strengthen the core competitiveness, exert greater efforts in highlighted businesses, effectively seek new business areas, further formulate feasibility plan, organize to implement, the Company will effectively formulate assessment and revenue allocation system that is favourable for attracting and retaining high-calibre personnel and enhance the corporate competitiveness as a result. The Company will also continue to concentrate on the corporate culture establishment and build an environment for active development and innovative creation. It will remain positive in its perception to build up a harmonious enterprise.

Last but not least, I would like to express my gratitude to our customers and shareholders for their steadfast support and trust and also thank the Directors, senior management and staff for their unremitting efforts and contribution.

By order of the Board

Zhang Xiaobo

Chairman

Shanghai, the PRC, 21 March 2024

DIVIDENDS

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividends in respect of the year ended 31 December 2023.

RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recorded a turnover of approximately RMB42,661,494.19 (2022: approximately RMB36,002,830.52), representing an increase of RMB6,658,663.67 or 18.49% as compared to last year. The Group recorded a loss of RMB6,989,010.94 for the year ended 31 December 2023, while a loss for the year ended 31 December 2022 was RMB21,606,146.55.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND FUTURE PROSPECTS

For the entire financial year under review ended 31 December 2023, the total revenue of the Group increased from RMB36,002,830.52 to RMB42,661,494.19. The increase of RMB6,658,663.67 in revenue represents an increase of 18.49% of the Group's sales as compared with that for 2022. The Group recorded a loss before tax of RMB21,838,255.21 for the previous year and a loss before tax of RMB6,995,713.22 during the year.

Revenue of the main business was mainly generated from business solutions and application software business, which accounted for 50.72% of the total sales (or RMB21,637,580.91), and, to a lesser extent, from installation and maintenance of network and data security products, which accounted for 42.42% of the total sales (or RMB18,095,587.17), followed by sales of electrical products and fittings which accounted for 3.20% of the total sales (or RMB1,366,340.30). These business segments remain the core services and products for the Company in the past and also for the future.

Revenue of business application solutions and application software decreased by RMB4,393,036.35 from RMB26,030,617.26 for the previous year, representing a decrease of 16.88%. The decrease was mainly due to non-completion of certain large projects.

Revenue from the installation and maintenance of network and data security products increased by RMB11,244,353.38 from the previous year of RMB6,851,233.79, representing an increase of 164.12%. The increase was mainly due to the addition in the projects of installment and maintenance for the year.

Revenue of sales of electronic products and accessories decreased by RMB627,121.17 from RMB1,993,461.47 for the previous year, representing a decrease of 31.46%. The decrease was mainly due to the shrinkage in purchase and sale business and the net amount method adopted for some businesses to recognize revenue.

The gross profit of the main business increased from RMB7,131,439.39 for the previous year to RMB11,417,884.99, representing an increase of RMB4,286,445.60 or 60.11%. The gross profit margin of the main business increased from 20.45% for the previous financial year to 27.78% for the current year.

Other revenue increased by RMB434,467.81 to RMB1,561,985.81 for the current year from RMB1,127,518.00 for the previous year, representing an increase of 38.53%.

The share of profits of associates amounted to RMB947,316.97 for the current year as compared to the profit of RMB–647,003.09 for the previous year, representing an increase of RMB1,594,320.06.

Selling expenses increased by RMB635,743.07 from RMB4,072,712.54 for the previous year to RMB 4,708,455.61 for the current year.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2023, shareholders' funds of the Group amounted to approximately RMB18,767,906.96 (2022: RMB25,649,172.23). Current assets amounted to approximately RMB24,826,693.21 (2022: RMB26,873,821.01), of which approximately RMB17,869,475.62 (2022: RMB20,197,211.85) were cash and bank balances. The Group had non-current liabilities amounting to approximately RMB324,887.08 (2022: RMB2,875,430.32), and its current liabilities amounted to approximately RMB20,306,505.41 (2022: RMB19,686,009.43), which mainly comprised other payables and accrued expenses. The Group did not have any long-term debts.

WORKING CAPITAL RATIO AND GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had a net cash position and its working capital ratio (current assets divided by current liabilities) was 1.22 (2022: 1.37), and its gearing ratio (liabilities divided by total assets) was approximately 52.36% (2022: 46.80%).

Classification of investment	Held by the Company	Principal business	Number of shares held	Percentage of shareholding	Percentage of total assets of the issuer	Cost of investment	Balance as at 31 December 2023	Fair value as at 31 December 2023	Revenue recognised during the year	Dividends for the year	Remarks
Long-term equity investment	Shanghai TonTron Information Technology Co., Ltd.* (上海通創信 息技術股份有限公司)	Software and information technology services	3,783,784	33.94%	13.34%	3,200,000.00	5,256,270.14	5,256,270.14	809,545.03	N/A	
	Shanghai Huigu DuoGao Information Engineering Co. Ltd.* (上海慧谷多高 信息工程有限公司)	Software and information technology services	1,802,000	34%	6.04%	1,802,000.00	2,380,302.43	2,380,302.43	137,771.94	N/A	
Other non-current financial assets	Shanghai Jiaoda Withub Technology Street Company Limited* (上海交大慧谷科技街有 限公司)	Technology promotion and application service	1,500,000	3%	11.11%	1,500,000.00	4,377,803.44	4,377,803.44	N/A	22,200.00	
					Total	6,502,000.00	12,014,376.01	12,014,376.01	947,316.97	22,200.00	
					Total assets	39,399,299.45					

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

Shanghai TonTron Information Technology Co., Ltd. (上海通創信息技術股份有限公司) is a joint venture established by Shanghai Telecom Gonghui Technology Service Co., Ltd.* (上海電信公惠科技服務有限公司) and Shanghai Jiaoda Withub Information Industrial Company Limited* (上海交大慧谷信息產業股份有限公司), and it aims to establish itself as a high-tech enterprise with intensive knowledge and talents by leveraging the resource advantages enjoyed by Shanghai Telecom and Shanghai Jiao Tong University in the fields of information and communication technology and management. Taking into account the specific circumstances of the market development within the industry, the company will prioritize seeking opportunities in the software and information technology services industry, such as application and software development, customized software solutions, and the development of technical services. The Company will continue to invest in subsidiaries that demonstrate sustained profitability.

Shanghai Huigu DuoGao Information Engineering Co. Ltd.* (上海慧谷多高信息工程有限公司) was jointly invested and established by Tiancheng Group, Shanghai Jiaoda Withub Information Industrial Company Limited* (上海交大慧谷信息產業股份有限公司), and Shanghai Cable Television Association (上海有線電視協會), and is engaged in the integrated design and construction of intelligent building systems such as communication, computer, network, technical defense, modern property management, and other professional businesses such as cable TV, satellite reception, audio-visual education, computer software, and multimedia technology. The Company will continue to invest in subsidiaries that demonstrate sustained profitability.

Shanghai Jiaoda Withub Technology Street Company Limited* (上海交大慧谷科技街有限公司) is a joint venture established by Shanghai Xufang (Group) Co., Ltd.* (上海徐房 (集團) 有限公司), Shanghai Jiaoda Science and Technology Park Limited* (上海交大科技園有限公司), Shanghai Jiaoda Withub Information Industrial Company Limited* (上海交大慧谷信息產業股份有限公司) and others. It has been deeply involved in the fields of property leasing and construction decoration for many years. Leveraging its experience in technology service promotion, it can help to enhance the Company's long-term competitive capabilities, and can provide the Company with resources to develop existing business. The Company will continue to invest in subsidiaries that demonstrate sustained profitability.

Save for the disclosure herein, the Group had no capital commitments and significant investments for the year ended 31 December 2023.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURE

The Group had no material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associates or joint venture companies for the year ended 31 December 2023.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

All of the Group's activities are conducted in the PRC and are divided into two major business segments, including business application solutions and sales of products. Accordingly, the analysis by business segments is presented in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had 81 full-time employees (2022: 101), comprising 13 in management, finance and administration (2022: 16), 36 in research and development (2022: 39), 25 in application development and engineering (2022: 27), and 6 in sales and marketing (2022: 17). Also, the Group had 1 school staff (2022: 2).

The Group did not experienced any disruption of its normal business operations due to labour disputes or significant turnover of staff. The Directors consider that the Company has maintained a very good relationship with its staff.

The remuneration of employees, including Directors' emoluments and all staff-related costs for the year ended 31 December 2023, was approximately RMB21,202,876.55 (2022: RMB23,007,603.08).

The Group's remuneration and bonus policies are principally determined with reference to the qualifications, experience and performance of individual employees.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any charges on its assets (2022: Nil).

DETAILS OF FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

The Directors currently do not have any future plans for material investments or capital assets. The management will continue to monitor the industry and review its business expansion plans regularly, so as to take necessary measures in the Group's best interests.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group's monetary assets and transactions were mainly denominated in RMB, HKD and USD. Though the exchange rates among RMB, HKD and USD are not pegged, there are relatively low levels of fluctuation in exchange rates among RMB, HKD and USD. The management noted that the recent appreciation in the exchange rate of RMB to HKD and USD and is of the opinion that it does not currently have a material adverse impact on the Group's financial position. The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities (2022: Nil).

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

No important events affecting the Group have occurred since the end of the year.

DIRECTORS

The Company has six executive Directors, and three independent non-executive Directors. Their details are set out below:

Executive Directors

Zhang Xiaobo ("Mr. Zhang"), aged 51, has a master degree, and is a professor-level senior engineer. Mr. Zhang has more than 25 years of experience in digital transformation and government-enterprise information technology, and was the deputy director and chief engineer of the information research center of Shanghai Civil Affairs Bureau, the deputy director of the president's office of, and administration office director of Shanghai Guosheng (Group) Co., Ltd* (上海國盛 (集團) 有限公司). He is currently the deputy party secretary and president of Shanghai Guosheng Group Science and Education Investment Co., Ltd* (上海國盛集團 科教投資有限公司) and the deputy party secretary and president of Shanghai Jiaoda Industrial Investment Management (Group) Co., Ltd* (上海交大產業投資管理 (集團) 有限公司). He was appointed as an Executive Director, the Chairman of the Board, the chairman of the Nomination Committee, a member of the Remuneration Committee and the Authorised Representative by the Company on 4 September 2023.

Mr. Shuai Ge ("Mr. Shuai"), aged 55, MA, is an engineer. He has long-term engagement in business management since 1993. He works at the research and development department of Shanghai Xianhe Optoelectronics Techology Company Limited (上海先河光電技術有限公司). He served as the manager of the import and export division of Shanghai Taiping International Container Co., Ltd (上海太平國際貨櫃有限公司), the general manager assistant of Shanghai Xinhua Power Station Control Co., Ltd (上海新華電站控制技術有限公司), the general manager of Shanghai International Program Controlled Company Limited (上海國際程序控制有限公司), the general manager assistant and deputy general manager of Shanghai Xin Xuhui (Group) Limited (上海新徐匯 (集團)有限公司). He served as the deputy secretary of the Party Committee and the deputy general manager of Shanghai Xin Xuhui (Group) Limited (上海新徐匯 (集團)有限公司) from March 2021 to July 2022. He has been the vice chairman (general manager level) of Shanghai Xin Xuhui (Group) Limited (上海新徐匯 (集團)有限公司) since July 2022. He was appointed as an executive Director and Vice Chairman by the Company on 7 July 2015.

Ms. Cao Zhen ("Ms. Cao"), aged 55, graduated from Shanghai Jiao Tong University with a master's degree. She is a first-class construction engineer, an engineer and a senior project manager. Ms. Cao is the vice managing director of the Company, in charge of the Company's overall operation. Ms. Cao had worked in various positions including 上海交大科外系語言所 (Shanghai Jiaoda Ke Wai System Language Centre) as an engineer, 上海天明科技有限公司 as a manager, 上海瀚英實業發展有限公司 (Shanghai Han Ying Industrial Development Company Limited) as a manager, etc. Ms. Cao was appointed as an executive Director by the Company on 4 September 2023.



Hu Lunjie, born in February 1982, is a Chinese national with no right of abode in any foreign country and a master's degree holder. He has been a project manager of the asset management department of Shanghai Venture Capital Limited since 2013; a risk control manager of the general business department of Shanghai Technology Venture Capital (Group) Co., Ltd. since 2015; a project manager and senior investment manager of the project investment department and a senior investment manager of the asset management department department of Shanghai Technology Venture Capital (Group) Co., Ltd. since 2018. He was appointed as an executive Director by the Company on 7 July 2020.

Ms. Gu Xiaomin ("Ms. Gu"), aged 43, graduated from Shanghai University of Finance and Economics with double bachelor degrees of asset management and valuation and accounting. Ms. Gu served in the finance department of Xuhui District Finance Bureau (徐匯區財政局財政所) as a section officer from July 2003 to June 2011, the associate chief section officer from June 2011 to May 2017, the deputy director from May 2017 to September 2019, and the director from September 2019 to February 2023, respectively. She acted as the director of Personnel, Education and Supervision Section (人事教育監察科) in Xuhui District Finance Bureau (徐匯區財政局) from February 2023 to August 2023. She has been working as the director of Financial Supervision Section in Xuhui District Finance Bureau (徐匯區財政局擔任財政監督科) since August 2023. She was appointed as an executive Director of the Company on 7 July 2021.

Mr. Sun Jingchen ("Mr. Sun"), aged 41, graduated from Shanghai University with a bachelor's degree in accounting in 2018. Mr. Sun is an intermediate accountant and an intermediate economist. Mr. Sun has more than 16 years of financial work experience, and has worked as a financial manager in a large state-owned enterprise for more than 11 years, and understands the overall accounting process. Mr. Sun is familiar with accounting computerized software operation, financial software, SAP system. Mr. Sun is responsible for the company's budget management, analysis and evaluation, and performance evaluation.

Mr. Sun is familiar with relevant national accounting standards and policies and regulations, and has good learning ability, independent working ability and financial analysis ability. Serious and down-to-earth work, strong ability to independently analyze and solve problems, and strong teamwork ability. In 2013 and 2014, Mr. Sun was awarded the Advanced Individual Award for Statistical Work by Shanghai Pudong New Area Statistics Bureau for two consecutive years. From 2010 to 2019, Mr. Sun was awarded four times of outstanding teams and two times of outstanding employee. He was appointed as an executive Director by the Company on 20 June 2023.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yuan Shumin ("Mr. Yuan"), aged 73, was graduated from School of Accounting of Shanghai University of Finance and Economics in January 1983 with a bachelor degree in Economics, and taught there after graduation. In September 1985, Mr. Yuan attended the part-time Postgraduate program in School of Accounting of Shanghai University of Finance and Economics, and graduated in June 1988 with a master degree in Economics. Mr. Yuan became an associate professor in 1992, and promoted as professor in 1997. Since 1993, Mr. Yuan has been the supervisor of teaching department, an assistant supervisor and assistant dean of School of Accounting, assistant dean and dean of School of Adult Education (成教學院) of Shanghai University of Finance and Economics. Mr. Yuan studied in a part-time doctorate program of Management at School of Management of Fudan University from January 1995, and graduated from Fudan University in January 1998 with a doctorate degree in science. In July 2001, Mr. Yuan was appointed as tutor of accounting doctorate program in Shanghai University of Finance and Economics. He has served as the president of School of Accounting in School of Accounting in Shanghai Finance University since September 2005. Mr. Yuan was employed by Sanda University as the chief accountant and a professor successively from April 2014 to June 2023. Mr. Yuan has written various thesis, studies, teaching material, and served as Chairman of Computerized Accountancy Association for Youth (中青年會計電算化分會) of PRC Accounting Association (中國會計學會). He was appointed as an independent non-executive Director, the chairman of each of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee by the Company on 22 June 2007. In addition, since May 2014, Mr. Yuan has been appointed as an independent non-executive director of China Smartpay Group Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 8325), and is the Chairman of each of its audit committee, remuneration committee and internal control committee as well as a member of its nomination committee and compliance committee.

Mr. Liu Feng ("Mr. Liu"), aged 56, master, lawyer. He holds the bachelor of law of East China University of Political Science and Law and master of MBA of Shanghai Jiao Tong University. Mr. Liu is the senior partner of Dentons, with rich legal experience. He currently acts as the consultant expert for Civil Administrative Cases of the Supreme People's Procuratorate, the director of Intellectual Property Committee of Shang Hai Bar Association, the director of Shanghai Intellectual Property Services Association, the financing consultant for high-tech projects of Science and Technology Commission of Shanghai Municipality, the director of Intellectual Property Institute under Shanghai Law Society, the mediator of Shanghai Commercial Mediation Center, the director of Intellectual Property Department of China (Shanghai) Pilot Free Trade Zone, the specially-invited expert of Shanghai Minyi Legal Service Center, the member of the legal team of legal advisory committee of Shanghai Association for Science & Technology, the member of legal expert service team for consumer protection under Shanghai Consumers Council, the specially-invited mediator of Professional Mediation Center in Pudong New Area, Shanghai, the independent director of Shanghai Jiao Da Only Co., LTD. He acts as the member of the expert conference of Shanghai High People's Court for several times. He was appointed as an independent non-executive Director, member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee by the Company on 24 June 2021. Since May 2014, Mr. Liu has been appointed as an independent non-executive director of Shanghai Dazhong Public Utilities (Group) Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1635), and the chairman of its nomination committee and a member of each of its audit committee and remuneration and evaluation committee.



Mr. Zhou Guolai ("Mr. Zhou"), aged 55, MA, graduated from Beijing University of Aeronautics and Astronautics in 1991, with a bachelor of engineering degree majoring in structural intensity of air vehicle. Mr. Zhou graduated from Antai College of Economics and Management at Shanghai Jiao Tong University in 2002, with a master's degree in economics and management. Mr. Zhou worked in Shanghai Aviation Industrial (Group) Co., Ltd. (上海航空工業集團), where he held a position of management from 1991 to 2002; in Asia Business Consulting Co., Limited (亞商企業諮詢股份有限公司), where he was responsible for the management and consulting work of large enterprise groups from 2002 to 2005; in Alliance PKU Management Consultants Ltd. (北大縱橫管理諮詢集團), where he acted as the senior vice-president, senior partner, the general manager of the Eighth Business Division, the founding dean of the Group Development Studies Institute, and the founder of the shanghai operation center of Alliance PKU (北大縱橫), from 2006 to present. He was appointed as an independent non-executive Director and a member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee by the Company on 7 July 2019.

Mr. Zhou is currently the vice president of the Shanghai Jiaotong University MBA Alumni Association, the chairman of the Energy Branch of the Shanghai Jiaotong University Alumni Association (上海交大校友會能源 分會), the career mentor and MBA interviewer of Antai College of Economics and Management at Shanghai Jiao Tong University, and an independent director of CUTI of Shanghai Jiao Tong University. Mr. Zhou was once the member of the 9th China Young Entrepreneurs Association, the member of MBA Committee and the Member of Shanghai IT Talents Association (上海市IT青年人才協會).

SUPERVISORS

Mr. Rong Yinsheng ("Mr. Rong"), aged 38, is a supervisor of the Company, a member of Chinese Communist Party, an audit executive with a bachelor degree in management and a Certified Internal Auditor. He graduated from SHU-UTS SILC Business School. He had worked in auditing field at Ou Ke Meng CPA Ltd. (歐科盟 會計師事務所) and Grant Thornton, Shanghai Branch (致同會計師事務所上海分所). He served as audit executive of Shanghai Xinxuhui (Group) Co. Ltd from December 2012. He was appointed as a supervisor by the Company on 7 July 2016.

Mr. Yang Qing ("Mr. Yang"), aged 48, graduated from College of Economics and Management Nefu with a master degree of management. He is a senior accountant and PRC certified public accountant (non-practicing member). From 2003 to 2005, he worked in Sinoceramics, Inc.*(上海聯能科技有限公司) as the manager of finance department. From 2005 to 2018, he worked in Shanghai Future Broadband Technology and Applied Engineering Research Centre Co., Ltd.*(上海未來寬頻技術及應用工程研究中心有限公司)(Shanghai Future Broadband Technology Co., Ltd.*(上海未來寬頻技術股份有限公司)) as its director, vice general manager and financial controller. From December 2010 to November 2020, he worked in Xinyu Timu Investment Management Co., Ltd.*(新餘梯睦投資管理有限公司) as a supervisor. From September 2015 to May 2018, he worked in Xinyu Future Broadband Technology Co., Ltd.*(新餘未來寬頻技術有限公司) as an executive director, general manager and legal representative. He has been serving as a supervisor of Zhongdianke Microwave Communication (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.*(中電科微波通信(上海)股份有限公司), Shanghai Yangpu Financing Guarantee Co., Ltd.*(上海楊浦融資擔保有限公司) and Shanghai Jinkai Financing Guarantee Co., Ltd.*(上海金開融資擔保有限公司) since 2018; a supervisor of Shandeyin Cartoon Information Service Co., Ltd.*(杉德銀卡通信息服務有限公司) and Shanghai Wei'an Electronics Co., Ltd.*(上海維安電子有限公司) and a director of Shanghai Science and Technology Venture Investment Co., Ltd.* (上海科技創業投資股份有 限公司) since 2019; and a supervisor of Shanghai Integrated Circuit Industry Investment Fund (Phase II) Co., Ltd.*(上海集成電路產業投資基金(二期)有限公司) and Shanghai Zhongxin Technology Venture Investment Co., Ltd.*(上海中新技術創業投資有限公司) since 2020. He was appointed as a supervisor by the Company on 7 July 2020.

Ms. Sun Guofang ("Ms. Sun"), aged 41, is an employee representative and supervisor of the Company. She graduated from East China Normal University with a bachelor's degree in communication. She served as the manager of the administration department of the Company since 2015. Currently, Ms. Sun is the manager of the administration and human resources department of the Company. She was appointed as the supervisor by the Company on 20 March 2019.

Ms. Sun Yunyun ("Ms. Sun"), aged 36, is a supervisor of the Company. She graduated and obtained a bachelor's degree from Antai College of Economics and Management, Shanghai Jiao Tong University in 2011. Since August 2020, she has been serving as a level I staff member in the Finance Office of the Finance Bureau of Xuhui District (seconded to the Enterprise Section of the Finance Bureau of Xuhui District). She was appointed as an Supervisor by the Company on 7 July 2020.

Mr. Yang Binghua ("Mr. Yang"), aged 51, is an employee representative and supervisor of the Company. He graduated from Jiangxi Agricultural University with a bachelor's degree in accounting. He served as the deputy manager of the administration department since 2015. Currently, Mr. Yang is the deputy manager of the administration and human resources department and the chairman of the labour union of the Company. He was appointed as the supervisor by the Company on 20 March 2019.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Sun Yongjun (孫擁軍) ("Mr. Sun"), aged 56, graduated from Shanghai Jiao Tong University with master degree, was a student in the first Pilot Class of Shanghai Jiao Tong University. He once worked in the technology and marketing departments of international companies such as IBM, Network Appliance, A10 Networks. He once worked as an architect in the Great China and as the person in charge of businesses in East China of Network Appliance, and as a business manager in East China of A10 Networks. He joined Jiaoda Withub as manager of Storage Division in 2011 and was appointed as a chief technology officer of the Intelligent Internet of Things department by the Company in 2019.

Report of the Supervisory Committee

To All Shareholders,

上海交大慧谷信息產業股份有限公司 (Shanghai Jiaoda Withub Information Industrial Company Limited*) has complied with the Company Law of the PRC during the year ended 31 December 2023, requirements of the relevant laws and regulations of Hong Kong and the Articles of Association of the Company, exercised conscientiously its authority, safeguarded the interests of the shareholders and the Company, followed the principles of honesty and trustworthiness and worked cautiously and diligently.

During the year we carefully reviewed the use of the proceeds raised in strict compliance with the plan of use of proceeds disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 25 July 2002 for the listing of the Company's H shares on the GEM. We provided reasonable suggestions and advice on the operations and development plans of the Company to the Board and strictly and effectively monitored whether the policies and decisions made by the management of the Company had conformed with the state laws and regulations and the Articles of Association of the Company (the "Articles of Association") or safeguarded the interests of shareholders.

After investigation, we consider that the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, audited by ShineWing Certified Public Accountants (Special General Partnership), truly and fairly reflect the operating results of the Group and asset positions of the Group and of the Company. We also reviewed the Report of the Directors and profit distribution proposal. We consider that the aforesaid report and proposal meet the requirements of the relevant regulations and articles of the Company. We have attended the meeting of the Board. We consider that the members of the Board, the general manager and other officers have strictly complied with the principles of honesty and trustworthiness, worked diligently and sincerely acted in the best interests of the Group. None of the Directors, the general manager and the officers have abused their authorities, caused damage to the interests of the Group and infringed upon the interests of the Group and its staff, nor have they violated any laws, regulations or the Company's Articles of Association.

We are satisfied with the various tasks achieved by the Company as well as the cost-effectiveness gained in 2023 and are confident about the prospects and future development of the Group.

Supervisory Committee

Shanghai, the PRC, 21 March 2024



The Company is committed to the principles of corporate governance and corporate responsibility consistent with prudent management. The Board believes that such commitment will in the long term serve to enhance the Shareholders' value. The Company has applied the principles and adopted all code provisions, where applicable, as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the "CG Code") as contained in Appendix C1 to the Rules Governing the GEM Listing Rules as its own the CG code.

Save as disclosed below, the Company has complied with all the code provisions in the CG Code during the Current Period except the following deviation:

Under code provision C.2.1 of the Code, the roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive should be separated and should not be performed by the same individual. The division of responsibilities between the chairman and chief executive should be clearly established and set out in writing. Mr. Chang Jiang was the Chairman while the role of the Chief Executive (the "CE") was performed by Mr. Shang Ling for the period from 21 October 2021 to 30 June 2023. Mr. Chang Jiang resigned as an executive Director and Chairman with effect from 4 September 2023 due to other business commitment. And Mr. Zhang Xiaobo was appointed as an executive Director and Chairman from 4 September 2023. The Chairman focuses on the business strategy and direction of the Company and has executive responsibilities, provides leadership for the Board and ensures proper and effective functioning of the Board in discharging of its responsibilities. The CE is accountable to the Board for the overall implementation of the Company's strategies and the coordination of overall business operations.

Since Mr. Shang Ling resigned as an executive Director and the CE on 30 June 2023, the post of CE has been vacant. The executive Directors and the senior management have been delegated with the authority and responsibility by the Board for the day-to-day operations of the Group while reserving certain key matters for the approval by the Board. After evaluation of the current situation of the Company and considering of the board composition, the Board is of the opinion that it is appropriate and in the best interests of the Company at the present stage for such arrangement as it helps to maintain the continuity of the policies and the stability of the operations of the Company.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY THE DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The Company had adopted a code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors and supervisors on terms no less exacting than the standard of dealings in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company had made specific enquiries of all Directors and supervisors and the Company was not aware of any non-compliance with the Stock Exchange's required standard of dealings and its code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors and supervisors during the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board comprises nine Directors, of whom six are executive Directors and three are independent nonexecutive Directors. Details of backgrounds and qualifications of the chairman of the Company and the other Directors are set out in the pages 9 to 12 of the annual report. The participation of independent non-executive Directors in the Board brings independent judgement on issues relating to the Group's strategy, performance, conflicts of interest and management process to ensure that the interests of all shareholders of the Company have been duly considered.

The Company did not enter into any service contract with its executive Directors and independent nonexecutive Directors. However, according to article 98 of the Articles of Association, the terms of the Directors shall be three years. Upon the expiry of the term, the Directors shall be eligible for re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company. Therefore, the terms of the independent non-executive Directors of (i) Mr. Yuan Shumin commenced from 22 June 2022 to 21 June 2025; (ii) Mr. Liu Feng commenced from 24 June 2021 to 23 June 2024 and (iii) Mr. Zhou Guolai commenced from 7 July 2022 to 6 July 2025.

The Board considers that all of the independent non-executive Directors are independent and it has received from each of them the annual confirmation of independence required by the GEM Listing Rules.

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company and also approve business plans, evaluate the performance of the Group and oversight of management. The Board focuses on overall strategies and policies with particular attention paid to the growth and financial performance of the Group.

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group to executive Directors and senior management, while reserving certain key matters for its approval. When the Board delegates aspects of its management and administration functions to the management, it has given clear directions as to the powers of the management, in particular, with respect to the circumstances where the management shall report back and obtain prior approval from the Board before making decisions or entering into any commitments on behalf of the Company.

The Board held four board meetings during the year ended 31 December 2023. Details of the attendance of the Board are as follows:

Board Meetings		Number of Attendance
Mr. Zhang Xiaobo	(Chairman) (Appointed on 4 September 2023)	4/4
Mr. Shuai Ge	(Vice Chairman)	4/4
Ms. Cao Zhen	(Appointed on 4 September 2023)	4/4
Mr. Sun Jingchen	(Appointed on 20 June 2023)	4/4
Mr. Hu Lunjie		4/4
Ms. Gu Xiaomin		4/4
Mr. Chen Guoliang		4/4
Mr. Chang Jiang	(Resigned on 4 September 2023)	4/4
Mr. Shang Ling	(Resigned on 30 June 2023)	4/4

The Directors will receive details of agenda items for decision and minutes of committee meetings in advance of each board meeting.



During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company held one annual general meeting on 20 June 2023 and one extraordinary general meeting on 4 September 2023 of the Company.

Name of Directors		Number of Attendance
Mr. Zhang Xiaobo	(Chairman) (Appointed on 4 September 2023)	2/2
Mr. Shuai Ge	(Vice Chairman)	2/2
Ms. Cao Zhen	(Appointed on 4 September 2023)	2/2
Mr. Sun Jingchen	(Appointed on 20 June 2023)	2/2
Mr. Hu Lunjie		2/2
Ms. Gu Xiaomin		2/2
Mr. Chen Guoliang		2/2
Mr. Chang Jiang	(Resigned on 4 September 2023)	2/2
Mr. Shang Ling	(Resigned on 30 June 2023)	2/2

DIRECTORS' TRAINING

According to the code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, all directors shall participate in a programme of continuous professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the board remains informed and relevant. The Company shall be responsible for arranging and funding training, and place appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of the Directors.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Directors participated in the following continuous professional development:

		Training organized
		by professional
Name of Directors		organization
Evenuative Discolory		
Executive Directors		
Mr. Zhang Xiaobo	(Chairman) (Appointed on 4 September 2023)	~
Mr. Shuai Ge	(Vice Chairman)	 ✓
Ms. Cao Zhen	(Appointed on 4 September 2023)	 ✓
Mr. Hu Lunjie		 ✓
Ms. Gu Xiaomin		 ✓
Mr. Sun Jingchen	(Appointed on 20 June 2023)	 ✓
Mr. Chang Jiang	(Resigned on 4 September 2023)	 ✓
Mr. Shang Ling	(Resigned on 30 June 2023)	 ✓
Mr. Chen Guoliang	(Resigned on 20 June 2023)	~
Independent Non-executive I	Directors	
Mr. Yuan Shumin		 ✓
Mr. Liu Feng		 ✓

Note: The Company received from each of the Directors the confirmations on taking continuous professional training.

Mr. Zhou Guolai

CHAIRMAN AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE

During the period between October 21, 2021 and June 30, 2023, Mr. Chang Jiang was the Chairman and Mr. Shang Ling was the Chief Executive. The current Chairman of the Company is Mr. Zhang Xiaobo, the Vice Chairman of the Company is Mr. Shang Ling whose responsibilities were temporarily shared by executive Directors and members of the senior management while certain material issues were still subject to the approval of the board of directors. In order to maintain the transparency and independence of the corporate governance, the roles of the Chairman, Vice Chairman and the Chief Executive are segregated and assumed by those separate individuals who have no relationship with each other to strike a balance of power and authority so that the job responsibilities are not concentrated on any one individual. The Chairman of the Board is responsible for the leadership and effective running of the Board, the Vice Chairman is responsible for the overall business of the Group, while the Chief Executive is delegated with the authorities to manage the business of the Group in all aspects effectively. The division of responsibilities among the Chairman, Vice Chairman and the Chief Executive is with the authorities to manage the business of the Group in all aspects effectively. The division of responsibilities among the Chairman, Vice Chairman and the Chief Executive is with the authorities to manage the business of the Group in all aspects effectively. The division of responsibilities among the Chairman, Vice Chairman and the Chief Executive have been clearly established and set out in writing.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

In compliance with the Rules 5.05(1) and 5.05A of the GEM Listing Rules, there are three independent non-executive Directors representing one-third of the Board. Among the three independent non-executive Directors, one of them has appropriate professional qualifications in accounting or relevant financial management expertise as required by the Rule 5.05(2) of the GEM Listing Rules. The independent non-executive Directors bring independent judgment on issues of strategy, performance and risk. The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive Directors written confirmations of their independence pursuant to the Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. Based upon the said confirmations, the Board considers that all the independent non-executive Directors are independent.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the "Audit Committee") was established on 7 July 2002 with written terms of reference. The financial reporting system, risk management and internal control systems of the Company have also been reviewed by the Audit Committee, which was of the opinion that no improvement was required for the time being.

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Yuan Shumin (Chairman), Mr. Liu Feng and Mr. Zhou Guolai.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year. The attendance records of the Audit Committee meetings during the year ended 31 December 2023 are as follows:

Meetings of Audit Committee

Mr. Yuan Shumin Mr. Liu Feng Mr. Zhou Guolai

(Chairman)



Number of Attendance

The Group's unaudited quarterly and interim results and audited annual results during the year ended 31 December 2023 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee, which was of the opinion that the preparation of such results complied with the applicable accounting standards and requirements and that adequate disclosures have been made.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company (the "Remuneration Committee") was established on 7 July 2005 with written terms of reference and comprising a total of four members, being one executive Director, namely, Mr. Zhang Xiaobo and three independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Yuan Shumin (Chairman), Mr. Liu Feng and Mr. Zhou Guolai.

The role and function of the Remuneration Committee include the determination of the remuneration package of all Directors and senior management of the Company. The principal elements of the remuneration packages may include basic salary, discretionary bonus and share option. The determined guidelines are based on their skills, knowledge and involvement in the Company's affairs and which are determined by reference to the Company's performance and profitability, as well as remuneration benchmark in the industry and the prevailing market conditions and to review and/or approve matters reflecting chapter 23 of the Listing Rules in relation to the Share Scheme.

The Remuneration Committee consults the Chairman and Chief Executive about its proposals related to the remuneration of the Directors and senior management of the Company. The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year. The attendance records of the Remuneration Committee meeting during the year ended 31 December 2023 are as follows:

Meetings of Remuneration Committee		Number of Attendance
Mr. Yuan Shumin	(Chairman)	1/1
Mr. Zhang Xiaobo		0/0
Mr. Liu Feng		1/1
Mr. Zhou Guolai		1/1
Mr. Chang Jiang		1/1

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the remuneration of the senior management of the Company falls within the following bands.

Remuneration bands (RMB) No.	umber of senior management
------------------------------	----------------------------

1

Nil to 1,000,000

Directors' Remuneration Policy

A directors' remuneration policy has been adopted. It aims to set out the Company's policy in respect of remuneration paid to executive Directors and non-executive Directors.

The Directors' remuneration policy sets out the remuneration structure that allows the Company to attract, motivate and retain qualified Directors who can manage and lead the Company in achieving its strategic objective and contribute to the Company's performance and sustainable growth, and to provide Directors with a balanced and competitive remuneration. The remuneration policy is, therefore, aiming at being competitive but not excessive. To achieve this, remuneration package is determined with efference to a matrix of factors, including the individual performance, qualification and experience of Directors concerned and prevailing industry practice. It will be reviewed and, if necessary, updated from time to time to ensure its continued effectiveness.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

On 20 March 2012, the Company established the nomination committee of the Company (the "Nomination Committee") with clear written terms of reference as to its authority and duties. The Nomination Committee consists of three members, being one executive Director, namely, Mr. Zhang Xiaobo (Chairman), and two independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Yuan Shumin and Mr. Liu Feng. Accordingly, a majority of the members are independent non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for electing and recommending candidates for directorship, based on assessment of their professional qualifications and experience and also for assessing the independence of each independent non-executive Director.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year. The attendance records of the Nomination Committee meeting during the year ended 31 December 2023 are as follows:

Meetings of Nomination Committee		Number of Attendance
Mr. Zhang Xiaobo	(Chairman)	0/0
Mr. Yuan Shumin		1/1
Mr. Liu Feng		1/1
Mr. Chang Jiang		1/1

Board Diversity Policy

The Nomination Committee adopted the board diversity policy on 8 August 2013.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance. Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted the nomination policy (the "Nomination Policy") on 9 November 2018 which sets out the nomination criteria and procedures for the Company to select candidate(s) for possible inclusion in the Board. The Nomination Policy could assist the Company to achieve board diversity in the Company and enhance the effectiveness of the Board and its corporate governance standard.

When assessing the suitability of a candidate, factors such as the qualifications, skills, integrity and experience will be taken into consideration as a whole. In the case of independent non-executive Directors, they must further satisfy the independence criteria set out within Rule 5.09 of the Listing Rules. Since the selection of candidates should ensure that diversity remains a central feature of the Board, a range of diverse perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, or professional experience would be considered.

Board Independence

The Board should establish mechanisms to ensure independent views and input are available to the Board and such mechanisms should be reviewed annually by the Board. During the year, the Board has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of such mechanisms and made the following observations:

- (a) Three out of nine Directors are INEDs, satisfying the requirement of the Listing Rules that at least onethird of the Board are INEDs;
- (b) INEDs are encouraged to join Board committees to ensure independent views are available at committee levels;
- (c) The nomination committee will assess the independence of a candidate who is nominated to be a new INED before appointment. The nomination committee will also assess the continued independence of the long-serving INEDs on an annual basis;
- (d) Each INED is required to inform the Company as soon as practicable if there is any change in his/her own personal particulars that may materially affect his/her independence;
- (e) All INEDs are required to submit a written confirmation to the Company annually to confirm their independence;
- (f) All Directors are encouraged to seek further information and documentation from the management on the matters to be discussed at or outside Board and Board committee meetings;
- (g) All Directors are aware of their right to seek assistance from the Company's management and company secretary and, where necessary, to seek independent advice from external professional

advisers at the Company's expense;

- (h) All Directors are encouraged to express their views in an open and candid manner at or outside Board and Board committee meetings; and
- (i) All Directors are reminded at Board and Board committee meetings to disclose any material interest in contract, transaction or arrangement and where such material interest does exist, shall abstain from voting and not be counted in the quorum on any Board or committee resolution approving the same.

The process to identify potential candidates for the Board would be as follows:

- (1) identifying potential candidates, including recommendations from the Board members, professional search firms and the shareholders of the Company;
- (2) evaluating the candidates based on the approved selection criteria through methods such as reviewing the resume and conducting the background checks;
- (3) reviewing the profiles of the shortlisted candidates and interview them; and
- (4) making recommendations to the Board on the selected candidates.

The Nomination Policy also includes the Board succession plan to assess whether vacancies on the Board would be created or expected due to the Directors' resignation, retirement, death and other circumstances and to identify candidates in advance if necessary. The Nomination Policy will be reviewed on a regular basis.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The terms of reference on corporate governance functions was adopted by the Board on 20 March 2012. The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance functions to develop and review the Company's policies and practices on corporate governance and make recommendations; to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of Directors and senior management; to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors; and to review the Company's compliance with the "Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report" as set out in Appendix C1 of the GEM Listing Rules and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report contained in the annual report of the Company.

AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

An amount of RMB360,000.00 was charged to the Group's consolidated income statement and income statement for the year ended 31 December 2023 for the auditing services provided by ShineWing Certified Public Accountants (Special General Partnership), the existing auditor of the Company. During the year, the amount charged in respect of non-auditing services provided by ShineWing Certified Public Accountants (Special General Partnership) was RMB0.00.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Annual Report and Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and in presenting the quarterly and annual financial statements, and announcements to shareholders. The Directors aim to present a balanced and understandable assessment of the Group position and prospects.

Accounting Period

The Directors consider that in preparing the financial statements, the Group uses appropriate accounting policies that are consistently applied, and that all applicable accounting standards are followed.



Accounting Records

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group keeps accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial position of the Group and which enable the preparation of financial statements in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the applicable accounting standards.

Going Concern

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

THE COMPANY SECRETARY

After entering into the service contracts by the Company and the external service providers, Ms. Ho Wing Yan ("Ms. Ho") has been appointed as the company secretary of the Company (the "Company Secretary"). Mr. Zhang Xiaobo, our executive Director, is the main contact person of Ms. Ho at the Company when she fulfills her duties.

As the Company Secretary, Ms. Ho supports the Board to ensure a smooth exchange of information within the members of the Board and that the policies and procedures of the Board are followed. She is responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance matters and making arrangements for the Directors' induction training and ongoing training as well as professional development.

Ms. Ho is an associate member of The Chartered Governance Institute and The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute. Ms. Ho constantly pursues continuing education courses relating to the certificates of corporate governance. She has extensive experience in acting as the company secretary of a listed company and is awarded practitioners professional accreditation by the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. According to Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules, Ms. Ho has attended more than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the year.

DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board and sees diversity at Board level as an essential element in achieving a sustainable and balanced development of the Company. A truly diverse Board shall be inclusive and make good use of differences in the talents, skills, regional and industrial experience, background, gender and other qualities of the members of the Board. These differences will be considered in determining the optimum composition of the Board and when possible, should be balanced appropriately. All appointments of the members of the Board are made on merit, taking into account the talents, skills and experience the Board as a whole in order for the Board to be effective. The selection process of the Board members will include but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.

In respect of the gender diversity of the Board, as at the date of the Annual Report, the Company had 7 male Directors and 2 female Directors. The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance, and regards increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable development. It is expected that the ratio of female Directors will reach more than 20% in the following years. The Company will achieve this goal through active nomination of suitable candidates with no gender limitation to be newly appointed Directors in the next few years.

Moreover, the current gender ratio of the Company's workforce (including senior management) is 52 males per 29 females, compared with a decrease from 70 males per 31 females in the previous year. Company has already achieved gender diversity and will continue focusing on the area because workforce gender diversity is associated with resources that can provide a sustained competitive advantage to the company, which include market insight, creativity and innovation, and improved problem-solving. The different experiences of male and female may provide insights into the different needs of male and female customers. Further, men and women may have different cognitive abilities, such as men's proficiency in mathematics and women's proficiency in verbal and interpersonal skills. Therefore, a mix of cognitive abilities in a gender diverse team may enhance the team's overall creativity and innovation as proved by research. Moreover, a gender diverse team produces high quality decisions. Although there may be some mitigating circumstances where gender diversity can be very hard to achieve (for instance, male workers are more commonly seen regarding physical labor and female workers are more often seen during psychological consultation), the Company will keep focusing on the workforce gender diversity to maintain its current strength as well as to further improve its competitive strength in the future.

SHAREHOLDER'S RIGHTS

The Convening of an Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to the Article 80 of the Memorandum of Association, Shareholders who request the convening of an extraordinary general meeting or a class meeting of shareholders shall do so in accordance with the following procedures:

(1) Two or more shareholders with an aggregate of more than 10% (including 10%) of shares with voting rights at the meeting to be convened may sign one or several written requests in the same format and with the same contents to the board of directors to convene an extraordinary general meeting or class meeting of shareholders and which shall also specify the meeting's agenda. After receiving the aforesaid written request, the board of directors shall promptly convene an extraordinary general meeting or class meeting of shareholders. The aforesaid number of shares held by shareholders shall be calculated as at the date of the written request.



(2) If the Board fails to issue notice for convening a meeting within thirty days after receiving the aforesaid written request, the shareholders who raised the request may convene the meeting within four months after the Board received that request. The procedures for convening such a meeting shall be, as much as possible, the same as the procedures for convening a general meeting by the Board.

In the case of shareholders organizing the convening of a meeting as a result of the failure of the Board to convene a meeting as requested above, reasonable expenses incurred on the meeting shall be borne by the Company and shall be deducted from the funds owed by the Company to those directors who were negligent in the performance of their duties.

Putting enquiries to the Board

To ensure effective communication between the Board and the Shareholders, the Company has adopted a shareholders' communication policy (the "Policy") on 20 March 2012. Under the Policy, the Company's information shall be communicated to the Shareholders mainly through general meetings, including annual general meetings, the Company's financial reports (interim reports and annual reports), and its corporate communications and other corporate publications on the Company's website and the Stock Exchange's website. Shareholders may at any time make a request for the Company's information to the extent such information is publicly available. Any such questions shall be first directed to the Company Secretary at the Company's head office and principal place of business in Hong Kong.

Putting forward a proposal at a general meeting

Pursuant to the Article 61 of the Memorandum of Association, the Board of Directors, the Supervisory Committee and the Shareholder(s) individually or aggregately holding more than 3% of the Shares of the Company may put forward written proposals to the shareholders' general meeting. The shareholders that severally or jointly hold more than 3% of the Company's shares may raise interim proposals and notify them in writing to the convener ten days prior to the general meeting. The convener shall issue a supplemental notice of the general meeting within two days after receipt of such proposal. The contents of such proposals shall fall within the scope of the shareholder's general meeting and such proposals shall have clear and specific topics for discussion and comply with the relevant provisions of the laws, administrative regulations and the Articles of Association. Save for the circumstances mentioned in the preceding paragraphs, no amendment to the proposals specified in the notice of general meeting or additional proposals shall not be made after the notice of convening a general meeting is delivered. No proposal which has not been set out in the notice of the general meeting or not in compliance with the requirement under this Article shall be considered and decided at the general meeting.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

On 21 March 2023, the Board proposed to amend the articles of association of the Company (the "Proposed Amendments"). In view of the Proposed Amendments, the Board proposed to adopt an amended and restated the articles of association (the "New Articles of Association"). The New Articles of Association was adopted by the shareholders of the Company (the "Shareholders") at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 20 June 2023. For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 21 March 2023 and 20 June 2023, the circular of the Company dated 31 March 2023 and the New Articles of Association published on 16 October 2023.

The Company has amended the general items in Article 11 of the Articles of Association, the scope of business of the Company shall be subject to the items approved by the company registration authority.

Save as disclosed herein, there was no changes in the Company's constitutional documents during the year ended 31 December 2023.

SHAREHOLDERS' COMMUNICATION POLICY

Purpose

The Company recognises the importance of providing current and relevant information to its Shareholders. This shareholders' communication policy (the "Policy") aims to set out the provisions with the objective to ensure that the Shareholders and potential investors are provided with equal and timely access to balanced and understandable information about the Company, in order to enable Shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed manner, and to allow Shareholders and potential investors to engage actively with the Company.

General Policy

The Board shall maintain an on-going dialogue with Shareholders and will regularly review the Policy to ensure its effectiveness.

Information is communicated to the Shareholders as well as the stakeholders through periodic disclosure through the Company's financial reports (interim and annual reports), annual general meetings and other general meetings that may be convened, as well as by making available all the disclosures submitted to The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited ("HKEx") and other corporate publications on the HKEx's website and corporate communications on the HKEx website (www.hkex.com.hk) and the Company's website (http://www. withub.com.cn).

Effective and timely dissemination of information to Shareholders shall be ensured at all times. Any questions, requests and comments can be addressed to the Company by mail to Suite 2703, 27/F. Shui On Centre Nos. 6-8 Harbour Road Wanchai, Hong Kong or through the Company's share registrar.



The Company believes that communication with Shareholders by electronic means, particularly through its website, is an efficient way to distribute information in a timely and convenient manner. Shareholders are encouraged to access to the corporate communications posted on the Company's website to help reduce the quantity of printed copies and hence reduce the impact on the environment.

The Company's website will be updated with material posted to the HKEx website immediately thereafter. Such material includes but not limited to financial statements, results announcements, circulars and notices of general meetings and associated explanatory documents.

Shareholders may at any time make a request for the Company's information to the extent such information is publicly available.

Shareholders shall be provided with designated contacts, email addresses and enquiry lines of the Company in order to enable them to make any query in respect of the Company.

The Company has reviewed the Policy conducted for the year ended 31 December 2023 and considered that the Policy has been well implemented and effective.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted the dividend policy (the "Dividend Policy") on 9 November 2018 which sets out the appropriate procedure on declaring and recommending the dividend payment of the Company. The Company takes priority to distributing dividends in cash and shares its profits with the shareholders. The dividend distribution decision of the Company will depend on, among others, the financial results, the current and future operations, liquidity and capital requirements, financial condition and other factors as the Board may deem relevant. The Board may also declare special dividends from time to time. The Dividend Policy will be reviewed on a regular basis.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company continues to pursue a proactive policy in promoting communications with the investors. The Board recognized that effective communication with investors is the key to establish investor confidence and to attract more new investors.

The Company communicates with its investors through the publication of annual and interim reports, press announcements and releases and also the Company's website at http://www.withub.com.cn. The Group regularly releases corporate information such as awards received, and the latest news of the Group's developments on its website. The public are welcome to give their comments and make their enquiries through the Company's website, and the management will give their prompt response.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

During the year, the Audit Committee has discussed with the management of the Company the matters relating to risk management and internal control of the Group. The Board complied with the code provisions on risk management and internal control as set out in the CG code. The Board has responsibility for evaluating and determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group's strategic objectives, and maintaining appropriate and effective risk management and internal control systems for the Group. The systems are designed to manage the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The management of the Company has established a set of comprehensive policies, standards and procedures in areas of operational, financial and risk controls for safeguarding assets against unauthorised use or disposition; for maintaining proper accounting records; and for ensuring the reliability of financial information to achieve a satisfactory level of assurance against the likelihood of the occurrence of fraud and errors.

The Board has overseen the Company's risk management and internal control systems on an ongoing basis. A year end review of the effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal control systems has been conducted annually and the systems are considered to be effective and adequate. Self-assessment and comprehensive risk assessment surveys have been conducted during the review. The Company also has an internal audit function to carry out the analysis and independent appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of the systems, and has procedures in place to keep information confidential and manage actual or potential conflicts of interest. Stringent internal control structures have been designed to prevent the misuse of inside information and avoid conflicts of interest.

All Directors and those employees who could have access to, and monitor, the information of the Group are responsible for making appropriate precautions to prevent abuse or misuse of such information. Employees of the Group are prohibited from using inside information for their own benefit.

The Board is also vested with the responsibility to disseminate to the Shareholders and the public any inside information in the form of announcements and circulars, in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules.



The Group is committed to promote sustainable development, which is extremely important to create longterm value for the Group's shareholders, clients, employees, other stakeholders, as well as general public. The Company cares about the impact of its daily operation on the environment and society, strives to set a good example for the public, while conducting business operation. It makes effort to meet the interests of all stakeholders, economy, environment, society and corporate governance and does its best to achieve a fine balance.

THE ESG GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

We consider ESG commitment as a part of our fiduciary duty and we pledge to embed ESG considerations into our decision-making process. To achieve this, we have developed a core governance framework to ensure the alignment of ESG governance with our strategic growth, while advocating ESG integration into our business operations. The structure of our corporate social responsibility is divided into two components, namely the board of directors (the "Board") and an ESG Taskforce.

The Board holds the overall responsibility on the Group's ESG issues and oversees the ESG strategies, direction and policies. In order to better manage the Group's ESG performance, related issues and potential risks, the Board discusses and reviews the Group's ESG risks and opportunities, performance, progress, goals and targets regularly with the assistance of the ESG Taskforce. The Board is also responsible for ensuring the effectiveness of ESG risk management and internal control mechanism and facilitates the exchange of best practices with other comparison companies.

The ESG taskforce is composed of core members from different departments of the Group. The ESG taskforce facilitates the Board's oversight of ESG matters and has the responsibility for collecting and analysing ESG data, monitoring and evaluating the Group's ESG performance, ensuring compliance with ESG-related laws and regulations, and preparing ESG reports. The ESG taskforce arranges meeting semi-annually to evaluate the effectiveness of current policies and procedures, and formulate appropriate solutions to improve the overall performance of ESG policies. At meetings, the ESG taskforce discussed the existing and upcoming plans in order to monitor and manage the Group's strategic goals in terms of sustainable development, mitigating potential risks, and minimising the negative impact on our business operations. The ESG taskforce would periodically report to the Board, assist in assessing and identifying the Group ESG risks and opportunities and evaluate the implementation and effectiveness of internal control mechanism.

REPORTING SCOPE

Unless otherwise stated, the ESG Report mainly covers the Group's operation in investment holding located in the PRC principally engaged in the development and provision of business application solutions. The Company operates through two segments. Business Application Project and Application Software segment is engaged in the development and provision of business application project services, including business solutions, application software, installation and maintenance services and data security products. It focuses on medical care sector, intelligent elderly care sector, intelligent surveillance sector, e-politics sector and e-commerce sector, among others. The Sales of Products segment is engaged in the sales and distribution of computers and electronic products and accessories. The Company mainly operates businesses in China, which contributed to the majority of the Group's revenue during the Reporting Period. The Group will continue to assess the major ESG aspects of different businesses of its major subsidiaries to determine the reporting scope of the ESG Report.

The reporting boundary is determined according to the corresponding materiality of each entity to our business and operations. Entities outside the scope of the ESG Report can be found in the Annual Report 2023, note 1 to the financial statements.

REPORTING FRAMEWORK

The Report has been prepared in accordance with the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the "ESG Reporting Guide") as set out in Appendix C2 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the "Listing Rules") on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange"). Information relating to the Group's corporate governance structure and practices has been set out in the Corporate Governance Report of the Annual Report 2023.

During preparation for this ESG Report, the Group has applied the reporting principles in the aforementioned ESG Reporting Guide as the following:

Materiality: Materiality assessment was conducted to identify material issues during the Reporting Period, thereby adopting the confirmed material issues as the focus for the preparation of the Report. The materiality of issues was reviewed and confirmed by the Board and senior management. Please refer to the section headed "Stakeholder Engagement" for further details.

Quantitative: The standards and methodologies used in the calculation of relevant data in this Report, as well as the applicable assumptions were disclosed. The key performance indicators ("KPIs") are supplemented by explanatory notes to establish benchmarks where feasible.

Balance: This Report was written in an objective and impartial manner to ensure that the information disclosed faithfully reflects the overall performance of the Group in ESG aspects.

Consistency: The preparation approach of this Report was substantially consistent with the previous year, and explanations were provided regarding data with changes in the scope of disclosure and calculation methodologies.

This ESG Report has undergone the internal review process of the Group and was approved by the Board.

REPORTING PERIOD

The ESG Report specifies the ESG activities, challenges, and measures being taken during the year ended 31 December 2023.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group values its stakeholders and their feedback regarding its businesses and ESG aspects. To understand and address stakeholders' key concerns, the Group has maintained close communication with its key stakeholders, including but not limited to shareholders and investors, customers, tenants, employees, suppliers and subcontractors, government and other regulatory bodies as well as the local community.



In formulating operational and ESG strategies, the Group considers stakeholders' expectations by utilising diversified communication channels as shown below:

Stakeholders	Communication channels	Expectations		
Shareholders and investors	 Financial reports Annual general meeting Company website Press releases Investor relations inquiry Hotline and email 	Business strategyFinancial performanceCorporate governanceBusiness sustainability		
Customers	 Customer service hotline and email Complaint hotline Exhibitions 	Quality of the services and productsTimely service		
Employees	 Staff performance appraisal Training Internal policies Regular meetings Surveys 	 Rights and benefits Staff remuneration Development and training Working hours Occupational health and safety 		
Suppliers and subcontractors	 Business meetings Quotation and tendering processes Regular audits and assessments 	CommitmentsPayment scheduleBusiness ethics and reputation		
Government and other regulatory bodies	Statutory filings and noticesCompulsory or voluntary disclosure	Compliance with laws and regulationsTransparency of internal information		
Local community	Community activitiesSponsorships and donations	Business ethicsFair employment opportunityEnvironmental protection		

The Group aims to collaborate with its stakeholders to improve its ESG performance and continuously create greater value for the wider community.

BOARD STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, I am pleased to present the ESG report of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023. This report demonstrates our growing commitment to advancing our sustainability performance in areas such as corporate governance, community participation, customer satisfaction, and employee care.

We view ESG commitments as part of our responsibility and are committed to incorporating ESG considerations into our decision-making process. As such, the Group decided to set directional targets for the financial year ending 31 December 2024 ("2024"), which would be a three-year target plan. By setting ESG related goals, the Group can raise the employee's awareness of environmental protection and improve its ESG performance continuously.

We believe that a forceful governance structure is of utmost importance to the successful integration and effective management of sustainability at the Company. The Board holds the overall responsibility on the Group's ESG issues and oversees the ESG strategies, directions and policies. In order to better manage the Group's ESG performance, related issues and potential risks, the Board analyses and reviews the Group's ESG risks and opportunities, performance, progress, goals and targets regularly. The Board is also responsible for ensuring the effectiveness of ESG risk management and internal control mechanism and facilitates the exchange of best practices with other comparable companies.

Looking forward, we will continue our efforts to further deepen the integration of ESG concepts internally and externally, implement sustainable management more responsibly, and work together.

Finally, I would like to express my greatest gratitude to the Board, management and staff of the Group for their strenuous contribution in the past year. Furthermore, I would also like to take this opportunity to sincerely thank our customers, suppliers, business partners and shareholders for their continuous support and trust. I believe all members of the Group will dedicate their best effort to drive business growth and to deliver enhanced returns to shareholders.

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The management and staff of the Group's major operations have participated in the preparation of the Report in order to assist the Group in reviewing its operations, identifying relevant ESG issues and assessing the importance of related matters to its businesses and stakeholders. The Group has compiled a questionnaire with reference to the identified material ESG issues to collect the information from the stakeholders of the Group.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has confirmed that it has established appropriate and effective management policies and internal control systems for ESG issues and confirmed that the disclosed contents are in compliance with the requirements of the ESG Reporting Guide.



ENVIRONMENTAL TARGETS

To better manage the Group's material topics and its performance on those aspects, the Group has set some directional targets for the financial year ending 31 December 2024 ("2024"), which would be a three-year target plan.

The table below summarises the Group's sustainability targets for 2024. The Group will continue to review the progress of the set targets every Reporting Period prior to 2024, and will continue to work for the targets set.

Environmental Targets Setting		
Emissions	 Reduce emissions intensities by 1% in 2024 compared to 2021 	In progress
Waste Management	Reduce waste intensity by 1% in 2024 compared to 2021	In progress
Energy Consumption	 Reduce electricity and gasoline intensities by 1% in 2024 compared to 2021 	In progress
Water Consumption	Reduce water consumption intensity by 1% in 2024 compared to 2021	In progress

CONTACT US

Please feel free to provide comments and suggestions on this Report or the Group's ESG work performance through email at sunguofang@withub.com.cn.

ENVIRONMENT

A1. Policy on emission of exhaust gas and greenhouse gas, discharging pollution through water and land, producing hazardous and non-hazardous wastes

Protecting environment is one of our key concerns; we are committed to protecting environment and focusing on environmental protection in our operation, hoping that through rigorous supervision and control to reduce our long-term negative impact on the environment.

1. Energy Management

The indirect greenhouse gas emission, which is generated from our daily electricity power consumption, is the main source of the Group's carbon footprint, we will keep monitoring and disclosing the Company's carbon footprint to find out and control the impact of our daily operation on the environment. At the same time, we will implement the following energy-saving and energy efficiency measures at various office locations to reduce greenhouse gas emission:

- a. Install high-performance electrical equipments
- b. Purchasing department is required to purchase energy-efficient products
- c. Employ automatic lighting control system
- d. Deploy LED lighting on office floors
- e. The employees must turn off light and unnecessary energy device before leaving to reduce energy consumption and avoid unnecessary waste of energy
- f. Deploy natural light as much as possible on office floors
- g. Install auxiliary electricity meter to monitor electricity consumption
- h. Other energy-saving and energy efficiency measures

Our finance department should collect information about the Group's usage of electricity annually for the management to disclose in the Environmental, Social Government report (the "ESG report") in the financial year starts from 1 January 2020.

2. Waste Management

In order to lighten the load of landfills, we adopt a responsible waste management policy, including waste avoidance, reducing waste from its source and reuse, recycling and responsible disposal of waste. Our offices should post notices and memos everywhere, encouraging the employees to reduce the production of waste. We have introduced waste separation measures from the start:

- a. Waste paper (excluding paper cup, paper plate, etc.)
- b. Metal (aluminum can and other metal cans)
- c. Plastics (plastic bottle, container and packaging materials)
- d. Other recyclables (such as old cloth, electrical appliance, computer, magazine, etc.)



A2. Policy on effective use of resources (including energy, water and other raw materials)

1. Reducing electricity consumption

We will comply with the Group's policy on emission of exhaust gas and greenhouse gas, discharging pollution through water and land, producing hazardous and non-hazardous wastes to reduce electricity consumption.

2. Paper reduction

In order to reduce waste paper, we have developed the following measures:

- a. Deploy recycling bins to collect paper products that can not be reused such as waste paper, poster, letter and envelope;
- b. Place recycling bin for waste paper and papers that already printed once next to printer so that you can choose whether put it into the bin or reuse it;
- c. Saving paper by double-sided printing
- d. Writing on both sides of papers
- e. Bring your own cup and avoid using paper cup
- f. Reuse stationeries such as file folder and envelope
- g. Reuse packaging box
- h. Other than the waste paper that contains confidential information, waste paper should be shipped to paper mill or scrap paper company so as to be recycled into new paper.

Each year, our finance department shall collect information about the paper products purchased and the waste paper that shipped to scrap paper company or paper mill annually for the management to disclose in the ESG report in the financial year starts from 1 January 2018.

3. Water conservation

In Hong Kong and the PRC, fresh water is a precious resource. We should economize water, try to protect water resource, and for which we have developed the following measures:

- a. Repair dripping faucet and hose in a timely manner
- b. Adopt effective water-saving production methods and instruments
- c. Check water consumption regularly
- d. Minimize water pressure

4. Green procurement

Green procurement is based on reducing environmental load. Quality, cost, delivery time are the main focuses when we procure goods or chooses supplier, but other than that, we give priority to environmentally friendly and energy-saving products. We adopt the following measures:

- a. Give priority to energy-efficient products at the highest level
- b. Give priority to effective water-saving products
- c. We require the suppliers to reduce packaging material
- d. Send the message to suppliers that we value environmental protection, energy saving

A3. Policy on mitigating the Group's significant impact on environment and natural resources

The Group manages and minimizes the impact it may cause on environment, directly or indirectly, through the following methods:

- 1. Make sure its business operation comply with the environmental law in Hong Kong and its operating locations including the PRC
- 2. Establish and improve environmental protection mechanism to ensure its operation does not pollute water and land
- 3. Monitor gas emission and use of resource, establish emission reduction target
- 4. Make sure that in our daily business operation, with all efforts, we conserve energy, water and other raw materials to reduce direct impact on environment
- 5. Whenever the Company holds banquet, shark fin is out of question and sustainable seafood should be served. Order reasonable quantity and reduce waste
- 6. Urge the employees to reduce paper usage and adopt other energy-saving measures
- 7. Cooperate with government agencies and support environmental organizations' activities

A4. Policy on measures to identify and mitigate the significant climate-related issues on issuer

Climate Change Adaptation and Mitigation

The Group recognises the importance of the identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues, and is committed to managing the potential climate-related risks which may impact the Group's business activities. Therefore, the Group has established a robust set of policy and procedures to identify, monitor and manage ESG issues, including climate change. Material climate-related risks are identified and managed under our enterprise risk management framework.



Climate-related Issues

Physical Risks

The increased frequency and severity of extreme weather events such as extreme cold or heat, storms, heavy rains, typhoons can disrupt operations by damaging the power grid or communication infrastructures, obstructing and injuring our employees on the road or during their work. These events could disrupt supply chains, interrupt business operations, and damage Group assets. As countermeasure, the Group will identify these risks and prioritise those that have a serious impact to take precautionary measures in the first place. At the same time, the Group will examine the possibility of a change of business model to reduce or avoid these serious effects on business operations.

Transition Risks

There are more stringent climate legislations and regulations to support the global vision of decarbonisation. For instance, the Stock Exchange has required the listed companies to enhance the climate-related disclosures in their ESG reports. Stricter environmental laws and regulations may expose enterprises to higher risks of claims and lawsuits. Corporate reputation may also decline due to failure to meet the compliance requirements for climate change. The Company's related capital investment and compliance costs thus increase. In response to the policy and legal risks as well as the reputation risks, the Group regularly monitors existing and emerging trends, policies and regulations relevant to climate and be prepared to alert the top management where necessary to avoid cost increments, noncompliance fines or reputational risks due to delayed response. Besides, we have set targets to reduce our energy consumption and emissions during 2023.

SOCIETY

Employment and Labor convention

Employee is an important asset of the Company, we care about their well-being, respect their personal traits, make sure that all employees are subject to legislative protection and have equal opportunity in their career path, also, we strive to increase their sense of belonging.

B1. Policy on salary, dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, day off, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination and other benefits and welfare

1. Salary

We offer competitive pay and benefits to our employees according to their job requirement and individual performance. We will annually review the overall salary and benefits of employee to ensure its competitiveness in local market, and we will also refer to the relevant industries and similar organizations. Each year, our KPIs will provide direction and guidance to the employees' individual work plan. We also assess the achievements and contributions of the employees to appraise and reward them.

2. Dismissal

We ensure that all employees are protected the applicable employment laws, including:

- a. Whenever an employee resigns or is being laid off, human resources department should interview him or her before quitting to find out the reason of quitting;
- b. The human resources department is required to issue employment verification document to the dismissed employee;
- c. When the employer terminates an employee's employment contract, the dismissed employee shall be given due notice or wages in lieu of notice, and the notice should not be given during his or her paid annual leave and maternity leave;
- d. An employee cannot be dismissed when she has been confirmed pregnant and given notice of pregnancy;
- e. An employee cannot be dismissed when he or she takes a paid sick leave;
- An employee cannot be dismissed due to he or she gives evidence or information in any legal proceeding relating to enforcement of labor laws, industrial accident or breach of work safety regulation;
- g. An employee cannot be dismissed due to he or she joins in labor union or participates in labor union activities; and
- h. If an employee is injured on duty, if a compensation agreement has not yet been reached or the relevant evaluation certificate has not yet been issued, the employee cannot be dismissed.

3. Recruitment and promotion

In the Group, recruitment and promotion should be fair and open for all employees, and cannot be affected by age, sex, physical or mental health status, marital status, family status, race, skin colour, nationality, religion, political affiliation and sexual orientation and other factors, the employees will be recognized and rewarded by their contribution, work performance and skills, and provide them with good working environment and development opportunity.



4. Working hours and day-off

The employees shall enjoy deserved days-off under the applicable laws and regulations. Employees in Hong Kong are entitled to enjoy the following days-off:

- a. Each employee can take a day off in every 7 days during his or her tenure;
- b. If the day-off falls on a statutory holiday, compensatory time off shall be offered on the following day;
- c. Manager can ask employee to work on the day off, but employee can choose not to. If the employee agrees, a day off can be arranged in other time, but the said day off shall be planned before the scheduled day off in the same month, or within 30 days after it;
- d. Statutory holidays;
- e. Paid annual leave prescribed by employment contract;
- f. Sick leave;
- g. Female employee can take maternity leave so long as she complies with the continuous contract to serve the employer and give notice of pregnancy before the leave; and
- h. Maternity leave cannot be substituted by wage.

5. Policy on equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination and other benefits and welfare

Sex Discrimination Ordinance, Disability Discrimination Ordinance, Family Status Discrimination Ordinance must be complied with, equal opportunity must be provided on recruitment, training, promotion, transfer, remuneration, benefits and termination of contract. Such opportunities shall not be affected by factors such as age, gender, physical or mental health status, marital status, family status, race, skin colour, nationality, religion, political affiliation and sexual orientation.

B2. Policy on safe working environment and safeguarding the employees from occupational hazards

We are committed to protecting the health and safety of the employees and the community, we require all employees to comply with all relevant occupational health and safety regulations, and do our utmost to provide them with safe and healthy working environment, as a result, we have implemented the following policies:

- 1. Develop internal guidelines to ensure that office and work environment is in line with or higher than the requirements of relevant laws;
- 2. Establish safety procedures for the recognized dangerous work;
- 3. Provide necessary protective equipment and medical insurance to the employees;
- 4. Provide and ensure that office and working environment is healthy and safe, regularly check machinery and equipment;
- 5. Establish emergency measures such as fire or explosion emergency plan;
- 6. Regularly arrange rescue, fire and evacuation drills;

- 7. Establish mechanism to record industrial injury and analyze the cause;
- 8. Provide and maintain an environmental-friendly, healthy and safe working condition;
- 9. Unless prior approval, purchasing and using alcoholic beverage and illegal drugs is prohibited in the workplace;
- 10. Actively promote environmental protection, health and safety awareness of the employees, and support development of environmental protection, health and safety in the industry; and
- 11. Provide all employees with needed job information, guidance, training and supervision.

B3. Policy on improving the employees' knowledge and skills to perform their responsibilities

Talent development is an important part of our human resource strategy. We understand that the employees' knowledge and skills are essential to the Company's operation and business growth, good development plan lays a good foundation for the employees to face business challenge in the future, it also helps them to grasp promotion opportunities, fulfill their career aspirations. We provide the employees with effective training and develop a clear promotion ladder, ensuring that the employees have the required skills; we also nurture outstanding successors for the Group and breed academic atmosphere. The Group conducts performance evaluation annually, and based on the assessment result to provide the staff with appropriate training, and offer job, development and promotion opportunities for outstanding employees. Under the Group's Human Resource Management System requirements, Manager of our human resources department is responsible for carrying out related assessment and training.

B4. Policy on preventing child labor or forced labor

The Group firmly adopts a zero-tolerance policy on child labor and forced labor, such conduct is prohibited by international standard and relevant domestic legislation and shall never be tolerated in here. In any part of the business process (including our suppliers or subcontractors), child labor or forced labor is not allowed. We see child labor or forced labor as a serious crime. The following is the policy on preventing child labor or forced labor:

- 1. Child labor refers to employment of people under 16 years of age, if any country or region in which the subsidiary of the Company locates/operates has a more stringent definition of child labor, the definition shall prevail;
- 2. Forced labor refers to people who provide labor or service against their will and under the threat of punishment;
- 3. The hired employees must be at least 16 years of age, the Group shall never recruit child labor and forced labor, and if it knows child labor or forced labor exists in its suppliers or subcontractors, the Group will not conduct business with them anymore;
- 4. The employees under 18 may not engage in any possible hazardous work and prohibited to work at night, because it might affect their education;
- 5. Before hiring any job applicant, HR should take effective procedures to verify their age. HR should check documents that prove the age of the applicant, including governmentissued photo identification and birth certificate, driver's license, household register, academic certificates or any other credentials that prove the date of birth. And HR must ensure that the applicant's looks is consistent with the photograph on the ID card;

- 6. HR department should carry out prevention training about child labor and forced labor, especially those responsible for recruitment;
- 7. If employment of child labor under the legal minimum age is found in the Group, we will see to the best interests of the child, and take the following measures in line with relevant legislations:
 - a. Take the child away from workplace immediately, ensure the safety of the child;
 - b. Immediately notify the person in charge of HR to verify all relevant information, confirm whether the child under 16 years of age, sever labor relations with the child, notify the local social welfare institution, and take remedial measures to protect the child's best interest;
 - c. Send the child to a special occupational health labor inspection institution to do medical check-up, it is required to confirm the child's physical and mental health, and conduct investigation to fully understand the child's situation;
 - d. When the child reaches legal minimum age for employment, we will provide the child with re-employment opportunity; and
 - e. Immediately find out the problems exist in the hiring process of the operating location and take improvement measures within 90 working days.
- 8. If forced labor is found in the Group, we will take the following measures in accordance with the requirements of the relevant legislation:
 - a. Take the labor away from workplace immediately, ensure the safety of the labor;
 - b. Immediately notify the person in charge of HR to verify all relevant information, confirm whether the person is subject to compulsory labor;
 - c. Send the labor to a special occupational health labor inspection institution to do medical check-up, it is required to confirm the labor's physical and mental health, and conduct investigation to fully understand the labor's situation; and
 - d. Immediately find out the problems exist in the hiring process of the operating location and take improvement measures within 90 working days.

OPERATING PRACTICE

B5. Policy on controlling environmental and social risk in supply chain

We attach importance to developing and maintaining long-term relationships with our suppliers, looking forward to forming long-term partnerships with them. We will take a fair and open principle on procurement of materials and services. We will only cooperate with the suppliers that share common moral values and standards with us, the Company also supports and encourages the suppliers to promote efficient use of resources and environmental protection and fulfill corporate social responsibility:

1. We advocate the principle of fair and open competition, and based on mutual trust, we develop and maintain long-term relationships with the suppliers and contractors;

- 2. We have strict ethical standards in procurement of materials and services to ensure the quality of the finished products and maintain the continued confidence of the clients, suppliers and general public on the Group;
- 3. We review our suppliers, assess them based on price, quality, suitability and demands, only those being rated as qualified are our approved suppliers, we only purchase from the approved suppliers;
- 4. We conduct follow-up assessment on the suppliers, and, if necessary, review them through a third party organization. When a supplier is found to be inconsistent with the Company's policy or contractual requirements, the Company will terminate future cooperation until the situation has been improved;
- 5. In an unprejudiced way, we choose appropriate, capable and responsible suppliers;
- 6. Support and encourage the suppliers to improve their environmental products and services, and their employees' benefits and protection;
- 7. The suppliers must comply with the relevant laws, regulations and contractual obligations; and
- 8. We shall adopt effective monitoring and management system to detect and prevent bribery, fraud or other misconducts in procurement and bidding processes.

B6. Policy on health, safety, advertising, labeling, privacy and remedies of the products and services

Health and safety of products and services

We are committed to providing the customers with high-quality products and services and settling customer complaints effectively, continuously improving service level and ensuring customer satisfaction.

- 1. Make sure that the products and services comply with related laws and guidelines;
- 2. Provide the customers with accurate product information and high-quality products, and develop recovery policy and after-sale service for related products;
- 3. If there is a problem with a product, we will take the initiative to explain the problem and find a mutually satisfactory solution for the customers; and
- 4. After handling a customer complaint, a document should be archived properly, and the relevant department shall review the complaint and develop measures to prevent the recurrence of similar complaints, so that the Company's service quality keeps improving.

Advertising, labeling and protection of customer information

Customer information will only be used for business purpose, not for other unrelated purposes. All employees should handle and use customer information with extreme caution, protect customer information, and comply with statutory requirements of the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance.



B7. Policy on preventing bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering

Ethics and integrity is the cornerstone of the Company's success, the Company adopts a Zero Tolerance approach to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering, in their daily work, the directors, management and staff must comply with related national and local government laws and regulations on prevention of bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering. All employees not only have responsibility to understand and comply with the above policies on prevention of bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering, but also have obligation to report violation to the fit and appropriate person. Any person, who contravenes the regulations, will be subject to disciplinary sanction. We will make every effort to protect the informer and received information. However, if an informer's intention is to harm others, they may be subject to disciplinary punishment.

1. Soliciting or accepting benefit

Any employee (including the directors, management and all full-time, part-time, hourly, temporary workers) cannot directly, indirectly, or in any form, solicit or accept any form of benefits or do anything that might be seen as bribe from a third party, including, but not limited to, money, gift, excessive entertainment and hospitality, subsidized travel and accommodation, loan, pledging as guarantor, extending preferential credit terms, fee, reward, position, employment, contract, service, privilege, exemption of all or part of the responsibilities that ought to be fulfilled. The employees should reject any direct or indirect interests and benefits relating to the Group's business, should such benefits being accepted, their objective attitude would hamper, or the interests of the Company would be harmed or invaded, or causing bias or misconduct.

In social events such as festivals, activities, entertainments and other daily routine, refusing to accept a modest gift may be considered impolite or lack of social grace, with that in mind, under the following principles, the employees may consider accepting benefits on a voluntary basis:

- a. Receiving related benefits will not affect performance and decision of the employee;
- b. The employee will not feel the need to reciprocate;
- c. The employee can openly discuss the benefits;
- d. Holiday or banquet gift, prize or souvenir, its value shall not more than HKD500.

For gift, prize or souvenir worth more than HKD500, the employee shall file a declaration form, if the employee has questions about admissibility of the related benefits, he or she could consult HR manager or general manager.

If the Company finds out any employee's inappropriate behavior of soliciting or accepting benefits, it will call the police and terminate labor relations with the employee.

2. Providing benefits

In any case, any employee shall not provide bribe or improper benefits to any person or organization in order to seek personal gain or group interests. If the Company finds out any employee has conducted bribery, it will call the police and terminate labor relations with the employee.

3. Extortion

Any person who seeks for benefit for his own or another person, or with intent to cause loss to another person, and makes any unwarranted demand by extortion, such conduct shall be considered as extortion. All employees shall not participate in, assist, cover up any kind of extortion, if the Company finds out any employee has conducted extortion, it will call the police and terminate labor relations with the employee.

4. Fraud

Any person, who uses any means of deception to benefit himself or another person, or with intent to cause loss to another person, such conduct shall be considered fraud, the common employee fraud includes embezzlement, wage fraud and stealing company assets. All employees shall not participate in, assist, cover up any fraud, if the Company finds out any employee has conducted fraud, it will call the police and terminate labor relations with the employee.

5. Money Laundering

Money laundering refers to an individual or institution attempts to conceal the source of illicit money, or makes such money look legitimate in any way. The Company will not tolerate any employee conduct, assist, and support any form of money laundering.

The Company should establish an anti money laundering team, general manager should be the team leader and responsible for organizing the anti money laundering team. The team's main responsibilities include organizing, implementing anti money laundering task, follow-up and investigating reported money laundering, arranging anti money laundering training, working with regulatory and judiciary authorities to investigate suspicious transactions of funds, as well as paying attention to requirements and updates in anti money laundering laws and regulations.

Anti money laundering procedures include identifying clients, keeping transaction record, reporting and follow-up investigating of suspicious transaction, and anti money laundering training.



a. Identifying clients

In the development of clients, sales people must establish a high degree of awareness of anti money laundering, through communication with prospective clients to comprehensively grasp the clients' basic information, running the first check on the clients. After successful client acquisition, regular contact is required to grasp the clients' updates. If an abnormal situation occurs, the sales person needs to timely communicate with the relevant departments.

b. Keeping transaction record

Sales people and accounting personnel should keep customer identification information, including registering customer identification and related information, all sorts of records and information reflecting payment authority's customer identification process, and keep transaction records such as each transaction's information, business voucher, ledger and documents reflecting real situation of each transaction and other relevant information to ensure that each transaction is traceable.

c. Reporting and follow-up investigating of suspicious transaction

Sales people and accounting staff, should they find out a suspicious transaction, they would need to report such transaction immediately to the corporate headquarter. The headquarter analyzes and investigates all suspicious transaction reported, if there are reasonable grounds to believe that the transaction or the customer has ties with money-laundering, terrorism and other criminal activities, the HKSAR Government JFIU should be notified.

d. Anti money laundering training

All employees should attend in anti money laundering training at least once a year, the training includes the danger of money laundering, anti money laundering regulations, the role of the employees in anti-money laundering, how to identify suspicious transactions, ways to report suspicious transaction, the consequences if one fails to comply with anti money laundering regulations.

COMMUNITY

B8. Policy on finding out the needs of the community, at which the Company operates, by means of community involvement, and ensuring that its business activities will take into account the interests of the community

For the Group's long-term development, community participation is important, we are committed to promoting development and construction activities of the community, at which we operate. We benefit the community through a variety of actions, such as investment, contributing money, time, products, services, influence, management knowledge and other resources.

We participate in community building through three main ways:

- 1. Organize, facilitate and support the staff to take part in volunteer services, such as regularly visiting people who need help, arranging outdoor activities for disadvantaged groups, holding Blood Donation Day.
- 2. By means of donation, we donate money, goods or services, directly supporting or funding projects of various social service agencies. In addition to donation itself, we also appeal to the Company's stakeholders (including the employees and customers) to donate to charity organization.
- 3. We endeavor to provide employment opportunities for the disadvantaged and create a win-win situation. The Company is willing to hire the people or disabled people who have completed retraining courses, and give priority to purchasing from the suppliers who hired the said people, or participate in a variety of mentorship programs.



KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The Group mainly engages in computer network and internet security integration, application software development, building intelligent system integration and IT products sales agency. Hence, the emission relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into the water and land, as well as generation of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are minimal in 2023. This also means that there is no direct emission of gaseous fuel consumption and other pollutants regulated under the national laws and regulations, discharging pollution through water and land by the principal activities of the Group. There is also no disposal of products and packaging materials by the principal activities of the Group.

AIR POLLUTANTS

Fuel consumption by motor vehicles are the major source of nitrogen oxides ("NOx"), sulphur oxides ("SOx") and particulate matter ("PM") emissions. Relevant data for the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 were as follows:

	Year ended	Year ended
	31 December 2022	31 December 2023
NOx	19,697.26 (g)	25,052.40 (g)
SOx	3,441.58 (g)	4,391.91 (g)
PM	1,833.98 (g)	2,332.52 (g)

GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS

Greenhouse gas comes from all sorts of daily activities, such as the use of electricity, water and gas as well as the combustion of fuels in motor vehicles. Total greenhouse gas emissions include carbon dioxide ("CO₂") and other greenhouse gases, such as methane ("CH₄") and nitrous oxide ("N₂O"). The Group strives to reduce burning and improve energy and resource use efficiency in its daily operation so as to manage its greenhouse gas emissions.

The combustion of fuels in motor vehicles cause the direct emission of greenhouse gasses. Relevant data for the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 were as follows:

	Year ended	Year ended
	31 December 2022	31 December 2023
CO ₂	3,441.58 (kg)	4,391.91 (kg)
CH ₄	72,273.08 (kg)	92,230.07 (kg)
N ₂ O	1,066,888.30 (kg)	1,361,491.57 (kg)

The electricity consumption of the Company which mainly comes from the daily operation of the office, which cause the indirect emission of greenhouse gas of CO₂. Indirect CO₂ emissions from electricity purchased from power companies was 147,984.93 kg for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: 128,321.92kg).

For water consumption, electricity used for sewage processing by sewage processing companies cause the indirect emission of greenhouse gas of CO₂. 1,439.61 kg CO₂ have been emitted for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: 1,243.86kg).

HAZARDOUS WASTE PRODUCTION

According to the National Catalogue of Hazardous Wastes (《國家危險廢物名錄》) which was formulated in accordance with Law of the People's Republic of China on Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes (《中華人民共和國固體廢物污染環境防治法》) by the Ministry of Environmental Protection the People's Republic of China (中華人民共和國環境保護部), printing inks are classed as hazardous waste.

The disposal of printing inks produced by the Company contributed to the total amount of hazardous waste of the Company. Relevant data for the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 were as follows:

Year ended	Year ended
31 December 2022	31 December 2023
0.013 (tonnes)	0.013 (tonnes)
0.0013	0.0013
	31 December 2022 0.013 (tonnes)

NON-HAZARDOUS WASTE PRODUCTION

Daily commercial wastes constitute the production of non-hazardous waste of the Company. Relevant data for the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 were as follows:

	Year ended	Year ended
	31 December 2022	31 December 2023
Domestic waste	8.36 (tonnes)	8.36 (tonnes)
Intensity of non-hazardous waste	4.18	4.18

The Group is wholly committed to the policies relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste as set out in this ESG report in the annual report in order to mitigate such pollution.

ENERGY CONSUMPTION

The daily energy consumption of the Group mainly comes from purchased electricity. For the year ended 31 December 2023, the intensity of energy consumption was 60,205.43 (2022: 52,205.83).



WATER CONSUMPTION

The total water consumption of the Group mainly consists of domestic sewage. For the year ended 31 December 2023, the intensity of water consumption was 585.69 with the stable water supply under the regulation by Shanghai Water Authority of Shanghai Municipal Oceanic Bureau (上海市水務局) (2022: 506.05).

The Group is wholly committed to the policies on the efficient use of resources as set out in this ESG report in the annual report in order to reduce the consumption of energy and water.

The daily operation of the Group does not have material impact on the environment and natural resources. The Group will continue to be wholly committed to the policies on minimising its significant impact on the environment and natural resources as set out in this ESG report in the annual report in order to safeguard the environment and natural resources.

Total employees

The Group had a total number of 81 full-time employees and 1 school staff as at 31 December 2023, all employees were located in China. During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group adjusted the number of employees that was suitable for its business needs.

Set forth below is the Group's employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region:

Category	For the year ended 31 December 2022	For the year ended 31 December 2023
By gender		
Male	20%	67.5 %
Female	10%	32.5%
By age group		
30 or below	32%	40%
31-40	50%	35%
41-50	18%	20%
51 or above	0%	5%
By geographical region		
China	100%	100%

Set forth below are the distribution of the Group's employees as at 31 December 2023 by gender and age group:

Number of	
employees	Percentage
52	64.2%
29	35.8%
13	16%
31	38%
27	33%
10	13%
	employees 52 29 13 31 27

Development and training

The Group provides comprehensive training and development opportunities to its employees on a regular basis. The trainings are arranged according to needs of employees, which were identified annually by individual departments:

- a. Orientation training To familiarise employees with the Group's objectives, culture, rules and regulations, safety and product-related knowledge on the first day of work;
- b. Pre-job training To familiarise new employees or transferred employees with their new duties;
- c. On-the-job training To ensure that the employees are familiar with the Group's products, to sharpen the sales technique and customer service standard of sales and marketing personnel and to ensure the production and quality control personnel perform proper quality control procedures.



Set forth below is the number and percentage of training hours completed by the Group's employees by gender and employee category:

	For the	ne year ended 31	December 2023	
				% of training
	Male	Female	Total	hours by
	Training	Training	Training	employee category
Employee category	hours	hours	hours	
Senior management	81	28	109	11.3%
Middle management	251	86	337	35.2%
Other employees	343	170	513	53.5%
Total	675	284	959	100%
% of training hours by gender	70.4%	29.6 %	100%	

% of training hours by gender 70.4%

29.6%

	For the year ended 31 December 2022			
				% of training
	Male	Female	Total	hours by
	Training	Training	Training	employee
Employee category	hours	hours	hours	category
Senior management	78	26	104	10.7%
Middle management	248	80	328	33.7%
Other employees	378	162	540	55.6%
Total	704	268	972	100%
	750/	05%	1000/	
% of training hours by gender	75%	25%	100%	

Supply chain management

The Group purchases raw materials and equipment based on its own needs, specifications, quality and safety performance of equipment, reputation, after-sales service and delivery time of the supplier. The Group compares different suppliers to select qualified suppliers (based on their product specifications, product compliances, production management, quality management, environmental friendliness and also corporate social responsibility performances) before the Group enters into contract with the qualified suppliers.

When selecting equipment, the Group would also consider whether the equipment is energy efficient and environmental friendly. During the year ended 31 December 2023, all of the Group's 143 suppliers were situated in the PRC.

The Group expects its suppliers to uphold the ESG principles that the Group has adopted into the management of its business operations. In order to ensure that the components and raw materials meet the requisite safety and quality standards, the Group adopts stringent criteria in supplier selection (including but not limited to whether they provide high quality raw materials, whether they maintain a high standard on environmental protection and comply with relevant laws on environmental issues, whether price is comparable to market rate and location of their factories) and continuously monitors existing suppliers on an annual basis, based on criteria such as product quality, product defect ratio, delivery punctuality ratio and responsiveness.

Whether the supplier will continue to be included in the Group's list of approved suppliers depends on the marks it achieved under annual evaluation. The awareness of environmental protection is one of the key criteria for the Group to evaluate the suppliers.

Product assurance and recall

Product quality is crucial to the Group's continued success. The Group places strong emphasis on achieving a consistently high quality for its products. To achieve such purpose, stringent quality control measures throughout the production process were implemented to ensure the quality and safety of our products. The Group's quality control department performs regular inspections to evaluate the effectiveness of the quality control measures and further enhance these measures when necessary.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group did not experience any product recall, material non-compliance with laws and regulations in relation to product health and safety or receive any material complaints from consumers.



Intellectual Property Rights and Information Security

The Group registered various trademarks for the Group itself and its products in the PRC to foster its corporate image. The Group relies on the relevant laws and regulations to protect its brand names, trademarks and other intellectual property rights.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group was not aware of any material infringement by the Group of any intellectual property rights owned by any third parties. Further, there were no pending or threatened material claims made against the Group with respect to the infringement of intellectual property rights owned by the Group.

Anti-corruption

According to the Group's anti-corruption policy, all employees shall abide by the laws and regulations of the PRC and shall not engage in any illegal activities. Employees shall uphold the code of ethics, advocate fair competition and act against bribery. Any bribery, fraud, money laundering and embezzlement are prohibited.

Employees must not accept or request any improper benefits including banquets, gifts, securities, valuables and high-expenditure entertainment activities from business partners, suppliers and merchants, etc. When there is any alleged case in violation of laws, regulations, code of conduct or Group's policies, the Group will investigate and impose disciplinary actions upon offenders after verification. Directors and employees received training from time to time to ensure that they comply and familiar with the anti- corruption guides, policies and procedures of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group complied with all applicable laws on prohibiting corruption and bribery of the PRC and there was no concluded legal case regarding corrupt practices brought against the Group or its employees.

The Board of Directors is pleased to present the annual report and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Principal Activities

The Group is principally engaged in the development and provision of business application solutions. The Company operates through two segments. Business Application Project and Application Software segment is engaged in the development and provision of business application project services, including business solutions, application software, installation and maintenance services and data security products. It focuses on medical care sector, intelligent elderly care sector, intelligent surveillance sector, e-politics sector and e-commerce sector, among others.

Business Review

The business review of the Group for the year is set out in the sections of Chairman's Statement, Management Discussion and Analysis, Environmental, Social and Governance Report, Five-year Financial Summary and the paragraphs below.

The Group complies with the requirements under the Companies Ordinance, the GEM Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the "SFO") for the disclosure of information and corporate governance. The Group also complies with the requirements of Employment Ordinance and ordinances relating to occupational safety for the interest of employees of the Group. No important event affecting the Group has occurred since the end of the financial year under review.

Key Risk Factors

The following lists out the key risks and uncertainties facing the Group.

Impact of Local and International Regulations

The business operation of the Group is also subject to government policy, relevant regulations and guidelines established by the regulatory authorities. Failure to comply with the rules and requirements may lead to penalties, amendments or suspension of the business operation by the authorities. The Group closely monitors changes in government policies, regulations and markets as well as conducting studies to assess the impact of such changes.

Third-Party Risks

The Group has been relying on third-party service providers in parts of business to improve performance and efficiency of the Group. While gaining the benefits from external service providers, the management realizes that such operational dependency may pose a threat of vulnerability to unexpected poor or lapses in service including reputation damage, business disruption and monetary losses. To address such uncertainties, the Group engages only reputed third-party providers and closely monitors their performance.



Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and Suppliers

The Group recognizes the accomplishment of the employees by providing comprehensive benefit package, career development opportunities and internal training appropriate to individual needs. The Group provides a healthy and safe workplace for all employees. No strikes and cases of fatality due to workplace accidents are found in the year.

The Group encompasses working relationships with suppliers to meet our customers' needs in an effective and efficient manner. The departments work closely to make sure the tendering and procurement process is conducted in an open, fair and just manner. The Group's requirements and standards are also wellcommunicated to suppliers before the commencement of a project.

The Group values the views and opinions of all customers through various means and channels, including usage of business intelligence to understand customer trends and needs and regular analysis on customer feedback. The Group also conducts comprehensive tests and checks to ensure that only quality products and services are offered to the customers.

Most businesses related with software development of the Group mainly involve labor cost and do not involve any long-term supplier. The business relationship between our major suppliers and the Group lasts for about one year on an average basis and they mainly locate in Eastern China. Suppliers are mainly determined based on the actual conditions of projects. In order to regulate prices, the purchase of necessary consumables shall be conducted through network platforms such as JD.COM. The payment term granted by offline suppliers is generally 30-90 days or depends on actual conditions, and payables usually shall be settled by wire transfer within the payment term. Details of the trade payables of the Group as at 31 December 2023 are set out in Note 5.14 to the financial statements.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not have any significant dispute with our major suppliers.

Our major customers include public security bureaus, state-owned enterprises and institutions and courts, such as Shanghai Municipal Big Data Centre, Shanghai DS Communication Devices Co., Ltd., Xuhui Branch of Shanghai Municipal Public Security Bureau, Shanghai Construction No. 7 (Group) Co., Ltd., China UnionPay Merchant Services Co., Ltd., Minsheng Life Insurance Company Ltd., Zhejiang SWIN Culture and Creativity Co., Ltd., Fengxian Branch of Shanghai Municipal Public Security Bureau, Shanghai Electric Power and Communication Co., Ltd. and Wuning County People's Court of Jiujiang Municipality. The terms of business relationship with the Group range from 3 to 10 years and the credit terms granted to major customers shall be within 6 months. Depending on different projects, advances also can be paid before the construction commences. Details of the trade receivables of the Group as at 31 December 2023 are set out in Note 5.2 to the financial statements.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has not experienced any major disruption of business due to material delay or default of payment by our customers due to their financial difficulties. We did not have any material dispute with our customers.

The Group is aware that receivables are potential risks. In order to cope with this uncertainty, the Group mainly adopts the policy of prepayments and hardly participates in advances of projects. Construction process control shall be adjusted based on the payments of contract amounts of customers.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year under review, the Group's sales to the five largest customers accounted for 34.98% of the Group's turnover for the year, of which the largest customer accounted for 16.59% of the Group's turnover for the year.

Purchases from major suppliers accounted for the following percentages:

The largest supplier:	10.43%
Total percentage of the five largest suppliers:	31.19%

Save as disclosed above, as far as the Directors are aware, neither the Directors or their close associates nor any shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company's issued capital) and management shareholders had any material interest in the five largest customers and five largest suppliers.

Results

The Group's results and financial position for the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in the annual report on pages 65 to 194.

Dividends

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividends in respect of the year ended 31 December 2023.

Financial Summary

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for each of the five years ended 31 December 2023 is set out on pages 195 to 196 of the annual report.

Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in the plant and equipment of the Group during the year are set out in note 5.9 to the notes to the financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in note 5.22 to the notes to the financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Details of the equity-linked agreement entered into during the financial year or subsisting at the end of the year are set out below:

Share Option Scheme

The Company conditionally adopted a share option scheme (the "Share Option Scheme") by a resolution of all shareholders of the Company on 7 July 2002. The Share Option Scheme is to enable the Group to grant options to selected participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution to the Group.

The maximum total number of H shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group must not in aggregate exceed 30 percent of the H shares in issue from time to time. The total number of H shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group must not in aggregate exceed 13,200,000 H shares, being 10 percent of issued H shares. The total number of H shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon exercise of the options granted or to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group to each grantee in any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed one percent of the H shares in issue for the time being (the "Individual Limit"). Any further grant of options in excess of the Individual Limit in any 12-month period up to and including the date of such further grant shall be subject to the issue of a circular to the shareholders and the shareholders' approval in general meeting of the Company with such grantee and his associates abstaining from voting.

An option may be accepted by a participant within 21 days from the date of grant of the option. No eligible participants who are PRC nationals and have taken up any options to subscribe for H shares shall be entitled to exercise any such options until the current restrictions imposed by the relevant PRC laws and regulations restricting PRC nationals from subscribing for and dealing in H shares or any laws or regulations with similar effects (the "H Shares Restrictions") have been abolished or removed. Options may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period to be determined and notified by the Directors to each grantee, which period may commence on a day after the date upon which the offer for the grant of options is made but shall end in any event not later than 10 years from the date of grant of the option Scheme shall be a price determined by the Directors, but shall not be less than the highest of (aa) the closing price of the H shares on GEM as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations on the date of the offer of grant, which must be a business day; (bb) the average closing price of the H shares on GEM as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily preceding the date of the offer of grant; and (cc) the nominal value of the H shares.

The Share Option Scheme of the Company has become invalid on 6 July 2012. As at the date of this report, there are no outstanding share options and no shares are available for issue under the Share Option Scheme.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during the year are set out on pages 147 to 148 and in notes 5.23 to 5.26 to the notes to the financial statements.

Reserves and Distributable Reserves

Reserves Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during the year are set out on pages 147 to 148 and in notes 5.23 to 5.26 to the notes to the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2023, the distributable reserve of the Company in deficit were RMB108,315,932.08 (2022: the distributable reserve of the Company in deficit were RMB101,326,921.14). Details of distributable reserves of the Company during the year are set out in notes 5.26 to the notes to the financial statements.

Retirement Benefits

The employees of the Group are required to participate in a central pension scheme (the "Defined Contribution Schemes") operated by the local municipal government, to which the Group is required to contribute a certain percentage, which was pre-determined by the local municipal government, of the sum of basic salary and allowance of employees to the Defined Contribution Schemes. The contributions by the Group for the Defined Contribution Schemes are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the relevant rules of the respective schemes.

The Group's contributions to the Defined Contribution Schemes vest fully and immediately with the employees. Accordingly, (i) for each of the two years ended 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2023, there was no forfeiture of contributions under the Defined Contribution Schemes; and (ii) there were no forfeited contributions available for the Group to reduce its existing level of contributions to the Defined Contribution Schemes as at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2023.

For each of the two years ended 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any defined benefit plan.

Details of the retirement benefit scheme of the Group are set out in note 5.16 to the notes to the financial statements.



DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The directors and supervisors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Xiaobo Mr. Shuai Ge Ms. Cao Zhen Mr. Hu Lunjie Ms. Gu Xiaomin Mr. Sun Jingchen Mr. Chang Jiang Mr. Shang Ling Mr. Chen Guoliang *(Chairman)* (Appointed on 4 September 2023) *(Vice Chairman)* (Appointed on 4 September 2023)

(Appointed on 20 June 2023) (Resigned on 4 September 2023) (Resigned on 30 June 2023) (Resigned on 20 June 2023)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yuan Shumin Mr. Liu Feng Mr. Zhou Guolai

Supervisors

Mr. Rong Yinsheng Ms. Sun Guofang Mr. Yang Binghuai Mr. Yang Qing Ms. Sun Yunyun (Appointed on 4 September 2023) Ms. Pan Li (Resigned on 4 September 2023)

According to the provisions of the Articles of Association, the terms of service of all the Directors and the Supervisors are three years. All Directors and the Supervisors (except the representative of the employees) are subject to re-election at a general meeting upon the expiration of their terms of service.

Directors' and Supervisors' Service Contracts

The Company did not enter into any service contract with each of the executive Directors, independent nonexecutive Directors and Supervisors.

None of the Directors or supervisors of the Company has or is proposed to have a service contract with the Company (other than contracts expiring or determinable by any member of the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation).

Indemnity of Directors

The Company has maintained appropriate directors and officers liability insurance and such permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors is currently in force and was in force throughout the year.

Directors', Supervisors' and Senior Executives' Emoluments

Details of the Directors', Supervisors' and senior executives' emoluments and the highest paid individuals are set out in note 12.4 to the financial statements.

Directors', Supervisors' and Chief Executives' Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures

As at 31 December 2023, none of the Directors, Supervisors or chief executives of the Company had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the required standard of dealings by directors of listed issuers as referred to in Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Arrangement for Directors, Supervisors' and Chief Executives to Purchases Shares or Debentures

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any Director, supervisors' and chief executives of the Company or their respective spouses or minor children, or were such rights exercised by them, or was the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors, supervisors' and chief executives of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including debentures) of the Company or any other body corporate.



Substantial Shareholders' and Other Persons' Interests and Short Position in Shares and Underlying Shares in the Company

A. Substantial shareholders

As at 31 December 2023, the following shareholders (other than the Directors and the Supervisors (as if the requirements applicable to the Directors under the SFO had applied to the Supervisors) of the Company) had an interest or a short position in the shares and underlying shares in the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO and were directly or indirectly interested in 10 percent or more of the Shares:

Name of shareholders	Capacity and nature	Number and class of shares (Note 1)	Approximate percentage of interest
State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of Shangh	Interest of a controlled corporation ai (Note 2)	114,000,000 domestic shares (L)	23.75%
Shanghai Jiaoda Industrial Investment Management (Group) Limited	Beneficial owner	114,000,000 domestic shares (L)	23.75%
Shanghai Xin Xuhui (Group) Company Limited	Beneficial owner	60,000,000 domestic shares (L)	12.50%
Xuhui District Industrial Association	Interest of a controlled corporation (Note 3)	60,000,000 domestic shares (L)	12.50%
Shanghai Huixin Investment Operation Company Limited	Beneficial owner	57,000,000 domestic shares (L)	11.88%
Shanghai Technology Venture Capital Management Company Limited	Beneficial owner	57,000,000 domestic shares (L)	11.88%

Notes:

1. The letter "L" represents the entity's interest in the shares of the Company.

- 2. These 114,000,000 domestic shares are registered and owned by Shanghai Jiaoda Industrial Investment Management (Group) Limited ("Jiaoda Industrial") (Shanghai Jiaoda Science and Technology Park Limited transferred these domestic shares to Jiaoda Industrial at the end of June 2020). 90% of registered capital of Jiaoda Industrial is owned by the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of Shanghai. State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of Shanghai. State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration to be interested in the aggregate of 114,000,000 domestic shares held by Jiaoda Industrial under the SFO.
- 3. These 60,000,000 domestic shares are registered and owned by Shanghai Xin Xuhui (Group) Company Limited, the registered capital of which will be owned as to approximately 88.57% by Xuhui District Industrial Association after the completion of certain capital reorganisation as referred to in the Prospectus. Xuhui District Industrial Association is deemed to be interested in the 60,000,000 domestic shares held by Shanghai Xin Xuhui (Group) Company Limited under the SFO.

B. Other persons who are required to disclose their interests pursuant to Division 2 and 3 of Part *XV* of the SFO

As at 31 December 2023, save for the persons/entities disclosed in sub-section A above, the following persons/entities had an interest or a short position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO:

		Approximat		
		Number and	percentage of	
Name of shareholders	Capacity and nature	class of shares	interest	
		(Note)		
Chen Jianbo	Beneficial owner	24,300,000	5.06%	
		domestic shares (L)		

Note: The letter "L" represents the entity's interest in the shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, the Directors are not aware of any other person (other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company) who has interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provision of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

Board Practices and Procedures

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company was in compliance with the Board Practices and Procedures as set out in Rule 5.34 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Directors' and Supervisors' Interests in Transactions, Arrangements or Contracts

Save as disclosed in the annual report, no transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which the Company, or any of its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director, a supervisor and any of their connected entity had a material interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company or its subsidiaries were entered into or existed during the year.

Closure of Register of Members

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 21 May 2024 to 20 June 2024 (both days inclusive), during which no transfer of shares will be effected. The holders of shares whose name appears on the register of members of the Company on 20 June 2023 will be entitled to attend and vote at the annual general meeting. In order to qualify for attending and voting at the above meeting, instruments of transfer accompanied by share certificates and other appropriate documents must be lodged with the Company's H share registrar, Union Registrars Limited at Suites 3301-04, 33/F., Two Chinachem Exchange Square, 338 King's Road, North Point, Hong Kong, not later than 4:00 p.m. on 20 May 2024.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any listed securities of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2023.

Competing Interests

None of the Directors or the management shareholders of the Company (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had any interest in a business which competes or may compete with the business of the Company.

Pre-Emptive Rights

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company and the laws of the PRC, the Company is not subject to any pre-emptive rights requiring it to propose new issues to its existing shareholders in proportion to their shareholdings.

Public Float

As far as the information publicly available to the Company is concerned and to the best knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company's issued share capital were held by the public as at the date of the annual report.

Audit Committee

The Company established an Audit Committee on 7 July 2002 with written terms of reference. The Audit Committee comprises the three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yuan Shumin, Mr. Liu Feng and Mr. Zhou Guolai.

The Company's consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee, who gave advice on such statements to the Board. The financial reporting system, risk management and internal control systems of the Company have also been reviewed by the Audit Committee, who were of the opinion that no further improvement was required for the time being. During the year, the Audit Committee has held four formal meetings.

Auditor

ShineWing Certified Public Accountants (Special General Partnership) will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and, being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of ShineWing Certified Public Accountants (Special General Partnership) as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Zhang Xiaobo

Chairman

Shanghai, the PRC, 21 March 2024



To shareholders of Shanghai Jiaoda Withub Information Industrial Company Limited:

I. AUDITORS' OPINIONS

We have audited the financial statements of Shanghai Jiaoda Withub Information Industrial Co., Ltd. (hereinafter as the "Company"), which comprise the consolidated and the Company's balance sheets as at 31 December 2023, the consolidated and the Company's income statements, cash flow statements and statements of changes in shareholders' equity for 2023 and the related notes to these financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated and the Company's financial position as at 31 December 2023, the consolidated and the Company's results of operations and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises.

II. BASIS OF OPINIONS

We conducted our audit in accordance with China Standards on Auditing for Chinese Certified Public Accountants. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the "Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements" section of our report. We are independent of the Company's in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Chinese Certified Public Accountants, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities of the code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit.

III. KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole and, in forming our audit opinion thereon, we do not express a separate opinion on these matters.



(I) Revenue

1. Details

As at 31 December 2023 the realized operating income of the Company amounted to RMB42,661,494.19 in which income of Commerial application program and software was RMB21,637,580.91 (50.72%), income of Installation and maintenance of network and data security products was RMB 18,095,587.17 (42.42%). According to the Revenue Recognition Principles of the Company (See Financial Statement Notes 3.20), the Company recognizes the type of revenue based upon the percentage of contract completion.

We regard the revenue recognition upon the percentage of contract completion as one of the key audit matters, since those type of revenue is one of the company's key performance indicators, and the management accounting judgments involved in this are all recorded in the wrong accounting period or being manipulated creates an inherent risk.

2. Application for auditing

- (1) We assessed the design and execution of the internal control of the Company relating to the revenue recognition.
- (2) We assessed the management of Jiaoda Withub Information Industrial Company Limited regarding the identification of performance obligations and the determination of compliance schedules in a certain period of time;
- (3) According to the judgment of the management of Withub Information Industrial Company Limited, we reviewed whether the judgment of conditions of the performance obligations in the contract and the method of determining the progress of the contract are compliance with the accounting standards;
- (4) Review the progress of the performance for the revenue confirmed in accordance with the progress of the performance, ① We assessed the project that accounts to more than 55% of the completed projects during the period. We checked the budgeted income against the actual income, compared the budgeted cost to actual cost. We obtained the contracts, payment records and documents for construction budgeting. We sent confirmation to confirm the transaction volume and the balance and progress of its intercourse fund. For those inter-annual projects, we checked the reasons of fluctuation of gross margin rate under two periods and its rationality. ② We assessed the project that accounts to more than 60% of the uncompleted projects during the period. We checked the budgeted income against the actual income, compared the budgeted cost to actual cost. We obtained the contracts, payment records and documents for construction budgeting. We assessed the project solution of gross margin rate under two periods and its rationality. ② We assessed the project that accounts to more than 60% of the uncompleted projects during the period. We checked the budgeted income against the actual income, compared the budgeted cost to actual cost. We obtained the contracts, payment records and documents for construction budgeting. We assessed the progress of performance data confirmed by both parties and verified the progress of contract completion.

IV. OTHER INFORMATION

The management of the Company (hereinafter referred to as "the Management") is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information covered in the Company's 2023 annual report, but it does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

V. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNING BODIES FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises to achieve fair presentation; and designing, implementing and maintaining internal control which is necessary to enable that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Management either intends to liquidate the Company's or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible to overseeing the company's financial reporting process.



VI. AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are generally considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

During the course of audit in accordance with auditing standards, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism. We also carry out the following works the following works:

- (1) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error; design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks; and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
- (2) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of its internal control.
- (3) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.
- (4) Conclude on the appropriateness of the management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Company to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors' report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors' report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

- (5) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
- (6) Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the Company to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance audit of the group. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings etc., including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with those relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and related safeguards, where applicable.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation prohibited public disclosure about the matter or when, in rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

ShineWing Certified Public Accountants LLP

CICPA: (Audit Partner) CICPA: 21 March 2024

Beijing, China



Consolidated Balance Sheet

As at 31 December 2023

Prepared by:Shanghai Jiaoda Withub Information Industrial Company Limited		Unit: RMB (Yuan)	
Item	Note	31 December 2023	31 December 2022
Current assets:			
Cash and bank balances		17,869,475.62	20,197,211.85
Settlement payment			
Lent funds			
Financial assets held for trading			
Derivative financial assets			
Notes receivable			
Accounts receivables		5,327,616.59	5,047,920.71
Receivables financing			
Prepayments		11,034.99	28,952.65
Insurance premiums receivables			
Reinsurance receivables			
Provision of reinsurance receivables			
Other receivables		968,477.76	927,873.17
Including: Interest receivable			
Dividends receivable			
Buying back the sale of financial assets		570 000 05	074 000 00
Inventories		570,088.25	671,862.63
Contract asset			
Holding for sale assets			
Non-current assets due within one year		00 000 000	
Other current assets Total current assets		80,000,000	
Non-current assets:		24,826,693.21	26,873,821.01
Loans and payments on behalf			
Debt investment			
Other debt investment			
Long-term receivables			
Long-term equity investment		7,636,572.57	11,911,238.82
Other long-term equity investment		1,000,012.01	11,011,200.02
Other non-current financial assets		4,377,803.44	4,362,563.80
Investment properties		1,011,000111	1,002,000.00
Fixed assets		48,415.82	69,075.29
Construction in progress			,
Biological assets for production			
Fuel assets			
Right-of-use assets		2,165,913.85	4,331,827.70
Intangible assets		-	
Development expenses			
Goodwill			
Long-term deferred expenses			
Deferred income tax assets		343,900.56	662,085.36
Other non-current assets			
Total non-current assets		14,572,606.24	21,336,790.97
		39,399,299.45	48,210,611.98

Legal Representative: Chief Financial Officer: Head of Financial Department:

Consolidated Balance Sheet

As at 31 December 2023

Item No Current liabilities: Short-term loans Borrowings from the Central Bank Deposits from customers and interbanks Transactional monetary liabilities Derivative financial liabilities Derivative financial liabilities Notes payable Accounts payables Unearned revenue Contract liability Financial assets sold for repurchase deposits from customers and interbank Funds received as agent of stock exchange Funds received as stock underwrite Payroll payable	31 December ote 2023 10,954,005.19 2,845,187.24	31 December 2022 9,197,180.73
Short-term loans Borrowings from the Central Bank Deposits from customers and interbanks Transactional monetary liabilities Derivative financial liabilities Notes payable Accounts payables Unearned revenue Contract liability Financial assets sold for repurchase deposits from customers and interbank Funds received as agent of stock exchange Funds received as stock underwrite		
Short-term loans Borrowings from the Central Bank Deposits from customers and interbanks Transactional monetary liabilities Derivative financial liabilities Notes payable Accounts payables Jnearned revenue Contract liability Financial assets sold for repurchase deposits from customers and interbank Funds received as agent of stock exchange Funds received as stock underwrite		
Borrowings from the Central Bank Deposits from customers and interbanks Fransactional monetary liabilities Derivative financial liabilities Notes payable Accounts payables Unearned revenue Contract liability Financial assets sold for repurchase deposits from customers and interbank Funds received as agent of stock exchange Funds received as stock underwrite		
Deposits from customers and interbanks Transactional monetary liabilities Derivative financial liabilities Notes payable Accounts payables Jnearned revenue Contract liability Financial assets sold for repurchase deposits from customers and interbank Funds received as agent of stock exchange Funds received as stock underwrite		
Transactional monetary liabilities Derivative financial liabilities Notes payable Accounts payables Unearned revenue Contract liability Financial assets sold for repurchase deposits from customers and interbank Funds received as agent of stock exchange Funds received as stock underwrite		
Notes payable Accounts payables Unearned revenue Contract liability Financial assets sold for repurchase deposits from customers and interbank Funds received as agent of stock exchange Funds received as stock underwrite		
Accounts payables Unearned revenue Contract liability Financial assets sold for repurchase deposits from customers and interbank Funds received as agent of stock exchange Funds received as stock underwrite		
Unearned revenue Contract liability Financial assets sold for repurchase deposits from customers and interbank Funds received as agent of stock exchange Funds received as stock underwrite		
Contract liability Financial assets sold for repurchase deposits from customers and interbank Funds received as agent of stock exchange Funds received as stock underwrite	2,845,187.24	
Financial assets sold for repurchase leposits from customers and interbank Funds received as agent of stock exchange Funds received as stock underwrite	2,845,187.24	
leposits from customers and interbank Funds received as agent of stock exchange Funds received as stock underwrite		1,905,211.99
Funds received as agent of stock exchange Funds received as stock underwrite		
Funds received as stock underwrite		
	1,609,327.46	2,124,742.93
Faxes payable	431,748.97	173,183.93
Other payables	2,167,622.78	4,097,443.64
ncluding: Interest payable	2,101,022110	1,001,110.01
Dividends payable		
Handling charges and commissions payable		
Reinsurance payable		
Holding for sale liabilities		
Non-current liabilities due within one year	2,292,670.37	2,188,246.21
Other current liabilities	5,943.40	
Fotal current liabilities	20,306,505.41	19,686,009.43
Non-current liabilities:		
Deposit for reinsurance		
Long-term loans Bonds payable		
ncluding: Premium		
Perpetual		
_ease liabilities	_	2,225,656.16
_ong-term payable		2,220,000.10
_ong-term payroll payable		
Estimated Liabilities		
Deferred income		
Deferred income tax liabilities	324,887.08	649,774.16
Other non-current liabilities		
Total non-current liabilities	324,887.08	2,875,430.32
Fotal liabilities	20,631,392.49	22,561,439.75
Shareholders' equity: Share capital	48,000,000.00	48,000,000.00
Other equity instruments	48,000,000.00	40,000,000.00
ncluding: Premium		
Perpetual		
Capital reserve	77,308,349.20	77,308,349.20
Less: treasury stock	,,.	,,.
Other comprehensive income	1,552,527.55	1,444,781.88
Special reserve		
Surplus reserve	222,962.29	222,962.29
General risk reserve		
Jndistributed profits	-108,315,932.08	-101,339,232.34
Total owners' equity attributable to the parent company	18,767,906.96	25,636,861.03
Minority interests		
Fotal shareholders' equity	18,767,906.96	25,636,861.03
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity	39,399,299.45	47,548,526.62

Legal Representative: Chief Financial Officer:

Balance Sheet of the Parent Company

As at 31 December 2023

Prepared by:Shanghai Jiaoda Withub Information I	ndustrial Company	Limited	Unit: RMB (Yuan)
Item	Note	31 December 2023	31 December 2022
Current assets:			
Cash and bank balances		17,576,695.74	19,522,781.25
Financial assets held for trading			-,-,
Derivative financial assets			
Notes receivable			
Accounts receivables		5,327,616.59	5,047,920.71
Receivables financing			
Prepayments		11,034.99	28,952.65
Other receivables		968,477.76	926,618.04
Including: Interest receivable			
Dividends receivable			
Inventories		570,088.25	671,862.63
Contract asset			
Holding for sale assets			
Non-current assets due within one year			
Other current assets		80,000.00	
Total current assets		24,533,913.33	26,198,135.28
Non-current assets:			
Debt investment			
Other debt investment			
Long-term receivables			
Long-term equity investment		7,636,572.57	11,911,238.82
Other long-term equity investment			
Other non-current financial assets		4,377,803.44	4,362,563.80
Investment properties			
Fixed assets		48,415.82	69,075.29
Construction in progress			
Biological assets for production			
Fuel assets			
Right-of-use assets		2,165,913.85	4,331,827.70
Intangible assets			
Development expenses			
Goodwill			
Long-term deferred expenses			
Deferred income tax assets		343,900.56	662,085.36
Other non-current assets			
Total non-current assets		14,572,606.24	21,336,790.97
Total assets		39,106,519.57	47,534,926.25

Legal Representative: Chief Financial Officer:

Balance Sheet of the Parent Company

As at 31 December 2023

Prepared by:Shanghai Jiaoda Withub Information Industrial Company Limited		Unit: RMB (Yua	
Item	Note	31 December 2023	31 December 2022
Current liabilities:			
Short-term loans			
Transactional moneytary liabilities			
Derivative financial liabilities			
Notes payable			
Accounts payables		10,954,005.19	9,092,824.41
Unearned revenue			
Contract liability		2,845,187.24	1,905,211.99
Payroll payable		1,609,327.46	2,015,698.35
Taxes payable		431,748.97	173,183.93
Other payables		2,167,622.78	3,892,317.39
Including: Interest payable			
Dividends payable			
Holding for sale liabilities			
Non-current liabilities due within one year		2,292,670.37	2,188,246.21
Other current liabilities		5,943.40	
Total current liabilities		20,306,505.41	19,267,482.28
Non-current liabilities:			
Long-term loans			
Bonds payable			
Including: Premium			
Perpetual			
Lease liabilities		-	2,225,656.16
Long-term payable			
Long-term payroll payable			
Estimated Liabilities			
Deferred income			
Deferred income tax liabilities		324,887.08	649,774.16
Other non-current liabilities			
Total non-current liabilities		324,887.08	2,875,430.32
Total liabilities		20,631,392.49	22,142,912.60
Shareholders' equity:			
Share capital		48,000,000.00	48,000,000.00
Other equity instruments			
ncluding: Premium			
Perpetual			
Capital reserve		77,308,349.20	77,308,349.20
Less: treasury stock			
Other comprehensive income			
Special reserve			
Surplus reserve		222,962.29	222,962.29
Undistributed profits		-107,056,184.41	-100,139,297.84
Total owners' equity attributable to the parent			
company Total liabilities and shareholders' equity		18,475,127.08 39,106,519.57	25,392,013.65 47,534,926.25

Legal Representative:

Chief Financial Officer:

Consolidated Income Statement

Prepared by:Shanghai Jiaoda Withub Information Industrial Company Limited			Unit: RMB (Yuan
Item	Note	2023	2022
I. Total operating income		42,661,494.19	36,002,830.52
Including: Operating income		42,661,494.19	36,002,830.52
Interest revenue			
Earned Premium			
Charges and commission income			
II. Total operating costs		52,448,730.17	53,547,140.54
Including: Operating cost		30,274,971.89	29,216,375.32
Interest expenses			
Bank charges and commission fee			
Surrender charge fee			
Net payments for insurance claims			
Net reserves from insurance contract			
Bond insurance expense			
Reinsurance costs			
Tax and surcharges		149,094.88	65,928.12
Selling expenses		4,708,455.61	4,072,712.54
Administrative expenses		12,420,776.61	14,728,678.06
Research and development expenses		4,827,757.25	5,312,197.56
Financial expenses		67,673.93	151,248.94
Including: Interest expenses		198,553.79	302,960.81
Interest revenue		134,350.35	150,041.94
Add: Other gain (losses are represented by "-")		125,393.89	2,337.00
Investment income (losses are represented by "-") Including: Income from investment in associates		1,528,587.11	-42,287.64
and joint ventures		947,316.97	-647,003.09
Income from derecognition of		947,310.97	-047,003.09
financial assets measured at			
amortized cost			
Exchange gain (losses are represented by "-")			
Net hedging return (losses are represented by "-")			
Profit and loss from fair value changes(losses are			
represented by "-")		15,239.64	-4,127.90
Loss of credit impairment		,	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
(losses are represented by "-")		735,056.20	-864,736.42
Loss on assets impairment			
(losses are represented by "-")		-	-3,509,375.52

(losses are represented by "-") Asset disposal gain (losses are represented by "-")	-	-3,509,375.52
III. Operating profit (losses are represented by "-")	-7,382,959.14	-21,962,500.50
Add: Non-operating income	392,017.14	124,245.29
Less: Non-operating expense	4,771.22	
IV. Total profit (losses are represented by "-")	-6,995,713.22	-21,838,255.21
Less: Income tax expenses	-6,702.28	-232,108.66
V. Net Profit (losses are represented by "-")	-6,989,010.94	-21,606,146.55
1. Classified by continuing operation	-6,989,010.94	-21,606,146.55
Net profit from continues operation (losses are		
represented by "-")	-6,989,010.94	-21,606,146.55
Not profit from discontinued operation (losses are		

Net profit from discontinued operation (losses are represented by "-")

Consolidated Income Statement

Prepared by:Shanghai Jiaoda Withub Information Industrial Company Limited		Unit: RMB (Yuan)
Item	Note 2023	2022
 Classified by ownership Net profit attribute to the equity holders of the 	-6,989,010.94	-21,606,146.55
parent company Minority interests	-6,989,010.94	-21,606,146.55
VI. Other comprehensive income, net of tax other comprehensive income, net of tax attribute to	107,745.67	114,221.58
 other comprehensive income, net of tax attribute to the equity holders of the parent company (1) Other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss 1. Changes in net liabilities or net assets arising from the re-measurement of defined benefit plans 2. Share of other comprehensive income (that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss) of investees accounted for using equity method 3. Gains or losses from changes in fair value of other equity investments 4. Gains or losses from changes in the fair value of the company's own credit 	107,745.67	114,221.58
 5. Others (2) Other comprehensive income that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss Shares of other comprehensive income of investees that may be reclassified to profit or loss under the equity method subsequently Gains or losses from changes in fair value of other debt investments The amount of financial assets reclassified into other comprehensive income Gains or losses from credit impairment of other debt investments Effective portion of cash flow adjusted for hedging gains or losses 	107,745.67	114,221.58
 Exchange differences from retranslation of financial statements Others 	107,745.67	114,221.58
Other comprehensive income attributable to minority shareholders,net of tax		
VII. Total comprehensive income Total comprehensive income attributable to the	-6,881,265.27	-21,491,924.97
shareholders of the parent company Total comprehensive income attributable to the minority shareholders	-6,881,265.27	-21,491,924.97
VIII. Earnings per share:(1) Basic earnings per share(2) Diluted earnings per share	-0.0146 -0.0146	-0.0450 -0.0450
Legal Representative: Chief Financial Of	fficer: Head of Fina	ncial Department:

Income Statement of the Parent Company

2023

Prepared by:Shanghai Jiaoda Withub Information Industrial Company Limited

Unit: RMB (Yuan)

Ite	em	Note 2023	2022
I.	Operating income	42,661,494.19	36,002,830.52
	Less: Operating cost	30,274,971.89	29,216,375.32
	Taxes and surcharges	149,094.88	65,928.12
	Selling expenses	4,708,455.61	4,072,712.54
	Administrative expenses	12,420,776.61	14,698,551.73
	Research and development expenses	4,827,757.25	5,312,197.56
	Financial expenses	66,169.60	155,547.89
	Including: Interest expenses	198,553.79	302,960.81
	Interest revenue	134,350.35	149,635.05
	Add: Other gain	125,393.89	2,337.00
	Investment income (losses are represented	,	
	by "-")	1,111,315.09	-42,287.64
	Including: Income from investment in		
	associates and joint ventures		
	Exchange gain	947,316.97	-647,003.09
	Income from derecognition of		
	financial assets measured at		
	amortized cost		
	Net hedging return (losses are represented		
	by "-")		
	Profit and loss from fair value changes(losses		
	are represented by "-")	15,239.64	-4,127.90
	Loss of credit impairment(losses are		
	represented by "-")	1,222,948.26	29,126.74
	Loss on assets impairment(losses are		
	represented by "-")	-	-3,509,375.52
	Asset disposal gain(losses are represented		
	by "-")		
-11.	Operating profit (losses are represented by "-")	-7,310,834.77	-21,042,809.96
	Add: Non-operating income	392,017.14	124,245.29
	Less: Non-operating expenses	4,771.22	
Ш	. Total profit (losses are represented by "-")	-6,923,588.85	-20,918,564.67
Le	ss: Income tax expenses	-6,702.28	-232,108.66
IV	Net Profit (losses are represented by "-")	-6,916,886.57	-20,686,456.01
	1. Net profit from continues operation (losses are		
	represented by "-")	-6,916,886.57	-20,686,456.01
	2. Net profit from discontinued operation (losses are		
	represented by "-")		

Income Statement of the Parent Company

tem	Ν	lote	2023	2022
/. Other comprehensive inco			-	-
(1) Other comprehensive inc				
reclassified subsequently			-	-
1. Changes in net liabiliti				
from the re-measurem	nent of defined benefit			
plans				
	ehensive income (that will			
	osequently to profit or			
	ounted for using equity			
method	- the second state of the second second			
3. Gains or losses from				
other equity investme				
4. Gains or losses from				
of the company's owr	Credit			
5. Others	naiva inaama (that will			
(2) Share of other comprehe				
not be reclassified subse of investees accounted for				
1. Shares of other comp			-	_
	reclassified to profit or			
loss under the equity				
2. Gains or losses from				
other debt investment	-			
3. The amount of financi				
other comprehensive				
	credit impairment of other			
debt investments				
5. Effective portion of cas	sh flow adjusted for			
hedging gains or loss				
6. Exchange differences				
financial statements				
7. Others				
/I. Total comprehensive inco	me		-6,916,886.57	-20,686,456.01
/II. Earnings per share:			.,	-,,
(1) Basic earnings per sha	re			
(2) Diluted earnings per sh				
_egal Representative:	Chief Financial Office	r:	Head of Finan	cial Department:

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

repared by:Shanghai Jiaoda Withub Information Industrial Company Limited		Unit: RMB (Yuai	
em	Note	2023	2022
Cash flows from operating activities			
Cash received from sales of goods and rendering of services		51,952,843.30	38,079,908.15
Net increase in customer deposit and inter-bank deposit			
Net increase in borrowings from central bank			
Net increase in loans from other financial institutions			
Cash received from insurance contract premium			
Net cash receive form reinsurance business			
Net increase in insurance deposit and investment funds			
Cash received of interest, charges and commission.			
Net increase in deposits from other banks			
Net increase in funds for repurchasing business			
Net income from buying and selling securities as			
broker			
Refund of taxes and surcharges			
Cash received relating to other operating activities		454,516.76	152,378.94
Sub-total of cash inflows from operating			
activities		52,407,360.06	38,232,287.09
Cash paid for goods and services		31,921,555.92	23,309,532.33
Net increase in customer loans and advances			
Net increase in savings in central bank and inter-bank			
Cash paid for insurance contract			
Net increasing from financial assets held for trading purpose			
Cash for lendings to banks and other financial institutions			
Cash paid for interest, charges and commission			
Cash paid for dividend of the insurance			
Cash paid to and on behalf of employees		21,718,292.02	22,388,463.96
Payments of tax charges		868,400.89	118,136.55
Cash paid relating to other operating activities		2,925,066.99	2,929,079.35
Sub-total of cash outflows from operating		•	
activities		57,433,315.82	48,745,212.19
Net cash flows from operating activities		-5,025,955.76	-10,512,925.10

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Prepared by:Shanghai Jiaoda Withub Information Industrial Company Limited			Unit: RMB (Yuar
tem	Note	2023	2022
. Cash flows from investing activities			
Cash received from disposal of investments		5,354,740.24	853,512.63
Cash received from returns on investments		31,241.10	248,649.32
Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets,			
intangible assets and other long-term assets			
Net cash received from disposal of subsidiaries and			
other operating entities			
Cash received relating to other investing activities		5,000,000.00	10,000,000.00
Sub-total of cash inflows from investing			
activities		10,385,981.34	11,102,161.95
Cash paid to acquire fixed assets, intangible assets			
and other long-term assets			28,409.59
Cash paid to acquire investments			
Net increase in mortgage loan			
Net cash paid to acquire subsidiaries and other			
operating entities			
Cash paid relating to other investing activities		5,000,000.00	
Sub-total of cash outflows from investing		E 000 000 00	00,400,50
activities		5,000,000.00	28,409.59
Net cash flows from investing activities		5,385,981.34	11,073,752.36
II. Cash flows from financing activities			
Cash received from capital contributions			
Including: cash received from subsidiaries absorbing minority shareholders' investments			
Cash received from borrowings			
Cash received from issuing of bonds			
Cash received from other financing activities			
Sub-total of cash inflows from financing			
activities		_	_
Cash repayments of borrowings			
Cash payments for distribution of dividends or profits			
and interest expenses			
Including: dividends and profits paid by subsidiaries			
to minority shareholders			
Cash paid to other financing activities		2,506,140.00	67,298.21
Sub-total of cash outflows from financing			
activities		2,506,140.00	67,298.21
Net cash flows from financing activities		-2,506,140.00	-67,298.21
V. Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash			
and cash equivalents		7,168.19	114,221.58
. Net increase in cash and cash equivalents		-2,138,946.23	607,750.63
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of			,
period		19,776,137.27	19,168,386.64
I. Cash and cash equivalent at end of period		17,637,191.04	19,776,137.27

Cash Flow Statement of the Parent Company

Prepared by:Shanghai Jiaoda Withub Information Industrial Company Limited		Dinformation Industrial Company Limited Unit: RMB (Yuar	
em	Note	2023	2022
. Cash flows from operating activities:			
Cash received from sales of goods and rendering of			
services		51,952,843.30	38,079,908.15
Refund of taxes and surcharges			
Cash received relating to other operating activities		454,516.76	151,972.05
Sub-total of cash inflows from operating			
activities		52,407,360.06	38,231,880.20
Cash paid for goods and services		31,921,555.92	23,314,197.40
Cash paid to and on behalf of employees		21,718,292.02	22,388,463.96
Payments of tax charges		868,400.89	118,136.55
Cash paid relating to other operating activities		2,536,248.08	2,034,443.18
Sub-total of cash outflows from operating			
activities		57,044,496.91	47,855,241.09
Net cash flows from operating activities		-4,637,136.85	-9,623,360.89
. Cash flows from investing activities			
Cash received from disposal of investments		5,354,740.24	853,512.63
Cash received from returns on investments		31,241.10	248,649.32
Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets,			
intangible assets and other long-term assets			
Net cash received from disposal of subsidiaries and			
other operating entities			
Cash received relating to other investing activities		5,000,000.00	10,000,000.00
Sub-total of cash inflows from investing			
activities		10,385,981.34	11,102,161.95
Cash paid to acquire fixed assets, intangible assets			
and other long-term assets			28,409.59
Cash paid to acquire investments			-,
Net cash paid to acquire subsidiaries and other			
operating entities			
Cash paid relating to other investing activities		5,000,000.00	
Sub-total of cash outflows from investing		.,,	
activities		5,000,000.00	28,409.59
Net cash flows from investing activities		5,385,981.34	11,073,752.36

Cash Flow Statement of the Parent Company

2023

Prepared by:Shanghai Jiaoda Withub Information Industrial Company Limited			Unit: RMB (Yuan)
Item	Note	2023	2022
III. Cash flows from financing activities			
Cash received from capital contributions			
Cash received from borrowings			
Cash received from issuing of bonds			
Cash received from other financing activities			
Sub-total of cash inflows from financing			
activities		-	-
Cash repayments of borrowings			
Cash payments for distribution of dividends or profits			
and interest expenses			
Cash paid to other financing activities		2,506,140.00	67,298.21
Sub-total of cash outflows from financing			
activities		2,506,140.00	67,298.21
Net cash flows from financing activities		-2,506,140.00	-67,298.21
IV. Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash			
and cash equivalents			
V. Net increase in cash and cash equivalents		-1,757,295.51	1,383,093.26
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of		, , ,	,
period		19,101,706.67	17,718,613.41
VI. Cash and cash equivalent at end of period		17,344,411.16	19,101,706.67

Legal Representative:

Chief Financial Officer:



Prepared by:Shanghai Jiaoda Withub Information Industrial Company Limited	oda Withu	ub Inform	ation Ind	ustrial C	ompar	y Limite	þ						Uni	Unit: RMB (Yuan)	(Yuan)	202
ltern	Share Capital	Other Preferred shares	Other equity instrument Perpetual bond	Others	Capital Reserve T	E Less: Treasury shares	202 Equity attributable to the parent company Other Comprehensive Income Special reserve	2 the parent compan Special reserve	2023 any Surplus reserve	Reserve for general risks	Undistributed profits	Others	Total	Minority interests	Total shareholders' equity	3
 Ending balance of previous year Add: changes in accounting policles Correction of prior pariod arrors Business combinations under the same administration 0.000 	48,000,000.00			4	77,308,349.20		1,444,781.88		222,962.29		-101,326,921.14		25,649,172.23		25,649,172.23	
 Beginning balance of current year Clange mough current year Deli comprehensive income Deli comprehensive income Deli comprehensive income Continuor and windoward or applied particular Deli comprehensive income Continuor and windoward or applied particular Deli comprehensive income Continuor and windoward or applied particular Continuor and windoward or applied particular Deli comprehensive income Amounts of Stare Rosed parments recognized in strandoders a quily Amounts of Stare Rosed parments recognized in the transportation Appropriation Destruction of general text reserve Destruction of general text reserve Bottalized capital reserve Capitalized capital reserve Comprehensive intrastering retained earnings Contrast year apportation Contrast year apportation Contrast year apportation Contrast year apportation 	0 00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0			3	71,306,24 9.20		1,444,781.88 107,745.67 107,745.67		222,962,239		101,208,802,101- 1010,088,8- 1- 14,109,002,00- 14,109,002,101-				25.649, 172, 23 - 6,881, 265, 27 - 6,881, 265, 27	Ũ
G) Others IV. Ending balance of current year	48,000,000.00			11	77,308,349.20		1,552,527.55		222,962.29		-108,315,932.08		18,767,906.96		18,767,906.96	1
Legal Representative:			Chief	Chief Financial Officer:	al Offic	er:			Hea	d of Fin	Head of Financial Department:	partment				

Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity

Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity

							i	2022							
							Equity athibutable to the parent company	arent company							
		Othe	Other equity instrument				Other								Total
	Share	Preferred	Perpetual		Capital	Less:	Comprehensive	Special	Surplus	Reserve for	Undistributed			Minority	shareholders'
Item	Capital	shares	bond	Others	Reserve	Treasury shares	Income	reserve	reserve	general risks	profits	Others	Total	interests	equity
 Ending balance of previous year 	48,000,000.00			2	77,308,349.20		1,330,560.30		222,962 29		-79,500,977.13		47,360,894.66	-30,126.33	47,330,768.33
Add: changes in accounting policies											-219,797.46		-219,797.46		-219,797.46
Correction of prior period errors															
Business combinations under the same administration															
Others															
II. Beginning balance of current year	48,000,000.00			2	77,308,34920		1,330,560.30		222,962 29		-79,720,774.59		47,141,097.20	-30,126.33	47,110,970.87
III. Change through current year (" $-$ " for losses)							114,221.58				-21,606,146.55		-21,491,924.97	30,126.33	-21,461,798.64
(1) Total comprehensive income							114,221.58				-21,606,146.55		-21,491,924.97	1	-21,491,924.97
(2) Contribution and withdrawal of capital by shareholders															
1. Ordinary shares contributed by shareholders															
2. Capital contributed by other equity instruments holders															
Amounts of share-based payments recognized in															
shareholder's equity															
4. Others															
(3) Profit distribution															
1. Appropriation of surplus Reserve															
2. Appropriation of general risk reserve															
3. Distribution to shareholders															
4. Others															
(4) Internal carry-over of shareholders' equity															
1. Capitalzed capital reserve															
2. Capitalzed surplus reserve															
3. Surplus reserve for covering up losses															
4. Changes of benefits plan transfering retained earnings															
5. Other comprehensive transfering retained earnings															
6. Others															
(5) Special reserve															
1. Current year appropriation															
2. Current year usage															
6) Others														30,126.33	30,126.33
IV. Ending balance of current year	48,000,000,00			2	77,308,349.20		1,444,781.88		222,962 29		-101,326,921.14		25,649,172 23		25,649,172.23
Legal Representative:			Chie	Chief Financial Officer:	ial Offic	ser:			Heac	l of Fine	Head of Financial Department:	artment			

Prepared by:Shanghai Jiaoda Withub Information Industrial Company Limited	oda Withub I	nformatior	n Industrial	Company	Limited						Unit: RMB (Yuan)	(Yuan)
		Statement of Change	Statement of Channes of Equity of the Parent Company	Company			2023					
						Less:	Other					Total
Item	Share Capital	2023	Perpetual bond	Others	Capital Reserve	Treasury shares	Comprehensive Income	Special reserve	Surplus reserve	Undistributed profits	Other	shareholders' equity
 Ending balance of previous year 	48,000,000.00				77,308,349.20				222,96229	-100,139,297.84		25,392,013.65
Add: changes in accounting policies												
Correction of prior period errors												
Others												
II. Beginning balance of current year	48,000,000.00				77,308,349.20				222,962.29	-100,139,297.84		25,392,013.65
III. Change through current year (" –" for losses)										-6,916,886.57		-6,916,886.57
(1) Total comprehensive income										-6,916,886.57		-6,916,886.57
(2) Contribution and withdrawal of capital by shareholders												
1. Ordinary shares contributed by shareholders												
2. Capital contributed by other equity instruments holders												
3. Amounts of share-based payments recognized in												
shareholder's equity												
4. Others												
(3) Profit distribution												
1. Appropriation of surplus Reserve												
2. Distribution to shareholders												
3. Others												
(4) Internal carry-over of shareholders' equity												
1. Capitalized capital reserve												
2. Capitalzed surplus reserve												
3. Surplus reserve for covering up losses												
4. Changes of benefits plan transfering retained earnings												
Other comprehensive transfering retained earnings												
6. Others												
(5) Special reserve												
1. Current year appropriation												
2. Current year usage												
6) Others												
IV. Ending balance of current year	48,000,000.00				77,308,349.20				222,962.29	-107,056,184.41		18,475,127.08
			2001:1 Joint		;		-	0001 1 90 10		too onto		
Legal Hepresentative:			Unier Financial Unicer:	ncial Unice	<u>.</u>		Пеа	Head of Financial Department:	cial Lepa	rument:		

Statement of Changes of Equity of the Parent Company 2023

Image: manual stand	Prepared by:Shanghai Jiaoda Withub Information Industrial Company Limited	da Withub	Informatio	n Industrial	Company	Limited						Unit: HMB (Yuan)	(Yuan)
Interview Interview <thinterview< th=""> Interview <thinterview< th=""> Interview Interview</thinterview<></thinterview<>			č	-				2022					
Martine Martin Martine Martine			0	her equity instrument			Less:	Other					Total
Jonction Inten Inten<		i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i	Preferred	Perpetual	ā	Capital	Treasury	Comprehensive	Special	Surplus	Undistributed	ā	shareholders'
4000 730000 73000 73000 <th< th=""><th>5</th><th>Share Capital</th><th>shares</th><th>pood</th><th>Others</th><th>Heserve</th><th>shares</th><th>Income</th><th>reserve</th><th>BRBNB</th><th>prolits</th><th>Other</th><th>equity</th></th<>	5	Share Capital	shares	pood	Others	Heserve	shares	Income	reserve	BRBNB	prolits	Other	equity
and and an and a financial and a financial contract a second a sec	Ending balance of previous year	4,800,000.00				77,308,349.20				222,962.29	-79,233,044.37		46,298,267.12
Motion TATABLE AND	Add: changes in accounting policies										-219,797.46		-219,797.46
Joint	Correction of prior period errors												
tototo toto tototo toto	Others												
 - total control c	Beginning balance of current year	4,800,000.00				77,308,349.20				222,962.29	-79,452,841.83		46,078,469.66
totation the second state of the second state	Change through current year (" $-$ " for losses)										-20,686,456.01		-20,686,456.01
and a manual and	(1) Total comprehensive income										-20,686,456.01		-20,686,456.01
<pre>typenome reginances/definition reginanc</pre>	(2) Contribution and withdrawal of capital by shareholders												
rund interentione Transmissione interestione	1. Ordinary shares contributed by shareholders												
Internet of the formation of the formati	2. Capital contributed by other equity instruments holders												
ere the terms the te	3. Amounts of share-based payments recognized in												
a control of the second control of the secon	shareholder's equity												
to the second se	4. Others												
a control of the function of t	(3) Profit distribution												
a cut be cut be cut be cut be cut cut const at the cut	1. Appropriation of surplus Reserve												
is tot to tase another target and another another target and another another target and another target and a	2. Distribution to shareholders												
et et up ou cost serier retrantes serier retrantes interventioning two retrant anno two retrant anno two retrant anno trantion and financial Officer and financial Department:	3. Others												
0 total and the tendential and the tendential intertibut 000000 00000 000000 000000 00000 00000 00000 00000 000000 00000 00000 00000 00000 intertibut 00000 0000 00000 00000	(4) Internal carry-over of shareholders' equity												
y test and the market and a stand and a stand and a stand a st	1. Capitalized capital reserve												
up loss andre presentations fing relation tanks Anono Accord Acco	2. Capitalized surplus reserve												
and in the formation and the f	3. Surplus reserve for covering up losses												
Amono Amono Amono Amono Amono Amono <td>4. Changes of benefits plan transfering retained earnings</td> <td></td>	4. Changes of benefits plan transfering retained earnings												
400000 A.	5. Other comprehensive transfering retained earnings												
400000 Acrosso	6. Others												
400000 Acrosson 77,000,000 Acrosson 2226229 -100,10820741 Intative: Chief Financial Officer: Head of Financial Department:	(5) Special reserve												
400000 Acrosson TTARAGED ACTION TO ACTION AC	1. Current year appropriation												
400000 400 400 400 400 400 400 400 400	2. Current year usage												
400000 400 Across Acros	6) Others												
Chief Financial Officer:	Ending balance of current year	48,000,000.00				77,308,349.20				222,962.29	-100,139,297.84		25,392,013.65
Chief Financial Officer:													
				Conine Financia		ŝ			of Discourse		+000+		
	-egal hepresentative:					2		Пеа		cial Depa	TIMBUL:		

Statement of Changes of Equity of the Parent Company

1. GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY

Shanghai Jiaoda Withub Information Industrial Company Limited (hereinafter referred to as the Company) was established on May 4th, 1998, with its place of registration at 2nd Floor, Building 7, No. 471 Guiping Road, Shanghai and office at Building A, Shanghai Jiaoda Withhub Information Park.

On July 31st, 2002, the Company was listed on the Growth Enterprise Market (GEM) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and issued 132 million foreign shares with a par value of RMB0.1 each, amounting to RMB13.2 million; at the same time, some of the shareholders of the Company offered to place 12 million shares, amounting to RMB1.2 million. After the issue, the registered capital of the Company increased to RMB48 million and the number of shares increased to 480 million.

As at December 31st, 2023, the total number of shares of the Company was 480 million shares, of which 348 million shares, or 72.50% of the total share capital, were unlisted, and 132 million shares, or 27.50% of the total share capital, were public shares of listed H-shares.

The Company belongs to the Software and Information Technology Services industry, and its business mainly consists of business application solutions and application software development business, installation and maintenance of network and data security products business, and sales of electrical products and accessories, etc.

The financial statements were approved for reporting on March 21st, 2024 by the Board of Directors of the Company. In accordance with the Company's Articles of Association, the financial statements will be submitted to the General Meeting of Shareholders for review.

2. BASIS FOR THE PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1 Basis for the preparation

The Company's financial statements have been prepared on the basis of transactions and events that actually occurred, in accordance with the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises, its Application Guidelines, Interpretations and other relevant regulations issued by the Ministry of Finance (hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises"), the Compilation Rules for Information Disclosure by Companies Offering Securities to the Public No. 15 - the General Provisions of Financial Reports issued by the China Securities and Regulatory Commission (2023 Revision) and the relevant regulations, as well as the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong.

2.2 Going concern

The Company has evaluated its ability to continue as a going concern for the 12 months from December 31st, 2023 and has not identified any events or circumstances that may cast significant doubt over its ability to continue as a going concern. The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Specific accounting policies and accounting estimates formulated by the Company in accordance with the actual production and operating characteristics include: recognition and measurement of bad debt provision for receivables, measurement of inventories dispatched, classification of fixed assets and method of depreciation, amortization of intangible assets, and recognition and measurement of revenue.

3.1 Statement of compliance with the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises

The financial statements comply with the requirements of the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises and give a true, accurate and complete presentation of the financial position of the Company as at December 31st, 2023 and of the results of its operations and cash flows for the year 2023 and other related information.

3.2 Accounting period

The accounting period of the Company is from January 1st to December 31st of the calendar year.

3.3 Operating cycle

The Company operates businesses with short operating cycles and uses 12 months as the liquidity classification standard for assets and liabilities.

3.4 Functional currency

The Company and its domestic subsidiaries use RMB as the standard currency for accounting.

Overseas subsidiaries of the Company determine their own accounting currency based on the principal economic environments in which they operate, and the Company translates them into RMB in the preparation of its financial statements in accordance with the method described in 3.9.



3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

3.5 Methodology for determining materiality criteria and basis for selection

The Company follows the principle of materiality in the preparation and disclosure of its financial statements. The disclosures in the notes to the financial statements that involve materiality judgments and the methodology for determining and selecting the materiality criteria are as follows:

Related materiality criteria Disclosures involving judgments	Disclosure position of this matter in the notes to the financial statements	Methodology for determining materiality criteria and basis for selection
Significant accounts receivable for which bad debt provision is made on an individual basis	5.2	Individual provision amounts accounting for 10% of the total bad debt provision for accounts receivable and exceeding 1 million
Significant associates and joint ventures	5.7	Individual associates and joint ventures book value accounting for more than 5% of consolidated net assets
Significant other non-current financial assets	5.8	Individual invested company book value accounting for more than 5% of consolidated net assets
Significant non wholly-owned subsidiaries	16.3	Subsidiary net assets accounting for more than 5% of consolidated net assets, or subsidiary net profit accounting for more than 10% of consolidated net profit

3.6 Accounting treatment for business combinations under common control and not under common control

(1) Business combinations involving entities under common control

Business combinations in which the enterprises participating in the combination are under the ultimate control of the same party or parties, both before and after the combination, and such control is not temporary, are business combinations under common control.

Assets and liabilities acquired by the Company as a consolidator in a business combination under common control are measured at the book value of the consolidated party in the consolidated statements of the ultimate controlling party at the date of consolidation. The difference between the book value of the net assets acquired and the book value of the consideration paid for the merger is adjusted to capital reserves; if capital reserves are not sufficient to offset the difference, retained earnings are adjusted.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

3.6 Accounting treatment for business combinations under common control and not under common control (Continued)

(1) Business combinations involving entities under common control (Continued)

If a business combination under common control is achieved in stages through multiple transactions, the relevant assets and liabilities of the consolidated party are consolidated into the comparative statements of the Company's consolidated financial statements no earlier than the point at which the Company and the consolidated party are both under the control of the ultimate controlling party and the net assets increased as a result of the consolidation is adjusted to the relevant items under owner's equity in the comparative statements.

(2) Business combinations involving entities not under common control

Business combinations are not under common control if the parties involved in the combination are not under the ultimate control of the same party or parties before and after the combination.

Identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquiree acquired by the Company as the purchaser in a business combination not under common control are measured at fair value at the acquisition date. If the cost of combination is greater than the share of the fair value of the identifiable net assets of the acquiree acquired in the combination, the difference is recognized as goodwill; if the cost of combination is less than the share of the fair value of the identifiable net assets of the acquiree acquired in the combination, the fair value of the identifiable net assets of the acquiree acquired in the combination, the fair value of each identifiable asset, liability and contingent liability acquired in the combination, and the costs are first reviewed, and if, after the review, the cost of combination is still less than the share of the fair value of the identifiable net assets of the acquiree acquired in the combination, the difference is recognized as non-operating income in the period of the combination.

If the business combination not under common control is realized step by step through multiple transactions, the equity interest in the acquiree held prior to the date of purchase is remeasured at the fair value of the equity interest in the acquiree at the date of purchase, and the difference between the fair value and its book value is recognized as investment income for the period; other comprehensive income under the equity method of accounting and changes in owners' equity other than net profit or loss, other comprehensive income and profit distribution in respect of equity interests in the acquiree held prior to the date of purchase shall be transferred to investment gains and losses in the period in which the purchase date falls, except for other comprehensive income arising from the remeasurement of changes in net liabilities or net assets of the defined benefit plan by the investee.



3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

3.7 Control determination criteria and preparation of consolidated financial statements

The scope of consolidation of the Company's consolidated financial statements is determined on the basis of control and includes the Company and all subsidiaries controlled by the Company (including enterprises, divisible segments of investees, and structured entities controlled by enterprises, etc.). The Company determines control by the criteria that the Company has rights over the investee, enjoys variable returns through participation in the investee's relevant activities, and has the ability to use its rights over the investee to affect the amount of its returns.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, where the accounting policies and the accounting periods of the Company and its subsidiaries are inconsistent, the financial statements of the subsidiaries are adjusted in accordance with the accounting policies and the accounting period of the Company.

The effects on the consolidated financial statements of internal transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries and between subsidiaries are offset by consolidation. The shares of ownership interests of subsidiaries that are not attributable to the parent company and the shares of net profit or loss, other comprehensive income and total comprehensive income for the period that is attributable to minority interests are presented in the consolidated financial statements under "Minority interests, minority gains and losses, other comprehensive income attributable to minority shareholders and total comprehensive income attributable to minority shareholders", respectively.

For subsidiaries acquired through business combinations under common control, their operating results and cash flows are included in the consolidated financial statements from the beginning of the period of consolidation. When preparing the comparative consolidated financial statements, the relevant items in the prior year's financial statements are adjusted as if the reporting entity formed by the combination had existed since the point at which control by the ultimate controlling party began.

For a subsidiary acquired through a business combination not under common control, the results of operations and cash flows are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date the Company obtains control. In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the financial statements of subsidiaries are adjusted on the basis of the fair value of each identifiable asset, liability and contingent liability determined at the date of purchase.

Where the Company partially disposes of its long-term equity investment in a subsidiary without loss of control, for the difference between the disposal price and the share of the subsidiary's net assets calculated on a continuing basis from the purchase date or the combination date corresponding to the disposal of the long-term equity investment, the capital reserves (share premium) shall be adjusted in the consolidated financial statements, or the retained earnings shall be adjusted if the capital reserves are insufficient to be written down.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

3.7 Control determination criteria and preparation of consolidated financial statements (Continued)

If the Company loses control over an investee due to, for example, the disposal of a portion of an equity investment, the remaining equity interest shall be remeasured at its fair value at the date of the loss of control in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements. The difference between the sum of the consideration obtained from the disposal of equity interest and the fair value of the remaining equity interest and the share of the original subsidiary's net assets continuously calculated from the date of purchase or the date of consolidation based on the original shareholding ratio, is included in investment gains and losses in the period in which control is lost, and goodwill is also written down. Other comprehensive income, etc. related to original equity investments in the subsidiary is transferred to current investment gains and losses when control is lost.

When the disposal of the Company's equity investment in a subsidiary in stages through multiple transactions until it loses control is a package deal, each transaction shall be accounted for as a single transaction of disposing of the subsidiary and losing control of the subsidiary; provided, however, that the difference between the price of each disposal prior to the loss of control and the share of the subsidiary's net assets corresponding to the investment disposed of is recognized in the consolidated financial statements as other comprehensive income and transferred to investment gains and losses for the period of the loss of control when control is lost. If an equity investment in a subsidiary is disposed of in stages through multiple transactions until it loses control, and is not a package deal, each transaction is accounted for separately according to whether it results in a loss of control.

3.8 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash in the Company's statement of cash flows represents cash on hand and deposits that are readily available for payment. Cash equivalent in the cash flow statement refers to the investment with a term not more than 3 months and high liquidity, and is easily convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.



3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

3.9 Foreign currency operations and translation of foreign currency financial statements

(1) Foreign currency transactions

The foreign currency transactions of the Company are initially recognized by using the spot exchange rate on the date of the transaction to translate the foreign currency amount into a functional currency amount. At the balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency using the spot exchange rate at the balance sheet date, and the resulting translation differences are charged directly to profit or loss for the current period, except for exchange differences arising from specialized borrowings denominated in foreign currencies for the purpose of acquiring, constructing or producing assets eligible for capitalization, which are capitalized; non-monetary item in foreign currency measured at historical cost continues to be translated using the spot exchange rate at the date of the transaction and does not change the functional currency in which it is recorded; nonmonetary item measured at fair value in a foreign currency is translated using the spot exchange rate at the date the fair value is determined, and the difference between the translated amount in the functional currency and the original amount in the local currency is treated as a change in fair value (including exchange rate changes) and recognized in profit or loss for the current period; capital contributions received from investors in foreign currencies are translated using the spot exchange rate on the date of the transaction, and no foreign currency capital translation differences arise between the capital contributions in foreign currencies and the carrying amounts of the corresponding monetary items in the local currency.

(2) Translation of foreign currency financial statements

The Company translates the financial statements of its foreign operations into RMB in the preparation of its consolidated financial statements, of which: the balance sheet items of assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated using the spot exchange rate at the balance sheet date; the items of owners' equity, except for "undistributed earnings", are translated at the spot exchange rate at the time of the transaction; the income and expense items in the income statement are translated using the current average exchange rate at the date of the transaction. The foreign currency statement translation differences arising from the above translated using the average exchange rate for the period of the cash flows in foreign currencies are translated using the effect of exchange rate changes on cash is presented separately in the cash flow statement.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

3.10 Financial instruments

(1) Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial asset or a financial liability is recognized when the Company becomes a party to a financial instrument contract.

A financial asset (or part of a financial asset, or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised, namely, charged off from their accounts and balance sheet when the following conditions are met: ① the right to receive cash flows from the financial asset expires; ② the right to receive cash flows from the financial asset is transferred or, assumed the obligation to pay the received cash flows in full and on time to a third party under a pass-through agreement; and either the transfer of substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset or the relinquishment of control over the financial asset, although substantially the transfer of substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset is not made.

A financial liability is derecognized if the obligation under the financial liability is fulfilled, cancelled or expired. If an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same creditor on substantially different terms, or if the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified in almost its entirety, such substitution or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, with the difference charged to current profit or loss.

The purchase and sale of financial assets on a regular basis is recognized and derecognized on the basis of transaction date accounting.

(2) Classification and measurement of financial assets

Based on the business model for managing financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of financial assets, the Company shall classify financial assets at initial recognition as financial assets measured at amortized cost, financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. All related financial assets that are affected may be reclassified only when the Company changes its business model for managing the financial assets.

In judging the business model, the Company shall consider the information including how it evaluates and reports the performance of financial assets to its key management personnel, the risks affecting the performance of financial assets and the relevant management method, and how managers of the relevant business are compensated, etc. The Company, when assessing whether the objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, is required to analyze the reasons for, the timing, frequency and value of sales of financial assets before maturity.



3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

3.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

(2) Classification and measurement of financial assets (Continued)

To determine the contractual cash flow characteristics, the Company shall make judgments on whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, including evaluating whether there is a significant difference in comparison with benchmarking cash flows when the revision of the time value of money is assessed, and evaluating whether the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant provided that the financial assets have the prepayment feature.

Financial assets shall be measured at fair value on initial recognition, except for accounts receivable or notes receivable arising from the sales of goods or rendering of services and without significant financing components or without considering the financing component that does not exceed one year, which are initially measured at the transaction price.

For financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, the related transaction costs are recognized directly in the current profit or loss; for other categories of financial assets, the related transaction costs are recognized in their initial recognition amounts.

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification:

1) Financial assets measured at amortized cost

Financial assets are classified as measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met: ① the objective of the business model for managing the financial assets is to collect contractual cash flows; ② the contractual terms of the financial assets provide that the cash flows arising on specified dates are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The Company's financial assets in this category mainly consist of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and other receivables.

2) Investments in debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets are classified as at fair value through other comprehensive income if both of the following conditions are met: ① the objective of the business model for managing the financial assets is both to collect contractual cash flows and sell the financial assets. ② the contractual terms of the financial assets provide that the cash flows arising on specified dates are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Interest income for such financial assets is recognized based on the effective interest method. Changes in fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income, other than interest income, impairment losses and exchange differences which are recognized in the current profit or loss. When the financial assets are derecognized, the cumulative gains or losses previously recognized in other comprehensive income shall be transferred from other comprehensive income to the current profit or loss. The Company's financial assets in this category are mainly receivables financing.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

3.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

(2) Classification and measurement of financial assets (Continued)

3) Investments in equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income

The Company irrevocably elects to designate certain investments in non-trading equity instruments as financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, and the designation is irrevocable once made. The Company recognizes only the related dividend income (except for dividend income that is explicitly recognized as a partial recovery of investment costs) in the current profit or loss, and subsequent changes in fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income. No provision for impairment is accrued. When the financial assets are derecognized, the cumulative gains or losses previously recognized in other comprehensive income shall be transferred from other comprehensive income to retained earnings. The Company's financial assets in this category are investments in other equity instruments.

4) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Except for those classified as financial assets measured at amortized cost and those classified or designated as at fair value through other comprehensive income described above, the Company classifies other financial assets as at fair value through profit or loss. Such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value, and all changes in fair value are recognized in the current profit or loss, except when they relate to hedge accounting. The Company's financial assets in this category mainly include financial assets held for trading and other non-current financial assets.

If the contingent consideration recognized by the Company in a business combination not under common control constitutes a financial asset, the financial asset shall be classified as at fair value through profit or loss.

(3) Classification, recognition and measurement of financial liabilities

The Company's financial liabilities are classified on initial recognition as follows: financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and financial liabilities measured at amortized cost, except for financial guarantee contracts issued, loan commitments at below-market interest rates, and financial liabilities arising from transfers of financial assets that do not qualify for derecognition or from the continuing involvement in the transferred financial assets. For financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, the related transaction costs are recognized directly in the current profit or loss; and for financial liabilities measured at amortized costs, the related transaction costs are recognized in their initial recognition amounts.



3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

3.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

(3) Classification, recognition and measurement of financial liabilities (Continued)

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification:

1) Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

2) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (including derivatives that are financial liabilities) comprise financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or loss at initial recognition. Financial liabilities held for trading (including derivatives that are financial liabilities) are subsequently measured at fair value, and all changes in fair value are recognized in the current profit or loss, except when they relate to hedge accounting. Financial liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or loss, except or loss are subsequently measured at fair value, and changes in fair value are recognized in the current profit or loss, except for changes in fair value are recognized in the Company's own credit risks, which are recognized in other comprehensive income. If changes in fair value attributable to changes in the Company's own credit risks, the Company shall recognize all changes in fair value (including the amount of the effect of changes in the Company's own credit risks) in the current profit or loss.

(4) Basis for recognition and measurement methods of transfers of financial assets

For transactions involving the transfer of financial assets, the Company shall derecognize a financial asset if substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset have been transferred to the transferee, and shall not derecognize the financial asset if substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset if substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset have been retained. If the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset but has surrendered control over the financial asset, it shall derecognize the financial asset and recognize the resulting assets and liabilities. If it does not surrender control over the financial asset to the extent of its continuing involvement in the transferred financial asset and recognize an associated liability correspondingly.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

3.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

(4) Basis for recognition and measurement methods of transfers of financial assets (Continued)

If the transfer of a financial asset as a whole satisfies the conditions for derecognition, the difference between the book value of the transferred financial asset at the date of the derecognition and the sum of the consideration received for the transfer and the cumulative amount of changes in fair value previously recognized in other comprehensive income directly, corresponding to the derecognized portion (the financial asset involved in the transfer meets both of the following conditions: ① the objective of the Company's business model for managing the financial asset is both to collect contractual cash flows and sell the financial asset; ② the contractual terms of the financial assets provide that the cash flows arising on specified dates are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding), is recognized in the current profit or loss.

If the partial transfer of a financial asset satisfies the conditions for derecognition, the whole book value of the transferred financial asset is apportioned between the derecognized portion and the non-derecognized portion according to their respective relative fair values. The difference between the sum of the consideration received for the transfer and the cumulative amount of changes in fair value previously recognized in other comprehensive income corresponding to the derecognized portion that shall be apportioned to the derecognized portion (the financial asset involved in the transfer meets both of the following conditions: 1) the objective of the Group's business model for managing the financial asset is both to collect contractual cash flows and sell the financial asset; 2) the contractual terms of the financial assets provide that the cash flows arising on specified dates are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding), and the above-apportioned book value of the financial asset as a whole is recognized in the current profit or loss.

Where the continuing involvement is in the form of a financial guarantee for the transferred financial asset, the asset resulting from the continuing involvement is recognized at the lower of the book value of the financial asset and the amount of the financial guarantee. The financial guarantee amount is the maximum amount of the consideration received that the Company could be required to repay.



3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

3.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

(5) Distinction between financial liabilities and equity instruments and related treatment

The Company distinguishes financial liabilities from equity instruments in accordance with the following principles: ① if the Company cannot unconditionally avoid the performance of a contractual obligation by delivering cash or other financial assets, that contractual obligation meets the definition of financial liabilities. Some financial instruments, although they do not explicitly contain terms and conditions for an obligation to deliver cash or other financial assets, may indirectly create a contractual obligation through other terms and conditions. 2 if a financial instrument must or may be settled with the Company's own equity instruments, it is necessary to consider whether the Company's own equity instruments used to settle the instrument are intended as a substitute for cash or other financial assets or are intended to give the holder of the instrument a residual interest in the assets of the issuer after deducting all liabilities. In the former case, the instrument is a financial liability of the issuer; in the latter case, the instrument is an equity instrument of the issuer. In certain circumstances, a financial instrument contract stipulates that the Company must or may settle the financial instrument with its own equity instruments, where the amount of the contractual right or contractual obligation is equal to the number of its own equity instruments available for acquisition or delivery multiplied by their fair values at the time of settlement, regardless of whether the amount of the contractual right or obligation is fixed or based in whole or in part on variables other than the market price of the Company's own equity instruments (such as interest rates, the price of a commodity or the price of a financial instrument), the contract is classified as a financial liability.

When classifying financial instruments (or their components) in the consolidated financial statements, the Company considers all terms and conditions agreed between the members of the Group and the holders of the financial instruments. An instrument shall be classified as a financial liability if the Group as an entirety has an obligation to deliver cash and other financial assets due to the instrument or settle in a manner that otherwise causes the instrument to become a financial liability.

If a financial instrument or its component is a financial liability, the related interest, dividends (or bonuses), gains or losses, and gains or losses arising from redemption or refinancing are recognized by the Company in the current profit or loss.

When a financial instrument or its component is an equity instrument and it is issued (including refinancing), repurchased, sold or canceled, the Company treats it as changes in equity and does not recognize changes in the fair value of the equity instrument.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

3.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

(6) Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

The Company's financial assets and financial liabilities are presented separately on the balance sheet and are not offset against each other. However, when both of the following conditions are met, the net amount after offsetting is listed on the balance sheet: ① the Company has a legal right to offset the recognized amount, and such legal right is currently enforceable; ② the Company intends to settle on a net basis, or to realize the financial assets and liquidate the financial liabilities at the same time.

(7) Impairment of financial instruments

The Company shall account for impairment and recognize the loss allowances based on expected credit losses.

Expected credit loss is the weighted average of credit losses on a financial instrument with the risks of a default occurring as the weights. Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows receivable under the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive, i.e., the present value of all cash shortfalls, discounted at the original effective interest rate, The Company shall reflect the following elements when considering how to measure expected credit losses: ① an unbiased and probability-weighted average amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes; ② the time value of money; and ③ reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the balance sheet date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

The Company evaluates expected credit losses on financial instruments on an individual and portfolio basis. For portfolio-based assessments, the Company shall categorize financial instruments into different groups based on common credit risk characteristics. The common credit risk characteristics adopted by the Company include the types of financial instruments, credit risk ratings, the industries in which the debtors operate, past due information, and aging of receivables.

When assessing the impairment of financial instruments and contract assets based on the expected credit loss model, the Company shall make significant judgments and estimates and take into account all reasonable and supportable information, including forward-looking information. These judgments and estimates require the Company to infer the expected changes in debtors' credit risks based on historical repayment data and in conjunction with economic policies, macroeconomic indicators, industry risks and other factors. Different estimates may affect the accrual of impairment provisions, and the impairment provisions that have been accrued may not equal the actual amount of future impairment losses.



3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

3.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

(7) Impairment of financial instruments (Continued)

① Impairment testing methods for receivables and contract assets

For accounts receivable, notes receivable, receivables financing, contract assets, other receivables, etc. that do not contain a significant financing component and are generated from ordinary operating activities, such as sales of goods and rendering of services, the Company applies a simplified measurement methodology to measure the provision for losses at an amount equal to the expected credit losses over the entire life of the asset.

For lease receivables, receivables and contract assets with significant financing components, the Company applies a simplified measurement methodology to measure the provision for losses at an amount equal to the expected credit losses over the entire life of the asset.

For receivables, expected credit losses are generally calculated on the basis of a portfolio of common credit risk characteristics by taking into account the elements that should be reflected in the expected credit loss measurement methodology and by reference to historical credit loss experience and preparing a reconciliation of the number of days past due on accounts receivable/aging of accounts receivable to the default loss rate, except for amounts that are individually significant and for which credit impairment has occurred, in which case the credit losses shall be determined separately. If the credit risk characteristics of a customer are significantly different from those of other customers in the portfolio, or if there is a significant change in the credit risk characteristics of the customer is in severe financial difficulty and the expected credit loss rate on receivables from this customer has significantly exceeded the expected credit loss rate for the aging and overdue ranges in which the customer is located, etc., the Company makes a provision for losses on an individual basis on the receivables from this customer.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

3.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

- (7) Impairment of financial instruments (Continued)
 - a. Portfolio categories of accounts receivable (and contract assets) and basis of determination

The Company groups account receivable (and contract assets) by similarity and relevance of credit risk characteristics based on information such as aging, nature of payment, credit risk exposure, and history of repayment. For accounts receivable (and contract assets), the Company generally grants a six-month credit period. If it is more than six months past due, it indicates that the credit risk has increased significantly and, therefore, the Company evaluates expected credit losses on the basis of whether or not the portfolio is delinquent.

		Methodology for measuring
	Basis for determining portfolio	expected credit
Item	(aging/overdue portfolio)	losses
Accounts	Within 6 months (usually the credit period	
receivable	granted to the customer/not overdue)	0.00%
	6 months - 12 months (1 day to 6 months	
	overdue)	0.00%
	More than 1 year (More than six months	
	overdue)	100.00%



3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

3.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

- (7) Impairment of financial instruments (Continued)
 - b. Portfolio categories of other receivables and basis of determination

The Company measures impairment losses by amounts equivalent to expected credit losses over the next 12 months, or the entire life of the other receivables, based on whether the credit risk of other receivables has increased significantly since initial recognition. Other receivables are classified into different portfolios based on their credit risk characteristics and assessed for expected credit losses, except those that are individually assessed for credit risk.

	Basis for determining	Methodology for measuring
Item	portfolio	expected credit losses
Dividends receivable	Dividends receivable	No provision for expected credit losses
Interest receivable	Interest receivable from financial institutions	No provision for expected credit losses
Guarantees, deposits and pet cash receivable	Nature of payment ty	No provision for expected credit losses
Other receivables	Amounts in the ordinary course of business	Refer to the method for provision for expected credit losses on accounts receivable

3.11 Inventories

The Company's inventories consist primarily of goods in stock, etc.

Inventories are maintained on a perpetual inventory basis and are valued at actual cost at the time of acquisition. The weighted-average method is used to determine the actual cost of inventories when they are claimed or issued. Low-value consumables are amortized using the one-time reversal method.

At the balance sheet date, inventories are measured at the lower of cost or net realizable value. If the cost of inventories is higher than their net realizable value, a provision for a decline in the value of inventories is made and recognized in profit or loss for the current period. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price of inventories in ordinary activities less the estimated costs to be incurred until completion, estimated selling expenses, and related taxes.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

3.11 Inventories (Continued)

The Company's policy on provision for decline in value of inventories is formulated based on the shelf life of products and risk of slow-moving sales out of prudent considerations, by taking into account the shelf life of products and the actual experience of the business operation. Based on the principle of prudence, a full provision for decline in value is made for the reporting period for the products that have been in the inventory for more than two years.

3.12 Contract assets and contract liabilities

(1) Contract assets

A contractual asset is a right to receive consideration for goods that the Company has transferred to a customer, which is dependent on factors other than the passage of time. If the Company sells two distinguishable commodities to a customer and is entitled to receive payment because one of the commodities has been delivered, but the receipt of such payment is also dependent on the delivery of the other commodity, the Company treats the right to receive payment as a contractual asset.

For the details of the method of determining expected credit losses on contract assets, please refer to the relevant content in "3.10. Financial instruments (7) Impairment of financial instruments" above.

(2) Contract liabilities

Contract liabilities reflect the Company's obligation to transfer goods to customers for consideration received or receivable from customers. If the customer has paid the contract consideration or the Company has acquired the unconditional right to receive the contract consideration before transferring the goods to the customer by the Company, a contract liability is recognized for the amount received or receivable at the earlier point of the actual payment or the amount due and payable by the customer.



3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

3.13 Assets related to contract costs

(1) Method of determining the amount of assets related to contract costs

The Company's assets related to contract costs include contract performance costs and contract acquisition costs. Depending on liquidity, contract performance costs are presented separately in inventories and other non-current assets, and contract acquisition costs are presented separately in other current assets and other non-current assets.

Contract performance costs, i.e., costs incurred by the Company to perform a contract, are recognized as an asset as contract performance costs if they do not fall within the scope of the relevant accounting standards for inventories, fixed assets, or intangible assets and the following conditions are also met: the costs are directly related to a current contract or expected contract to be obtained, including direct labor, direct materials, manufacturing costs (or similar costs), costs explicitly borne by the customer and other costs incurred solely as a result of the contract; the costs increase the Company's future resources available to meet its performance obligations; and the costs are expected to be recovered.

Contract acquisition costs, i.e., incremental costs incurred by the Company to acquire a contract that is expected to be recovered, are recognized as an asset. If the amortization period of the asset does not exceed one year, the Company chooses the simplified treatment of recognizing the asset in profit or loss when incurred. Incremental costs are costs that would not have been incurred without obtaining the contract (e.g., sales commissions, etc.). Expenses incurred by the Company to obtain a contract other than incremental costs expected to be recovered (such as travel expenses that would have been incurred regardless of whether the contract was obtained) are charged to current profit or loss as incurred, except for those explicitly borne by the customer.

(2) Amortization of assets related to contract costs

The Company's assets related to contract costs are amortized to current profit or loss using the same basis as that used to recognize revenue from the goods to which the assets relate.

(3) Impairment of assets related to contract costs

For the Company's assets related to contract costs, if the book value exceeds the difference between the following two items, the Company makes a provision for the excess and recognizes it as an asset impairment loss: ① the remaining consideration that the enterprise expects to receive for the transfer of goods related to the asset; and ② the estimated costs to be incurred for the transfer of the related goods.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

3.14 Long-term equity investments

The Company's long-term equity investments mainly consist of investments in subsidiaries, investments in associates and equity investments in joint ventures.

(1) Judgment of significant influence and joint control

The Company's equity investments in investees in which it has significant influence are investments in associates. Significant influence means that the Company has the power to participate in the decision-making of the investee's financial and operating policies, but does not control, or jointly control with other parties, the formulation of those policies. The Company is generally considered to have significant influence over an investee when it owns, directly or indirectly through its subsidiaries, more than 20% but less than 50% of the investee's voting rights, unless there is clear evidence that the Company is unable to participate in the decision-making of the investee's production and operation or to develop control over the investee.

An equity investment in an investee in which the Company, together with other joint venturers, exercises joint control over the investee and has rights to the net assets of the investee, is an investment in a joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement whose relevant activities can only be decided after the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control. The Company bases its judgement of joint control on the fact that all participants or a combination of participants collectively control the arrangement and that the decisions of the activities related to the arrangement must be unanimously agreed by those participants who collectively control the arrangement.

(2) Accounting treatment

The Company initially measures long-term equity investments acquired at initial investment cost.

For long-term equity investments acquired through a business combination under common control, as of the date of consolidation, the share of the book value of the net assets of the combined party in the consolidated statements of the ultimate controlling party is used as the initial investment cost of the long-term equity investment; if the book value of the net assets of the party being consolidated as of the date of consolidation is a negative amount, the initial cost of the investment is determined as zero.

For long-term equity investments acquired through a business combination not under common control, the cost of the combination is used as the initial investment cost; if the business combination not under common control is realized in steps through multiple transactions and is not a package deal, the sum of the book value of the equity investment originally held plus the cost of the additional investment is used as the initial investment cost.



3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

3.14 Long-term equity investments (Continued)

(2) Accounting treatment (Continued)

Except for long-term equity investments resulting from a business combination, long-term equity investments acquired by paying cash using the actual purchase price paid, the expenses directly related to the acquisition of the long-term equity investment, taxes and other necessary expenditures as initial investment cost; long-term equity investments acquired through the issuance of equity securities use the fair value of the equity securities issued as investment cost; long-term equity investments acquired through debt restructuring by way of settlement of debts with assets use the fair value of the renounced claims and other costs directly attributable to the investment, such as taxes, as initial investment cost; long-term equity investments acquired by means of non-monetary asset exchanges use the fair value/book value of the exchanged assets and related taxes as initial investment cost.

The Company's investments in subsidiaries are accounted for in the individual financial statements using the cost method. When the cost method is used, long-term equity investments are valued at the initial investment cost. When an additional investment is made, the book value of the cost of long-term equity investments is increased by the fair value of the cost amount paid for the additional investment and the related transaction costs incurred. Cash dividends or profits declared by the investee are recognized as investment income at the amount to which the Company is entitled.

The Company's investments in joint ventures and associates are accounted for using the equity method. When the equity method is adopted, if the initial investment cost of a long-term equity investment is greater than the share of the fair value of the identifiable net assets of the investee at the time of investment, no adjustment is made to the book value of the long-term equity investment; if the initial investment cost of a long-term equity investment; if the initial investment cost of a long-term equity investment; is less than the share of the fair value of the identifiable net assets of the investee at the time of investment, the book value of the long-term equity investment shall be adjusted by the difference, and at the same time, the difference is recognized in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

3.14 Long-term equity investments (Continued)

(2) Accounting treatment (Continued)

For long-term equity investments accounted for under the equity method of accounting for subsequent measurement, the book value of the long-term equity investment is increased or decreased by adjusting accordingly to changes in the owners' equity of the investee during the period in which the investment is held. In recognizing the share of net profit or loss of an investee, the net profit of the investee shall be adjusted and recognized based on the fair value of the identifiable assets of the investee at the time of acquisition, in accordance with the Company's accounting policies and accounting periods, and by eliminating the portion attributable to the Company in proportion to the Company's share of unrealized gains or losses on internal transactions with associates and joint ventures that do not constitute business (if the loss on internal transactions is an impairment loss on an asset, the full amount will be recognized). The Company recognizes a net loss incurred by an investee to the extent that the book value of the long-term equity investment and other long-term equity interests that in substance constitute a net investment in the investee are written down to zero, except that the Company has an obligation to assume additional losses.

The difference between the book value and the actual acquisition price of long-term equity investments disposed of is recognized as investment income in the current period.

For long-term equity investments accounted for using the equity method, the related other comprehensive income previously accounted for by the equity method is accounted for on the same basis as that of direct disposal of the related assets or liabilities by the investee upon the termination of the equity method of accounting, and the owner's equity recognized as a result of changes in the owners' equity of the investee other than net profit or loss, other comprehensive income and profit distribution is transferred in full to current investment income upon the termination of the equity method of accounting.

If the remaining equity interest after the disposal of part of the equity interest is still accounted for by the equity method, the related other comprehensive income originally accounted for by the equity method is treated on the same basis as the direct disposal of the related assets or liabilities by the investee and carried forward proportionally, and the ownership interest recognized as a result of changes in the investee's ownership interest other than net profit or loss, other comprehensive income, and profit distribution is carried forward proportionally to the investment income for the current period.



3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

3.14 Long-term equity investments (Continued)

(2) Accounting treatment (Continued)

If the common control or significant influence over the investee is lost due to the disposal of part of the equity interest, and the remaining equity interest after disposal is accounted for by applying the Accounting Standard for Business Enterprises (ASBE) No. 22 - Recognition and Measurement of Financial Instruments (Caikuai [2017] No. 7), the difference between the fair value and the book value of the remaining equity interest at the date of the loss of the common control or significant influence is recognized in current profit or loss.

If control over the investee is lost as a result of the disposal of part of the long-term equity investment, and the remaining equity interest after disposal is capable of exercising joint control or significant influence over the investee, it is accounted for under the equity method instead, and the difference between the book value of the equity interest disposed of and the consideration for disposal is recognized as investment income, and the remaining equity interest is adjusted as if it had been accounted for under the equity method from the time of acquisition; if the remaining equity interest after disposal is unable to exercise joint control or exert significant influence over the investee, the accounting treatment shall be in accordance with ASBE No. 22 - Recognition and Measurement of Financial Instruments (Caikuai [2017] No. 7), and the difference between the book value of the equity interest disposed of and the consideration for disposal is recognized as investment income, and the consideration for disposal is recognized as investment of acquisition; if the remaining equity interest after disposal is unable to exercise joint control or exert significant influence over the investee, the accounting treatment shall be in accordance with ASBE No. 22 - Recognition and Measurement of Financial Instruments (Caikuai [2017] No. 7), and the difference between the book value of the equity interest disposed of and the consideration for disposal is recognized as investment income, and the difference between the fair value and the book value of the remaining equity interest at the date of loss of control is recognized in current profit or loss.

If transactions of the step-by-step disposal of equity to loss of controlling interest are not a package deal, the Company accounts for each transaction separately. If they are a package deal, each transaction is accounted for as a transaction in which a subsidiary was disposed of and control was lost, but the difference between the disposal price and the book value of the long-term equity investment corresponding to the equity interest disposed of in each transaction before the loss of control is recognized as other comprehensive income and is transferred to profit or loss in the period when control is lost.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

3.15 Fixed assets

The Company's fixed assets are tangible assets with a useful life of more than one year that are held for use in the production of goods, provision of services, rental or management of operations.

The fixed assets shall be recognized only when the related economic benefits are likely to flow into the Company and the costs can be measured reliably. The Company's fixed assets include transportation equipment, office and electronic equipment.

The Company depreciates all fixed assets, except those fully depreciated and continue to be used. The provision for depreciation is made using the straight-line method. The categorized depreciable lives, estimated net residual value rates, and depreciation rates of the Company's fixed assets are as follows:

	Estimated		Annual
	residual value	Depreciable	depreciation
Туре	rate (%)	life (years)	rate (%)
Transportation equipment	3	5	19.40
Office and electronic equipment	3, 5	5, 3	19.40, 31.67

The Company reviews the estimated useful lives, estimated net residual values and depreciation methods of fixed assets at the end of each year, and treats any changes as changes in accounting estimates.

3.16 Intangible assets

The Company's intangible assets, which include acquired transaction names and development costs, are measured at actual cost at the time of acquisition. For intangible assets acquired, the actual cost is determined by the actual price paid and related other expenses; for intangible assets invested by investors, the actual cost is determined by the value agreed in the investment contract or agreement, but if the agreed value in the contract or agreement is not fair, the actual cost is determined by the fair value.

(1) Useful life and the bases for determination, estimation, amortization methods or the review procedures

Acquired transaction names are amortized equally over 20 years from the date of acquisition; other intangible assets are amortized in equal installments over the shortest of the estimated useful life, the beneficial life specified in the contract, and the effective life specified by law. The amortization amount is charged to the cost of the related assets and current profit or loss according to the beneficiaries. The estimated useful life and amortization method of intangible assets with finite useful lives are reviewed at the end of each year, and any changes are treated as changes in accounting estimates.



3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

3.16 Intangible assets (Continued)

(2) The scope of research and development expenditures and related accounting treatment

The Company's research and development expenditures included remuneration of research and development employees, direct input costs, depreciation and amortization expenses, and other expenses.

The Company's expenditure on an internal research and development project is classified into expenditure on the research phase and expenditure on the development phase based on its nature and whether there is material uncertainty that the research and development activities can form an intangible asset at the end of the project.

Expenditure on the research phase is charged to profit or loss as incurred; expenditure on the development phase is capitalized when the following conditions are met: ① The Company assesses that it is technically feasible to complete the intangible asset so that it can be used or sold; ② The Company has the intention to complete the intangible asset and to use or sell it; ③ The intangible asset is expected to bring economic benefits to the Company; ④ The Company has sufficient technical, financial and other resources to support the completion of the development of the intangible asset, and has the ability to use or sell the intangible asset; ⑤ • Expenditure on the development phase of the intangible asset can be measured reliably. For expenditure on the development phase that does not meet the conditions for capitalization, it is charged to the current profit or loss as incurred.

3.17 Impairment of long-term assets

The Company examines long-term equity investments, other non-current financial assets, fixed assets, right-of-use assets and intangible assets with finite useful lives at each balance sheet date, and performs impairment tests when indicators of impairment exist. Goodwill and intangible assets with uncertain useful lives and development expenditures that have not yet reached the intended state of use are tested for impairment at the end of each year, regardless of whether or not there are indications of impairment.

(1) Impairment of non-current assets other than financial assets (other than goodwill)

When performing an impairment test, the Company determines the recoverable amount of an asset based on the higher of the asset's fair value less costs of disposal and the present value of the asset's estimated future cash flows. After the impairment test, if the book value of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the difference is recognized as an impairment loss.

The Company estimates the recoverable amount of an asset on an individual basis. If it is difficult to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the recoverable amount of the asset group is determined based on the asset group to which the individual asset belongs. Asset groups are identified based on whether the major cash inflows arising from the asset group are independent of those from other assets or groups of assets.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

3.17 Impairment of long-term assets (Continued)

(1) Impairment of non-current assets other than financial assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)

The net fair value less costs of disposal is determined by reference to the agreed sale price or observable market price of a similar asset in an arm's length transaction, less incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of the asset. When estimating the present value of future cash flows, management must estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or group of assets and select an appropriate discount rate to determine the present value of the future cash flows.

Once the impairment losses on the above assets are recognized, they are not reversed in subsequent accounting periods.

3.18 Employee benefits

The Company's employee benefits include short-term remuneration, post-employment benefits and termination benefits.

Short-term remuneration mainly includes employees' salaries, bonuses, allowances and subsidies, medical insurance, work-related injury insurance, maternity insurance, housing provident fund, employees welfare fees, trade union funds and employees' education funds, etc. The actual short-term remuneration incurred is recognized as a liability in the accounting period in which the employees render services and is charged to current profit or loss or the cost of related assets according to the beneficiaries.

Post-employment benefits mainly include basic endowment insurance premiums and unemployment insurance premiums, and are classified as defined contribution plans according to the risks and obligations assumed by the Company. Contributions that are paid to a separate entity under a defined contribution plan to obtain services provided by the employees during the accounting period on the balance sheet date, shall be recognized as liabilities, and included in the current profit or loss or related asset cost according to the beneficiaries.

Termination benefits arise from a decision to terminate the employment relationship with an employee prior to the expiration of the employee's employment contract or from an offer of compensation to encourage the employee to accept redundancy voluntarily. If the Company has formulated a formal plan for the termination of labor relations or proposed voluntary redundancy, and is about to implement it, and the Company cannot unilaterally withdraw the plan for the termination of labor relations or redundancy proposal, confirmation of the employee compensation liabilities arising from the termination of labor relations shall be recognized in the current profit or loss. Compensations payable for over a year shall be discounted at a discount rate and recognized in the current profit or loss.



3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING

ESTIMATES (Continued)

3.19 Provisions

When the businesses related to contingencies including external guarantee, the discount of commercial acceptance, pending litigation or arbitration and product quality assurance conform to the following conditions simultaneously, the Company recognizes them as liabilities: the obligation is a present obligation of the Company; it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits from the Company will result from the settlement of the obligation; and the amount for such obligation can be measured reliably.

A provision is initially measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the related present obligation. Factors surrounding a contingency, such as the risks, uncertainties and the time value of money, are taken into account as a whole in reaching the best estimate of a provision. The Company reviews the current best estimate and adjusts the book value of the provision at the balance sheet date.

Contingent liabilities of the acquiree acquired in a business combination not under common control are measured at fair value on initial recognition and subsequently measured at the higher of the amount to be recognized for the provision and the amount initially recognized less f accumulated amortization determined in accordance with the revenue recognition principle.

3.20 Revenue recognition principles and measurement methods

(1) Revenue recognition principles

The Company recognizes revenue when it has fulfilled its performance obligations under contracts, that is, when customers obtain control of the relevant goods or services.

At the contract start date, the Company evaluates the contract, identifies each individual performance obligation included in the contract and determines whether each individual performance obligation is to be performed within a certain period of time or at a certain point in time.

A performance obligation is fulfilled within a certain period of time if one of the following conditions is met; a performance obligation is fulfilled at a certain point in time if none of the following conditions are met: ① The customer obtains and consumes the economic benefits arising from the Company's performance at the time of the Company's performance; ② The customer is able to control the commodities under construction in the course of the Company's performance are of irreplaceable use and the Company is entitled to receive payment for the cumulative portion of performance completed to date throughout the term of the contract.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

3.20 Revenue recognition principles and measurement methods (Continued)

(1) **Revenue recognition principles** (Continued)

For performance obligations to be performed within a certain period of time, revenue is recognized by the Company in accordance with the progress of performance over that period. When the progress of performance cannot be reasonably determined, revenue is recognized based on the amount of costs already incurred until the progress of performance can be reasonably determined, if the costs already incurred are expected to be reimbursed.

For performance obligations performed at a point in time, revenue is recognized at the point in time when the customer obtains control of the related goods or services. In determining whether the customer has acquired control of the commodity, the Company considers the following indications: ① The Company has a present right to receive payment for the commodity; ② The Company has transferred legal title to the commodity to the customer; ③ The Company has physically transferred the commodity to the customer; ④ The Company has transferred to the customer the principal risks and rewards of ownership of the commodity; and ⑤ The customer has accepted the commodity or service, etc.

If a contract contains two or more performance obligations, the Company apportions the transaction price to each individual performance obligation at the beginning of the contract in proportion to the individual selling price of the goods or services promised by each individual performance obligation and measures income based on the transaction price apportioned to each individual performance obligation.

The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company is expected to be entitled as a result of the transfer of goods or services to the customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The transaction price recognized by the Company does not exceed the amount for which it is highly probable that there will be no material reversal of revenue recognized in the aggregate when the relevant uncertainty is resolved. Amounts expected to be refunded to customers as liability are not included in the transaction price. For contracts with a significant financing component, the Company determines the transaction price based on the amount payable that is assumed to be paid in cash by the customer at the time the customer obtains control of the goods, and uses a discount rate that discounts the notional amount of the contract consideration to the current selling price of the goods, and amortizes the difference between the determined transaction price and the promised consideration amount in the contract using the effective interest rate method during the contract period.



3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

3.20 Revenue recognition principles and measurement methods (Continued)

(1) Revenue recognition principles (Continued)

For sales with sales return clauses, the Company recognizes revenue at the amount of consideration that it expects to be entitled to receive as a result of the transfer of goods to the customer when the customer obtains control of the related goods, and recognizes a provision at the amount that it expects to be refunded as a result of the return of the goods. At the same time, the Company recognizes an asset, i.e., the cost of returned goods receivable, at the book value at the time of transfer of the goods expected to be returned, less the costs (including the value reduction of the returned goods) expected to be incurred in recovering the goods, and carries forward the cost at the book value at the time of transferred, less the cost of the asset mentioned above. At each balance sheet date, the Company re-estimates future sales returns and re-measures the above assets and liabilities.

According to the contract agreement, legal regulations, etc., the Company provides quality assurance for goods sold, which constitutes a warranty-type quality assurance to assure customers that the goods sold meet the established standards, and are accounted for by the Company in accordance with "Note III. 19. Provisions".

The Company's rights to receive consideration for goods or services that have been transferred to customers are presented as contract assets, and impairment of the contract assets is provided based on expected credit losses. The Company's unconditional rights to receive consideration from customers are presented as receivables. The Company's obligations to transfer goods or services to customers for consideration received or receivable are presented as contract liabilities.

(2) Specific methods of revenue recognition

For the sales of electrical products and accessories business, as the customer has gained control of the relevant goods after they have signed for or inspected the goods. Therefore, the Company considers the above operations to be the fulfillment of performance obligations at a certain point in time, and should recognize the related revenue when the goods have been delivered to the customers and signed for by the customers.

For business application solutions, application software, and the installation and maintenance of network and data security products, the customer acquires and consumes the economic benefits of the Company's performance at the same time as the Company's performance, and the customer can control the goods under construction in the course of the Company's performance. Therefore, the Company considers that the above two operations are the fulfillment of performance obligations within a certain period of time, and should recognize the corresponding revenue based on the progress of the performance of the relevant projects throughout the performance period.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

3.21 Government grants

Government grants are recognized when the conditions attached to them can be met and they are receivable. Government grants are measured at the amount actually received if they are monetary assets. For subsidies allocated according to a fixed flat rate, or when there is conclusive evidence at year-end that the relevant conditions specified in the financial support policy can be met and the financial support funds are expected to be received, the subsidies are measured at the amount receivable; Government grants are measured at fair value if they are non-monetary assets, or at a nominal amount (RMB1) if the fair value cannot be reliably obtained.

The Company's government grants include asset-related government grants and income-related government grants. Among them, asset-related government grants refer to government grants obtained by the Company for the acquisition and construction or other formation of long-term assets; incomerelated government grants refer to government grants other than asset-related government grants. If the subsidized subjects of the grants are not specified in government documents, the Company will make judgments in accordance with the above distinguishing principles, and if it is difficult to distinguish the grants, they will be classified as income-related government grants as a whole.

The Company recognizes asset-related government grants as deferred income. Asset-related government grants that are recognized as deferred income are allocated evenly over the useful lives of the related assets and recognized in profit or loss for the current period. If the related assets are sold, transferred, scrapped or destroyed before the end of their useful lives, the unallocated balance of the related deferred income is transferred to profit or loss for the period in which the assets are disposed of.

Income-related government grants used to compensate for the related costs and expenses or losses in subsequent periods are recognized as deferred income and charged to profit or loss for the period in which the related costs and expenses or losses are recognized. Government grants related to ordinary activities are charged to other income according to the substance of the economic operations. Government grants unrelated to ordinary activities are charged to non-operating income and expenses.

3.22 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

The Company's deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are recognized based on the difference between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their book values, as well as the difference (temporary difference) between the tax bases of items that are not recognized as assets and liabilities but whose tax bases can be determined in accordance with the provisions of the tax law and their book values.



3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

3.22 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities (Continued)

The Company recognizes deferred tax liabilities for all taxable temporary differences except for the following: ① Temporary differences arising from the initial recognition of goodwill or the initial recognition of assets or liabilities arising from transactions other than business combinations that affect neither the accounting profit nor taxable income (or deductible losses); ② Taxable temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures where the Company can control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The Company recognizes deferred tax assets for deductible temporary differences, deductible losses and tax credits to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income will be available to offset such deductible temporary differences, deductible losses and tax credits, except in the following circumstances: ① Temporary differences arising from the initial recognition of assets or liabilities arising from transactions other than business combinations that affect neither accounting profit nor taxable income (or deductible losses); ② Deductible temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures cannot simultaneously meet the following conditions: it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future, and it is probable that taxable income will be available to offset deductible temporary differences.

The Company recognizes deferred tax assets for all unutilized deductible losses to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable income will be available to offset the deductible losses. The management uses a substantial amount of judgment to estimate the timing and amount of future taxable income, in conjunction with tax planning strategies, to determine the amount of deferred tax assets to be recognized, hence there is uncertainty.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are measured at the balance sheet date at the tax rates that apply in the period in which the asset is expected to be recovered or the liability settled.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are presented in net amount after offsetting when the following conditions are simultaneously met: the Company has the legal right to settle current tax assets and current deferred tax liabilities on a net basis; deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity or different taxable entities, but in each future period in which deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities of significance are reversed, the taxable entities involved intend to either settle the current tax assets and current tax liabilities on a net basis or to acquire the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

3.23 Lease

(1) Identification of lease

At the contract start date, the Company assesses whether the contract is a lease or contains a lease. A contract is a lease or contains a lease if one party to the contract cedes the right to control the use of one or more identified assets for a specified period in exchange for consideration.

If a contract contains several separate leases at the same time, the Company splits the contract and accounts for each separate lease separately. If a contract contains both lease and nonlease components, the Company, as the lessor, splits the lease and non-lease components and accounts for each separately, with each lease component being accounted for separately in accordance with the lease standards, and the non-lease component being accounted for in accordance with other applicable accounting standards for businesses. If the Company is the lessee, it chooses not to split the lease and non-lease components, and consolidates each lease component and the non-lease component associated with it into a separate lease, which is accounted for in accordance with the lease standard; however, if the contract includes an embedded derivative that is subject to splitting, the Company does not consolidate it with the lease component for accounting purposes.

(2) The Company as the lessee

1) Lease recognition

Except for short-term leases and low-value asset leases, the Company recognizes rightof-use assets and lease liabilities for leases on the commencement date of the lease term.

A right-of-use asset, which represents the right of the Company as lessee to use a leased asset over the lease term, is initially measured at cost. The costs include: ① the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability; ② the amount of lease payments made on or before the commencement date of the lease term, net of the amount related to the lease incentive already enjoyed; ③ the initial direct costs incurred; and ④ the costs expected to be incurred for dismantling and removing the leased asset, restoring the site where the leased asset is located, or restoring the leased asset to the condition agreed upon in the terms of the lease (except for those incurred for the production of inventories). If the Company remeasures the lease liability in accordance with the relevant provisions of the lease standard, the book value of the right-of-use asset is adjusted accordingly.



3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

3.23 Lease (Continued)

(2) The Company as the lessee (Continued)

1) Lease recognition (Continued)

The Company depreciates right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis based on the way the economic benefits associated with the right-of-use asset are expected to be consumed. If ownership of the leased asset can be reasonably determined at the end of the lease term, depreciation is provided over the remaining useful life of the leased asset; if ownership of the leased asset cannot be reasonably determined at the end of the lease term, depreciation is provided over the shorter of the lease term or the remaining useful life of the leased asset. The amount of provision for depreciation is charged to the cost of the related assets or current profit or loss, depending on the use of the right-of-use assets.

The Company initially measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments outstanding at the commencement date of the lease term. Lease payments include: ① fixed payments and substantially fixed payments, net of amounts related to lease incentives; ② variable lease payments depending on index or ratio; ③ the exercise price of the purchase option if the Company reasonably determines that the purchase option will be exercised; ④ the amount to be paid to exercise the option to terminate the lease if the lease term reflects that the Company will exercise the option to terminate the lease; and ⑤ the amount expected to be paid based on the residual value of the guarantee provided by the Company.

In calculating the present value of the lease payments, the Company uses the interest rate embedded in the lease as the discount rate. The Company uses the incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate because it cannot determine the interest rate implicit in the lease. The Company calculates interest expense on lease liabilities at a fixed periodic rate for each period of the lease term and recognizes it in profit or loss for the current period, except when it should be capitalized.

After the commencement date of the lease term, the Company increases the book balance of the lease liability when it recognizes interest on the lease liability and decreases the book balance of the lease liability when it makes lease payments. When there is a change in the substantive fixed payments, a change in the amount expected to be payable for the residual value of the guarantee, a change in the index or rate used to determine the lease payments, a change in the appraisal of, or the actual exercise of, an option to purchase, an option to renew or an option to terminate the lease, the Company remeasures the lease liability based on the present value of the lease payments as a result of the change.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

3.23 Lease (Continued)

(2) The Company as the lessee (Continued)

2) Short-term leases and low-value asset leases

The Company chooses not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for shortterm leases with lease terms of less than 12 months and leases of low-value assets where the individual leased assets are brand-new assets. The Company recognizes lease payments for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets in the cost of the related assets or current profit or loss on a straight-line basis in each period of the lease term.

(3) The Company as the lessor

The Company, as a lessor, has only operating leases.

The Company recognizes lease receipts from operating leases as rental income using the straight-line method over the respective periods of the lease term.

The initial direct costs incurred by the Company in connection with operating leases should be capitalized to the cost of the underlying leased assets and amortized to current profit or loss over the lease terms on the same recognition basis as rental income. Variable lease payments acquired by the Company in connection with operating leases that are not included in the lease receipts are recognized in profit or loss when they are incurred.

If a change in an operating lease occurs, the Company accounts for it as a new lease from the effective date of the change, and the amount of lease receipts received in advance or receivable in connection with the lease before the change is the amount of lease receipts for the new lease.

3.24 Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation means that a component of the Company that can be separately distinguished from others and meets one of the following conditions is disposed of or classified as held-for-sale: (1) the component represents a separate major business or a separate major operating area; (2) the component is part of an associated plan to dispose of a separate major business or a separate major operating area; and (3) the component is a subsidiary acquired specifically for resale.

In the income statement, the Group has added "net profit from continuing operations" and "net profit from discontinued operations" to the income statement under "net profit" to net of tax to reflect the profit or loss related to continuing operations and the profit or loss related to discontinued operations respectively. The profit or loss related to discontinued operations should be presented as discontinued operations profit or loss, and the discontinued operation's profit or loss should be presented for the whole of the reporting period and not only for the reporting period after it is recognized as discontinued operations.



3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

3.25 Fair value measurement

The Company measures derivative financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that a market participant would receive for selling an asset or pay for transferring a liability in an orderly transaction occurring on the measurement date.

Assets and liabilities that are measured or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements are identified within the fair value hierarchy based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: Level 1 inputs are unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that are available at the measurement date; level 2 inputs are inputs other than level 1 inputs that are directly or indirectly observable for the related assets or liabilities; and level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the underlying assets or liabilities.

At each balance sheet date, the Company reassesses the assets and liabilities recognized in the financial statements that are continuously measured at fair value to determine whether a transition between the fair value measurement hierarchy has occurred.

3.26 Other significant accounting policies and accounting estimates

(1) Segment information

The Company's operating segments are defined in accordance with its internal organizational structure, management regulations and internal reporting system. An operating segment is a component of the Company that fulfills all the following conditions:

- (a) The component is capable of generating revenue and incurring expenses in the ordinary course of its activities;
- (b) The management of the Company reviews the operating results of the segment on a regular basis to determine the allocation of resources to it and to assess its performance; and
- (c) The Company has access to information about the segment's financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

The Company defines its reportable segments based on operating segments. Inter-segment revenue is measured based on the actual transaction price of such transactions.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

3.27 Changes in significant accounting policies and accounting estimates

(1) Significant changes in accounting policies

The content and reasons for changes in	
accounting policies	

The Ministry of Finance issued Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises Interpretation No. 16 on November 30th, 2022 Since the date of issuance, the Company has implemented the "Accounting for the income tax effects of dividends related to financial instruments classified as equity instruments by the issuer" and the "Accounting for the modification of cash-settled sharebased payments by an enterprise to equity-settled share-based payments". Implementation of "Accounting for deferred income taxes related to assets and liabilities arising from individual transactions not applicable to the initial recognition exemption" as of January 1st, 2023.

Note: On November 30th, 2022, the Ministry of Finance issued Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises Interpretation No. 16 (Caikuai [2022] No. 31): "① Accounting for the income tax effects of dividends related to financial instruments classified as equity instruments by the issuer, ② Accounting for the modification of cashsettled share-based payments by an enterprise to equity-settled share-based payments, ③ Accounting for deferred income taxes related to assets and liabilities arising from individual transactions not applicable to the initial recognition exemption".

For a single transaction that is not a business combination and does not affect either accounting profit or taxable income (or deductible losses) at the time the transaction occurs, and the initial recognition of assets and liabilities results in the creation of taxable temporary differences and deductible temporary differences in equal amounts, the exemption from initial recognition of deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets in Accounting Standard for Business Enterprises No. 18 - Income Taxes does not apply. For a single transaction to which this provision applies that occurs between the beginning of the earliest period for which the financial statements are presented for the first time and the date of implementation, and for an estimated liability related to an abandonment obligation and a corresponding related asset recognized at the beginning of the earliest period for a single transaction to which this provision applies that gives rise to a taxable temporary difference and a deductible temporary difference, an enterprise shall make adjustments in accordance with this provision.



Notes

Note

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

3.27 Changes in significant accounting policies and accounting estimates (Continued)

(1) Significant changes in accounting policies (Continued)

The Company implemented this regulation on January 1st, 2023 and the main impacts of the implementation of this regulation are as follows:

Affected items	Decembe	December 31st, 2022 (consolidated)		December 31st, 2022 (parent company)		
	Before adjustment	Adjustment amount	After adjustment	Before adjustment	Adjustment amount	After adjustment
	aujustinent	anount	Alter aujustillent	aujustment	amount	aujustinent
Statement of financial position items						
Total assets	47,548,526.62	662,085.36	48,210,611.98	46,872,840.89	662,085.36	47,534,926.25
Including: Deferred income tax						
assets		662,085.36	662,085.36		662,085.36	662,085.36
Total liabilities	21,911,665.69	649,774.16	22,561,439.75	21,493,138.44	649,774.16	22,142,912.60
Including: Deferred income tax						
liabilities		649,774.16	649,774.16		649,774.16	649,774.16
Statement of Profit and Loss iter	ns					
Net profit	-21,838,255.21	-232,108.66	-21,606,146.55	-20,918,564.67	-232,108.66	-20,686,456.01
Enterprise income tax		-232,108.66	-232,108.66		-232,108.66	-232,108.66

(2) Significant changes in accounting estimates

None.

4. TAXES

4.1 Main tax types and rates

ome 13%/6%/9%
7%
5%
15%

	Income Tax
Name of taxpayer	Rate
The Company	15.00%
Jiaoda Withub (Hong Kong) Limited	16.50%

Note: The Company's major operations are in the mainland; therefore, the tax expense is mainly in the mainland.

4.2 Tax incentives and approvals

(1) Corporate income tax

The Company obtained the "High and New Technology Enterprise Certificate (Certificate No. GR202231007910)" issued by the Shanghai Municipal Science and Technology Commission, Shanghai Municipal Bureau of Finance, and Shanghai Municipal Taxation Bureau of the State Administration of Taxation on December 14th, 2022, with a validity period of 3 years. According to the Law of the People's Republic of China on Enterprise Income Tax, the applicable enterprise income tax rate of the Company for FY2023 is 15%.

(2) Value-added tax (VAT)

According to the Notice of the Ministry of Finance and the State Administration of Taxation on Comprehensively Implementing the Pilot Program of Changing Business Tax to Value-added Tax (Caishui [2016] No. 36), taxpayers entrusted with the provision of technological development and related technical consulting and technical services are exempted from value-added tax (VAT).

According to the Announcement of the Ministry of Finance and the State Administration of Taxation on Clarifying the Policies of VAT Reduction and Exemption for small-scale Taxpayers (Caishui [2023] No. 1), Article 3 (1): Taxpayers of producer services are allowed to deduct 5% of the tax payable in accordance with the current deductible input tax.

The Company applied the above VAT incentives for FY2023.



5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial statement data disclosed below, unless specifically indicated, "Beginning balance" refers to January 1st, 2023; "Ending Balance" refers to December 31st, 2023. "Current Year" refers to the period from January 1st, 2023 to December 31st, 2023; "Last Year" refers to the period from January 1st, 2022 to December 31st, 2022.

5.1 Cash and cash equivalents

	Ending	Beginning
Item	Balance	Balance
Cash	37,497.92	23,523.12
Cash at bank	17,599,693.12	19,752,614.15
Other cash and cash equivalents	232,284.58	421,074.58
Total	17,869,475.62	20,197,211.85
Including: total amount deposited overseas	292,779.88	674,430.60

Note: Among the cash at bank of the Company, RMB232,284.58 were deposits for letter of guarantee (2022: RMB421,074.58).

The interest rate of deposits is according to the market rate, which was from 0.30% to 2.10% (2022: from 0.30% to 2.10%).

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5.2 Account receivables

(1) Accounts receivable disclosed according to age of receivable

The average credit period granted by the Company to its customers ranges from 90 to 180 days. For customers with well-performed credit histories and government agencies with reliable financial condition, credit periods of more than 180 days can be granted. Based on the date of products delivered or the date of services were afforded (which is an approximate estimate of the confirmed date of recognition), an aging analysis of accounts receivable (with the deduction of provision for bad debts) will be presented as follows:

	Ending	Beginning
Age of Accounts receivables	Balance	Balance
Less than one year	4,029,619.39	4,560,045.00
including: 0-3 months	1,959,776.37	4,560,045.00
4–6 months	1,078,389.53	
7–12 months	991,453.49	
1-2 years	941,547.00	988,426.64
2-3 years	218,130.22	
Over 3 years	4,551,878.55	4,648,063.84
Total	9,741,175.16	10,196,535.48
Less: provision for bad debts	4,413,558.57	5,148,614.77
Net value	5,327,616.59	5,047,920.71



5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5.2 Account receivables (Continued)

(2) Accounts receivables disclosed according to bad debt provision method

	Book ba	alance	Bad debt	provision	
Category	Amount	Percent %	Amount	Percent %	Book value
Bad debt provision on portfolio	9,741,175.16	100.00	4,413,558.57	45.31	5,327,616.59
Of which: ageing portfolio	8,443,177.96	86.68	4,413,558.57	52.27	4,029,619.39
others	1,297,997.20	13.32			1,297,997.20
Total	9,741,175.16	100.00	4,413,558.57	45.31	5,327,616.59

		Beginning	g Balance		
	Book ba	llance	Bad debt p	provision	
Category	Amount	Percent %	Amount	Percent %	Book value
Bad debt provision on portfolio	10,196,535.48	100.00	5,148,614.77	50.49	5,047,920.71
Of which: ageing portfolio	9,708,659.77	95.22	5,148,614.77	53.03	4,560,045.00
others	487,875.71	4.78			487,875.71
Total	10,196,535.48	100.00	5,148,614.77	50.49	5,047,920.71

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 5.

5.2 Account receivables (Continued)

Accounts receivables disclosed according to bad debt provision method (Continued) (2)

1) Accounts receivables in portfolio whose bad debts provision is made based on aging as credit risk characteristics

	E	Ending Balance			Beginning Balance		
	Accounts	Bad debt	Expected	Accounts	Bad debt	Expected	
Aging	receivables	provision	loss rate %	receivables	provision	loss rate %	
Less than one year	4,029,619.39			4,560,045.00			
Including: 0-3 months	1,959,776.37			4,560,045.00			
4-6 months	1,078,389.53						
7-12 months	991,453.49						
1-2 years	23,850.00	23,850.00	100.00	864,736.42	864,736.42	100.00	
2-3 years	198,830.22	198,830.22	100.00				
Over 3 years	4,190,878.35	4,190,878.35	100.00	4,283,878.35	4,283,878.35	100.00	
Total	8,443,177.96	4,413,558.57	52.27	9,708,659.77	5,148,614.77	53.00	

2) Accounts receivable in the portfolio whose bad debts provision is made based on other credit risk characteristics

	E	Ending Balance		Beginning Balance)
	Accounts	Bad debt	Expected	Accounts	Bad debt	Expected
Aging	receivables	provision	loss rate %	receivables	provision	loss rate %
Guarantee deposit and						
project payment withir credit period	1,283,787.20			473,665.71		
Related parties with regu	ılar					
transactions	14,210.00			14,210.00		
Total	1,297,997.20			487,875.71		



5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5.2 Account receivables (Continued)

(3) The movement of bad debt provision

	Ending	Beginning
Aging	Balance	Balance
At 1 st January	5,148,614.77	4,283,878.35
Cancellation of bad debts		
Additional bad debt provision	103,480.22	864,736.42
Reversal of bad debt provision	838,536.42	
At 31 st December	4,413,558.57	5,148,614.77

(4) Analysis of overdue receivables but not be impaired at balance date

	Ending	Beginning
Aging	Balance	Balance
Not overdue and no impairment	4,336,163.10	4,560,045.00
Overdue but no impairment		
7 months to 12 months (inclusive)	991,453.49	
Over 1 year		487,875.71
Total	5,327,616.59	5,047,920.71

Note 1: The account receivables, which are not overdue and not be impaired, are mainly the customers currently without defaulted records.

Note 2: The account receivables, which are overdue but not be impaired, are mainly the customers with good payment records. According to previous experiences, management believes provision for bad debts are not needed, because there is no change in credit quality and the balance of total accounts receivables are recoverable.

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5.2 Account receivables (Continued)

(5) The top 5 of account receivables

		ending balance of accounts receivables	Ending balance of	
Company name	Ending Balance	(%)	bad debt provision	
No.1	2,251,500.00	23.11	2,251,500.00	
No.2	1,066,118.00	10.95		
No.3	917,697.00	9.42		
No.4	912,153.49	9.36		
No.5	801,832.00	8.23		
Total	5,949,300.49	61.07	2,251,500.00	

5.3 Prepayments

(1) Aging analysis

Beg	inning Balance
% Amo	ount Percent %
68 27,592	2.65 95.30
32 1,360	0.00 4.70
00 28,952	2.65 100.00
).	.00 28,952



5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5.4 Other receivables

tem	S	Ending Balance	Beginning Balance
	-		
ntere	est receivable		
Divid	end receivable		
Othe	r receivables	968,477.76	927,873.17
Tota	I	968,477.76	927,873.17
1)	Other receivables disclosed by nature		
		Ending	Beginning
	Nature	Balance	Balance
	Bond, petty cash, deposit	921,945.97	997,928.97
	Current account	659,581.79	542,994.20
	Total	1,581,527.76	1,540,923.17
2)	Aging analysis		
		Ending	Beginning
	Aging	Balance	Balance
	Within 1 year	610,859.58	430,874.20
	More than 1 year	970,668.18	1,110,048.97
	Total	1,581,527.76	1,540,923.17
	Provision of bad debts	613,050.00	613,050.00
	Net value	968,477.76	927,873.17

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5.4 Other receivables (Continued)

(3) Other receivables classified by bad debt provisioning methods

	Book b	alance	Bad debt	provision	
Category	Amount	Percent %	Amount	Percent %	Book value
Bad debt provision on portfolio	1,581,527.76	100.00	613,050.00	38.76	968,477.76
Including: ageing portfolio	659,581.79	41.71	613,050.00	92.95	46,531.79
Others	921,945.97	58.29			921,945.97
Total	1,581,527.76	100.00	613,050.00	38.76	968,477.76

Note: Others includes bond, petty cash and deposit.

Book ba	llance	Bad debt p	provision	
Amount	Percent %	Amount	Percent %	Book value
1,540,923.17	100.00	613,050.00	39.78	927,873.17
654,977.63	42.51	613,050.00	93.60	41,927.63
885,945.54	57.49			885,945.54
1.540.923.17	100.00	613.050.00	39.78	927.873.17
	Amount 1,540,923.17 654,977.63	Book balance Amount Percent % 1,540,923.17 100.00 654,977.63 42.51 885,945.54 57.49	Amount Percent % Amount 1,540,923.17 100.00 613,050.00 654,977.63 42.51 613,050.00 885,945.54 57.49	Book balance Bad debt provision Amount Percent % Amount Percent % 1,540,923.17 100.00 613,050.00 39.78 654,977.63 42.51 613,050.00 93.60 885,945.54 57.49 57.49 57.49

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5.4 Other receivables (Continued)

(4) The movement of bad debt provision during this year

	Ending	Beginning
Aging	Balance	Balance
At 1 st January	613,050.00	613,050.00
Cancellation of bad debts		
Additional bad debt provision		
Reversal of bad debt provision		
At 31 st December	613,050.00	613,050.00

(5) The top 5 of other receivables

Company	Nature	Ending Balance	Aging	Percentage of total ending balance of other receivable (%)	Ending balance of bad debt provision
No.1	Deposit	364.000.00	Less than one year	23.01	
No.2	Current account	280,460.00	More than one year	17.73	280,460.00
No.3	Current account	200,000.00	More than one year	12.65	200,000.00
No.4	Bond	200,000.00	More than one year	12.65	
No.5	Deposit	91,132.50	Less than one year	5.76	
Total		1,135,592.50		71.80	480,460.00

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5.4 Other receivables (Continued)

(6) Receivables of employees' borrowing

	Administration				
	and				
	Management	Software	Arbitration		
Department	Department	department	team	Total	
Purpose	Petty cash	Petty cash	Petty cash	Petty cash	
Amount					
- Current year	23,025.68	7,881.62	45,000.00	75,907.30	
- Last year					
Bad debt provision					

5.5 Inventories

(1) Inventories by nature

		Ending Balance		E	Beginning Balance	
		Inventory			Inventory	
		Impairment/			Impairment/	
		Provision for			Provision for	
		impairment			impairment	
		of contract			of contract	
	Book	performance		Book	performance	
Item	Balance	costs	Book Value	Balance	costs	Book Value
Merchandises	614,593.51	610,464.29	4,129.22	611,340.34	610,464.29	876.05
Contract performance cost	565,959.03		565,959.03	670,986.58		670,986.58
Total	1,180,552.54	610,464.29	570,088.25	1,282,326.92	610,464.29	671,862.63



5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5.5 Inventories (Continued)

(2) Inventory Impairment

			Deduction		
	Beginning			Transferred	Ending
Item	Balance	Addition	Reversal	out	Balance
Merchandises	610,464.29		-		610,464.29
Total	610,464.29		-		610,464.29

1) Provisions of inventory impairment

Item	Basis of determination on net realisable value	Reasons for reversa or write-off		
Merchandises	The net realizable value is determined by the estimated selling price of merchandise deducting its estimated sales expenses and relevant taxes	No reversal or write-off during current year		

5.6 Other current assets

	Beginning	Ending
Item	Balance	Balance
Prepaid expenses	80,000.00	
Total	80,000.00	

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5.7 Long-term equity investment

(1) Classification of long-term equity investment

	Ending	Beginning
Item	Balance	Balance
Under equity method	36,317,000.00	52,317,000.00
Proportion of takeover loss and other		
comprehensive (deduct received dividend)	-16,056,427.43	-24,272,385.66
Total of long-term equity investment	20,260,572.57	28,044,614.34
Less: Impairment of the long-term equity investment	12,624,000.00	16,133,375.52
Value of long-term equity investment	7,636,572.57	11,911,238.82

Note: As at 31 December 2023, the investment costs, coming from associated companies, include goodwill amounted to RMB2,699,000.00, the related investment value with associated companies has been impaired fully in the past years.

(2) Long-term equity investment computed under equity method

	Increase/Decrease for the year											
	Investment Beginning Gain or Loss Other Announced						Ending					
Investee	Beginning Balance	balance of provision for impairment	Additional Investment	Reduction of Investment	recognized under equity method	comprehensive income adjustment	Changes in other equity	cash dividends or profit	Provision for impairment	Others	Ending Balance	Balance of Provision for Impairment
Associated Companies Including: Hold by the Company Shanghai Jiaoda Withub	0 701 050 74	9 500 975 50								0 701 050 74		
Technology Limited Shanghai Jiaoda Technology Park and information technology (Shangrao)	8,731,358.74	3,509,375.52								-8,731,358.74		
Limited Shanghai TonTron Information and	10,000,000.00	10,000,000.00									10,000,000.00	10,000,000.00
technology co.Limited Shanghai Withub Duogao Information Engineer	4,446,725.11				809,545.03						5,256,270.14	
Limited Subsidiary holds	2,242,530.49				137,771.94						2,380,302.43	
Union Genesis Limited	2,624,000.00	2,624,000.00									2,624,000.00	2,624,000.00
Total	28,044,614.34	16,133,375.52			947,316.97					-8,731,358.74	20,260,572.57	12,624,000.00

Note: Shanghai Jiaoda Withub Technology Limited's liquidation plan was confirmed by the Shanghai Railway Transport Court with '(2021) Hu 7101 Qiangqing II' and the compulsory liquidation was completed.



5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5.8 Other non-current financial assets

(1) Classification of other non-current financial assets

	Ending	Beginning	
Investee	Balance	Balance	
Shanghai Jiaoda Withub Techonological			
Street Limited	4,377,803.44	4,362,563.80	
Total	4,377,803.44	4,362,563.80	

(2) Investment in other non-current financial assets

		Changes in fair value during the current		Current year
	Beginning	reporting	Ending	dividend
Item	Balance	period	Balance	income
Shanghai Jiaoda Withub Technological Street Limited	4,362,563.80	15,239.64	4,377,803.44	22,200.00
Total	4,362,563.80	15,239.64	4,377,803.44	22,200.00

Note: Other non-current financial assets are mainly equity investments in non-listed companies. If there is no recent equity transaction price of unlisted company, the Company will identify it as at Level 3 fair value measurement. Since there is no significant change in the business environment, operating conditions and financial status of the invested enterprise, the Company uses investment cost and its share in the net assets of the invested enterprise as reference and measure it as a reasonable estimate of the fair value.

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5.9 Fixed Asset

Item	Ending Balance	Beginning Balance
Fixed asset Fixed asset clean up	48,415.82	69,075.29
Total	48,415.82	69,075.29

(1) General situation of fixed assets

			Lease		Office	
			Improvement	Transportation	Equipment	
lte	m		Project	Equipment	and others	Total
I.	Ori	ginal book value				
	1.	Beginning balance	1,555,466.00	681,463.18	355,280.93	2,592,210.11
	2.	Increase for the period				
	3.	Decrease for the period			96,436.10	96,436.10
		(1) Disposal or scrapped			96,436.10	96,436.10
	4.	Ending balance	1,555,466.00	681,463.18	258,844.83	2,495,774.01
П.	Ac	cumulated depreciation				
	1.	Beginning balance	1,555,466.00	661,019.28	306,649.54	2,523,134.82
	2.	Increase for the period			15,888.25	15,888.25
		(1) Depreciation			15,888.25	15,888.25
	3.	Decrease for the period			91,664.88	91,664.88
		(1) Disposal or scrapped			91,664.88	91,664.88
	4.	Ending balance	1,555,466.00	661,019.28	230,872.91	2,447,358.19
Ш.	Im	pairment				
	1.	Beginning balance				
	2.	Increase for the period				
	3.	Decrease for the period				
	4.	Ending balance				
IV.	Net	t value				
	1.	Beginning balance		20,443.90	48,631.39	69,075.29
	2.	Increase for the period		20,443.90	27,971.92	48,415.82



5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5.10 Right-of-use assets

			Houses and	
Ite	m		buildings	Total
ь.	Or	iginal book value		
	1.	Beginning balance	7,219,712.83	7,219,712.83
	2.	Increase for the period		
	З.	Decrease for the period		
	4.	Ending balance	7,219,712.83	7,219,712.83
н.	Ac	cumulated depreciation		
	1.	Beginning balance	2,887,885.13	2,887,885.13
	2.	Increase for the period	2,165,913.85	2,165,913.85
		(1) Depreciation	2,165,913.85	2,165,913.85
	З.	Decrease for the period		
	4.	Ending balance	5,053,798.98	5,053,798.98
ш.	lm	pairment		
	1.	Beginning balance		
	2.	Increase for the period		
	З.	Decrease for the period		
	4.	Ending balance		
IV.	Ne	t value		
	1.	Beginning balance	4,331,827.70	4,331,827.70
	2.	Ending balance	2,165,913.85	2,165,913.85

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5.11 Intangible assets

(1) General situation of intangible assets

		Acquired trade	Development	
lte	m	name	costs	Total
L.	Original book value			
	1. Beginning Balance	6,000,000.00	3,679,082.63	9,679,082.63
	2. Increase for the period	0,000,000,000	0,010,002100	0,010,002.00
	3. Decrease for the period			
	4. Ending Balance	6,000,000.00	3,679,082.63	9,679,082.63
П.				
	1. Beginning Balance	6,000,000.00	3,679,082.63	9,679,082.63
	2. Increase for the period			
	3. Decrease for the period			
	4. Ending Balance	6,000,000.00	3,679,082.63	9,679,082.63
Ш.	Impairment provision			
	1. Beginning Balance			
	2. Increase for the period			
	3. Decrease for the period			
	4. Ending Balance			
IV.	Net value			
	1. Ending book value			
	2. Beginning book value			

- Note 1: Acquired trade name represents an one-off fee paid to Shanghai Jiao Tong University (上海交通大學) for using the name "交大" and the right to engage the Electronic Information Institute of Shanghai Jiao Tong University to provide research and development support on a recovery cost basis. The total fee paid for the above contractual rights is RMB6, 000,000. The contract term is 10 years and is renewable for a further term of 10 years at the discretion of the Company.
- Note 2: Development costs represent internally-generated assets relating to the development of an information sharing platform project. Meanwhile, the relevant project was completed in 2014, and the remaining development costs was fully amortized during the year.
- Note 3: The above intangible asset has limited useful life. Such intangible asset is amortized on a straight-line basis over the following periods:

Acquired trade name:

20 years

Development costs:

estimate over the project period



5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5.12 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

(1) Unoffset deferred income tax assets

	Ending balance		Opening b	alance	
	Deductible		Deductible		
	temporary	Deferred	temporary	Deferred	
Item	difference	tax assets	difference	tax assets	
Lease liabilities	2,292,670.37	343,900.56	4,413,902,37	662,085.36	
Total	2,292,670.37	343,900.56	4,413,902,37	662,085.36	

(2) Unoffset deferred income tax liabilities

	Ending balance		Opening b	alance
	taxable		taxable	
	temporary	deferred	temporary	deferred
Item	difference	tax liabilities	difference	tax liabilities
Right-of-use assets	2,165,913.85	324,887.08	4,331,827.70	649,774.16
Total	2,165,913.85	324,887.08	4,331,827.70	649,774.16

(3) Unrecognized deferred tax assets (Temporary difference)

Item	Ending balance	Opening balance
Bad debt provision	5,026,608.57	5,761,664.77
Inventories impairment	610,464.29	610,464.29
Impairment of long-term equity investment	12,624,000.00	16,133,375.52
Deductible loss	118,996,822.92	75,696,551.31
Total	137,257,895.78	98,202,055.89

Note: Due to the uncertainty of acquiring enough taxable income in the near futures, deductible temporary difference and deductible accumulated loss are not recognized as deferred tax assets.

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5.12 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities (Continued)

(4) Deductible loss of unrecognized deferred tax assets expired in following period

Ending	Opening	
balance	balance	
	75,696,551.31	
118,996,822.92		
118 996 822 92	75,696,551.31	
	balance	

5.13 Assets with restrictions on ownership or use

	E	nding balance			0	pening balance		
	Book	Net	Restricted	Restricted	Book	Net	Restricted	Restricted
Item	balance	value	Туре	Condition	balance	value	Туре	Condition
Cash and cash equivalents	232,284.58	232,284.58	Hypothecation	Bond deposit	421,074.58	421,074.58	Hypothecation	Bond deposit
Total	232,284.58	232,284.58			421,074.58	421,074.58		



5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5.14 Accounts payables

(1) Accounts payables

	Ending	Opening
Item	balance	balance
Projects	8,982,668.18	6,124,136.67
Goods	1,971,337.01	3,073,044.06
Total	10,954,005.19	9,197,180.73

(2) Significant trade payable and aging over 1 year

Ending Reasonable	
552,310.88	Not settled
504,519.00	Not settled
376,356.00	Not settled
320,813.00	Not settled
	552,310.88 504,519.00 376,356.00

(3) Age analysis of trade payables

At 31 December 2023, the aging analysis based on the invoice date of trade payables presented as follows:

Item	Ending balance	Opening balance
Within 1 year	7,513,847.17	6,763,870.20
More than 1 year	3,440,158.02	2,433,310.53
Total	10,954,005.19	9,197,180.73

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5.15 Contract liabilities

(1) Information about contract liabilities

	Ending	Opening	
Item	balance	balance	
Accrued receivables	2,845,187.24	1,905,211.99	
Total	2,845,187.24	1,905,211.99	

5.16 Payroll Payable

(1) Classification of payroll payable

Item	Beginning Balance	Increasing during current year	Decreasing during current year	Ending Balance
Short-term payroll	1,975,000.83	18,492,311.02	19,037,198.31	1,430,113.54
Post-employment benefits - Defined contribution plan	149,742.10	2,299,143.53	2,269,671.71	179,213.92
Termination Benefit		411,422.00	411,422.00	
Total	2,124,742.93	21,202,876.55	21,718,292.02	1,609,327.46

(2) Short-term payroll

ltem	Beginning Balance	Increasing during current year	Decreasing during current year	Ending Balance
Wages (including bonuses, allowances and subsidies)	1,200,312.45	15,728,765.64	15,830,450.24	1,098,627.85
Staff welfare	146,211.80	53,470.80	199,682.60	
Social insurance	378,541.72	1,379,349.38	1,649,644.52	108,246.58
Including: Medical insurance	377,033.31	1,353,292.84	1,623,877.09	106,449.06
Work-related injury insurance	1,508.41	26,056.54	25,767.43	1,797.52
Maternity insurance				
Housing fund	67,230.20	994,138.00	985,309.20	76,059.00
Labour union expenditure and employee education fund	182,704.66	336,587.20	372,111.75	147,180.11
Total	1,975,000.83	18,492,311.02	19,037,198.31	1,430,113.54



5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5.16 Payroll Payable (Continued)

(3) Defined contribution plan

The Company participates in local social insurance and pays related fees according to local government policy. Except fees paid as mentioned, the Company don't undertake further payment. Related expenditures accounted in current profit or loss.

The amount the company pays to endowment insurance and unemployment insurance is as follow:

Item	Beginning Balance	Increasing during current year	Decreasing during current year	Ending Balance
Basic pension insurance	145,370.31	2,229,239.10	2,200,849.84	173,759.57
Unemployment insurance	4,371.79	69,904.43	68,821.87	5,454.35
Total	149,742.10	2,299,143.53	2,269,671.71	179,213.92

Note: The Company has RMB2,299,143.53 of defined contribution plan need to be paid this year. There is an decrease of this amount comparing with last year, since some employees of POP Badminton Department and Arbitration team quitted in 2023. (2022: RMB2,830,081.72) At closing date 2023-12-31, the company still has RMB179,213.92 (2022: RMB149,742.10) need to be paid which has been paid after the report date.

For the two financial years ending on 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2023 respectively, there remain no forfeited contributions under the Group's undefined contribution plan (employers on behalf of employees who leave the scheme before full attribution to the contribution) that are available to the Group to reduce the existing level of contributions.

5.17 Tax payable

	Ending	Beginning
Item	Balance	Balance
Value-added Tax	331,934.16	103,261.24
Individual Income	45,936.68	50,342.35
Urban Maintenance and Construction Tax	23,235.39	7,228.29
Educational Surtax	9,958.02	3,097.84
Local Educational Surtax	6,638.68	2,065.22
Tax Stamp Tax	14,046.04	7,188.99
Total	431,748.97	173,183.93

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5.18 Other payables

Nature	Ending Balance	Beginning Balance
Interest payables		
Dividends payables		
Other payables	2,167,622.78	4,097,443.64
Total	2,167,622.78	4,097,443.64

(1) Other payables classified by nature

	Ending	Beginning	
Nature	Balance	Balance	
Estimated expenses	558,000.00	558,000.00	
Others	1,609,622.78	3,539,443.64	
Total	2,167,622.78	4,097,443.64	

5.19 Current portion of non-current liabilities

Item	Ending Balance	Beginning Balance
Current portion of lease liabilities	2,292,670.37	2,188,246.21
Total	2,292,670.37	2,188,246.21

5.20 Other current liabilities

Total	5,943.40	
Output tax to be transferred	5,943.40	
Item	Ending Balance	Beginning Balance

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5.21 Lease liability

Item	Ending Balance	Beginning Balance
Lease expense payables	2,292,670.37	4,413,902.37
The book value of the above-mentioned lease		
liabilities must be repaid during the following periods:		
Less than one year	2,292,670.37	
1-2 year		
Deduct: lease liability due within one year under current		
liabilities	2,292,670.37	2,188,246.21
Lease liability items under non-current liabilities		2,225,656.16

5.22 Share capital

The movement of authorized, issued and paid-in share capital are set out as follows. All shares of the Company are the ordinary shares of nominal value of RMB0.1 each.

	Changes during the year (+,-)			_			
				Converted			
	Beginning	Issue of new	Stock	from public			Ending
Item	Balance	shares	dividends	reserve	Others	Subtotal	Balance
Total shares	48,000,000.00						48,000,000.00
Domestic shares	34,800,000.00						34,800,000.00
Overseas listed foreign shares	13,200,000.00						13,200,000.00

Note: Domestic shares and H shares are the ordinary shares of the company. However, H shares can only subscribe or trade in HKD by legal entity or natural person of Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan or other countries, except for China, and domestic shares must be subscribed or traded in RMB by legal entity and nature person of China. All dividends of H share should be paid in HKD, and all dividends of domestic shares should be paid in RMB. Besides, all domestic shares or H shares have equal rights, and declaration of dividends, distribution shares or dividends distribution have the equal status.

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5.23 Capital reserve

Item	Beginning Balance	Increasing during current year	Decreasing during current year	Ending Balance
Share capital premium	61,068,451.89			61,068,451.89
Other capital reserve	16,239,897.31			16,239,897.31
Total	77,308,349.20			77,308,349.20

Note: The Company, in the early stage of its incorporation, obtained technology know-how from a promoter of the Company, Shanghai Jiao Tong University, at nil consideration. In February 2000, the Company injected this technology know-how, the Courts Management Information System, into Withub Technology at the value of RMB16, 000,000 in exchange for 44.44% equity interest in Withub Technology. The value of the contributed technology know-how by Shanghai Jiao Tong University was recorded in the capital reserve of the Company.

5.24 Other Comprehensive Income

Total	1,444,781.88	107,745.67				107,745.	67	1,552,527.55
	1,11,101,00							
In which: Foreign currency translation difference	1,444,781.88	107,745.67				107,745.0	57	1,552,527.55
2. Item that may be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss:	1,444,781.88	107,745.67				107,745.0	67	1,552,527.55
1. Item that may not be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss								
ltem	Balance	current year	and loss	earnings	expense	after tax	after tax	Balance
	Beginning	tax for the	profit	to retained	Income tax	company	shareholders	Ending
		income	to current	previous year	Less:	to parent	to minority	
		before	previous year	income of		Attributable	Attributable	
		Amount	income of	comprenhensive				
			comprehensive	from other				
			from other	Transferred				
			Transferred	Less:				
			Less:					
				Amount for the	e year			_



5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5.25 Surplus reserve

Item	Beginning Balance	Increasing during current year	Decreasing during current year	Ending Balance
Statutory surplus reserves	148,641.53			148,641.53
Statutory welfare reserve	74,320.76			74,320.76
Total	222,962.29			222,962.29

5.26 Undistributed profits

Item	Current Year	Last Year
Year-end balance at the end of last year	-101,326,921.14	-79,500,977.13
Add: Undistributed profit adjustments at the		
beginning of the year		-219,797.46
Of which: changes in accounting policies		-219,797.46
Beginning Balance	-101,326,921.14	-79,720,774.59
Add: net profits of current year attribute to		
parent company's owners	-6,989,010.94	-21,606,146.55
Ending Balance	-108,315,932.08	-101,326,921.14

5.27 Operating income & Operating cost

(1) Operating income & Operating cost

	Curren	Last Year		
Item	Income	Cost	Income	Cost
Main operation	41,099,508.38	29,681,623.39	34,875,312.52	27,743,873.13
Other operation	1,561,985.81	593,348.50	1,127,518.00	1,472,502.19
Total	42,661,494.19	30,274,971.89	36,002,830.52	29,216,375.32

Note: The income from other operation was mainly the income of rental.

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5.27 Operating income & Operating cost (Continued)

(2) Information relating to income from contracts

1) Income from main operation by category

	Curren	t Year	Last '	Year
Contract classification	Income	Cost	Income	Cost
the sales of electrical products	1,366,340.30	912,280.63	1,993,461.47	1,598,476.23
Commerial application program and software Installation and maintenance of network and	21,637,580.91	15,690,763.83	26,030,617.26	21,503,284.22
data security products	18,095,587.17	13,078,578.93	6,851,233.79	4,642,112.68
Total	41,099,508.38	29,681,623.39	34,875,312.52	27,743,873.13

2) Operating income – classified by region

	Current	Current Year		
Region	Income	Cost	Income	Cost
Mainland China	41,099,508.38	29,681,623.39	34,875,312.52	27,743,873.13
Total	41,099,508.38	29,681,623.39	34,875,312.52	27,743,873.13

3) Operating income – classified by recognition time

		Commerial	Installation and maintenance	
	the sales	application	of network and	
	of electrical	program and	data security	
Item	products	software	products	Current year
Within a certain period of time		21,637,580.91	18,095,587.17	39,733,168.08
At a certain point of time	1,366,340.30			1,366,340.30
Total	1,366,340.30	21,637,580.91	18,095,587.17	41,099,508.38



5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5.27 Operating income & Operating cost (Continued)

(2) Information relating to income from contracts (Continued)

3) Operating income – classified by recognition time (Continued)

Total	1,993,461.47	26,030,617.26	6,851,233.79	34,875,312.52
At a certain point of time	1,993,461.47			1,993,461.47
Within a certain period of time		26,030,617.26	6,851,233.79	32,881,851.05
Item	products	software	products	Last year
	of electrical	program and	data security	
	the sales	application	of network and	
		Commercial	maintenance	
			Installation and	

(3) Relevant Information about performing obligation

Income from the sales of electrical products is confirmed when the customer obtains control of the products, in which case the products are transferred and accepted by the customer.

Income from commercial application program and software, installation and maintenance of network and data security products is confirmed by relevant performance schedule, because the customer obtains and consumes the economic benefits brought by the company's performance at the same time as the company performs the contract, and the customer is able to control the goods under construction in the process of the company's performance.

(4) Information relating to the transaction price apportioned to the remaining performance obligation

The income corresponding to the performance obligations that have been signed but have not been performed or fully performed at the end of the year is RMB28,007,039.06, in which RMB28,007,039.06 (tax included) is expected to be recognized in 2024.

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5.28 Tax and surcharge

Item	Current Year	Last Year
Urban Construction & Maintenance Tax	68,834.96	25,823.26
Education Surcharge	49,167.83	18,445.18
Other	31,092.09	21,659.68
Total	149,094.88	65,928.12

5.29 Sales expense

Item	Current Year	Last Year
In which: Personnel expenses	3,773,538.10	2,962,494.19
Sales office expense	372,582.68	201,926.35
Sales travalling expenses	254,050.41	283,562.45
Depreciation of right of use assets	89,458.70	212,259.56
Sales expense	9,726.68	252,733.93
Others	209,099.04	159,736.06
Total	4,708,455.61	4,072,712.54

5.30 Administration expenses

Item	Current Year	Last Year
In which: Personnel expenses	10,175,008.55	11,768,359.86
Outsourcing service fees	894,118.48	1,253,863.16
In which: Audit Services Fee	360,000.00	360,000.00
Federation Service Fee	192,113.60	266,894.46
Federation Service Fee	342,004.88	626,968.70
Depreciation of right of use assets	245,924.90	506,651.81
Rent and utility bills	316,160.74	312,947.16
Operation expenses	141,060.33	136,110.46
Others	648,503.61	750,745.58
Total	12,420,776.61	14,728,678.06



5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5.31 Research and development expenses

Item	Current Year	Last Year
Research and development expenses	4,827,757.25	5,312,197.56
Total	4,827,757.25	5,312,197.56

5.32 Financial expenses

(2)

Total

(1) Breakdown of financial expense

Item	Current Year	Last Year
Interest changes	198,553.79	302,960.81
Less:Interest income	134,350.35	150,041.94
Add:Exchange loss		-4,665.08
Bank charge	3,470.49	2,995.15
Total	67,673.93	151,248.94
Breakdown of interest income		
Item	Current Year	Last Year

Interest income of bank deposit Interest income accrued at actual interest rates	134,350.35	150,041.94

134,350.35

150,041.94

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT (Continued)

5.33 Other gain

Sources of other income	Current Year	Last Year
Input tax plus deduction	120,379.53	
Others	5,014.36	2,337.00
Total	125,393.89	2,337.00

5.34 Investment Income

Item	Current Year	Last Year
Investment income of financial assets measured at fair value		
through profit or loss during the holding period	22,200.00	28,800.00
Long-term equity investment income calculated by equity		
method	947,316.97	-647,003.09
Investment income from disposal of long-term equity		
investment	550,029.04	356,066.13
Investment income from disposal of financial assets held for		
trading	9,041.10	219,849.32
Total	1,528,587.11	-42.287.64

5.35 Gain or loss from changes in fair values

Item	Current Year	Last Year
Gains from changes in fair value of other non-current		
financial assets	15,239.64	-4,127.90
Total	15,239.64	-4,127.90



5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT (Continued)

5.36 Credit impairment losses

	Item	Current Year	Last Year
	Notes receivable and bad debt losses of accounts	705 050 00	004 700 40
	receivable Financial assets held for trading	735,056.20	-864,736.42
	Total	735,056.20	-864,736.42
5.37	Assets impairment losses		
	Item	Current Year	Last Year
	Provision for impairment loss of long-term equity investments		-3,509,375.52
	Total		-3,509,375.52
5.38	Non-operation Income		
	Item	Current Year	Last Year
	Unpayable payables		124,243.65
	Others	392,017.14	1.64
	Total	392,017.14	124,245.29

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT (Continued)

5.39 Non-operation Income expense

	Item	Current Year	Last Year
	Net Loss on Retirement of Fixed Assets	4,771.22	
	Total	4,771.22	
5.40	Income tax expense		
	Item	Current Year	Last Year
	Current income tax		
	Deferred income tax	-6,702.28	-232,108.66
	Total	-6,702.28	-232,108.66

5.41 Other Comprehensive Income

For details, please refer to the "5.24 Other Comprehensive Income" of this Note.

5.42 Items to the cash flow statement

(1) cash related to operating activities

1) Other cash received related to operating activities

Item	Current Year	Last Year
Net Balance of Receivables and Payables	313,770.02	
interest revenue	134,350.35	150,041.94
non-operating income	1,382.03	
other income	5,014.36	2,337.00
Total	454,516.76	152,378.94



5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT (Continued)

5.42 Items to the cash flow statement (Continued)

(1) cash related to operating activities (Continued)

2) Other Cash Payments Related to Operating Activities (Continued)

Item	Current Year	Last Year
cash payment for sales expense	794,229.24	897,958.74
cash payment for administration expense	2,065,692.64	1,824,382.04
cash payment for Research and development		
expense	61,674.62	135,150.90
cash payment for financial expense	3,470.49	2,995.15
Net Balance of Receivables and Payables		68,592.52
Total	2,925,066.99	2,929,079.35

(2) Cash flows from investing activities

2)

¹⁾ Cash received from disposal of investments

Item	Current Year	Last Yea
Received Payments for the Disposal of Long-		
term Equity Investments	5,354,740.24	
Total	5,354,740.24	

Item	Current Year	Last Year
Redemption of Financial Products	5,000,000.00	10,000,000.00
Total	5,000,000.00	10,000,000.00

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT (Continued)

5.42 Items to the cash flow statement (Continued)

(2) Cash flows from investing activities (Continued)

3) Other cash payments relating to investing activities

Item	Current Year	Last Year
Purchase of financial products	5,000,000.00	
Total	5,000,000.00	

(3) Cash flows from financing activities

1) Other cash payments relating to financing activities

Item	Current Year	Last Year
Lease expense	2,506,140.00	67,298.21
Total	2,506,140.00	67,298.21



5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT (Continued)

5.43 Supplemental information for the consolidated cash flow statement

(1) Supplemental information for the consolidated cash flow statement

Item	Current Year	Last Year
1. Reconciliation of net profit to cash flows from		
operating activities:		
Net Profit	-6,989,010.94	-21,606,146.55
Add: Provision for assets impairment		3,509,375.52
Credit assets impairment	-735,056.20	864,736.42
Fixed assets depreciation	15,888.25	25,499.71
Right-of-use assets	912,843.85	2,165,913.85
Intangible assets amortization		
Disposal loss on fixed assets and other long-		
term as-sets		
Scrapped loss on fixed assets (gain marked		
as "-")	4,771.22	
Gain or loss from changes in fair values(gain		
marked as "-")	-15,239.64	4,127.90
Finance costs (gain marked as "-")	198,553.79	302,960.81
Investment loss (gain marked as "-")	-1,528,587.11	42,287.64
Decrease in defered tax assets	318,184.80	92,778.41
Increase in defered tax liabilities	-324,887.08	-324,887.07
Decrease in Inventories (increase marked as		
"_")	101,774.38	391,401.03
Decrease in operating receivables (increase		
marked as "-")	541,463.39	457,279.30
Increase in operating payables (decrease		
marked as "-")	2,473,345.53	3,561,747.93
Others		
Net cash flow from operating activities	-5,025,955.76	-10,512,925.10
2. Material investing and financing activities that		
do not involve cash receipts and payments:		
3. Net changes in cash and cash equivalents:		
Ending balance	17,637,191.04	19,776,137.27
Less: Beginning balance	19,776,137.27	19,168,386.64
Add: Ending balance of cash equivalents		
Less: Beginning balance of cash equivalents		
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents	-2,138,946.23	607,750.63

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT (Continued)

5.43 Supplemental information for the consolidated cash flow statement (Continued)

(2) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Item	Current Year	Last Year
Cash	17,637,191.04	19,776,137.27
Including: Cash on hand	37,497.92	23,523.12
Bank deposit available-for-use	17,599,693.12	19,752,614.15
Cash and cash equivalents balance at the end of the year Including: Restricted use on Cash and cash equivalent of	17,637,191.04	19,776,137.27
parent company and its subsidiaries	292,779.88	674,430.60

(3) Monetary Funds that Are Not Considered as Cash and Cash Equivalents

Item	Current Year	Last Year	Reason
Other cash or cash equivalents	232,284.58	421,074.58	deposits for letter of guarantee
Total	232,284.58	421,074.58	

5.44 Foreign Currency Item

(1) Foreign Currency item

	Ending Foreign Currency		Ending RMB
Item	Balance	Exchange rate	Balance
Monetary funds			
Including:USD	60.66	7.0827	429.64
HKD	322,605.14	0.9062	292,350.19
JPY	1.00	0.0502	0.05

(2) Overseas operating entities

Overseas operating entities	Principal place of business	Reporting Currency	Whether change or not on reporting currency
Jiaoda Withub (Hong Kong) Limited	Hong Kong	НКД	Νο

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT (Continued)

5.45 Lease

(1) Our company as the lessee

Item	Current Year	Last Year
Interest Expense on Lease Liabilities	198,553.79	302,960.81
Short-term Lease Expenses Accounted for as Current		
Losses and Profits with Simplified Treatment		
Lease Expenses for Low-value Assets Accounted		
for as Current Losses and Profits with Simplified		
Treatment (Excluding Short-term Leases)		
Variable Lease Payments Not Included in the		
Measurement of Lease Liabilities		
Including:Portions Generated from Sale-and-		
Leaseback Transactions		
Income Derived from Subletting Right-to-use Assets	1,561,985.81	1,127,518.00
Total Cash Outflows Related to Leases	2,506,140.00	67,298.21
Related Losses and Profits Generated from Sale-and-		
Leaseback Transactions		
Cash Inflows from Sale-and-Leaseback Transactions		
Cash outflows from Sale-and-Leaseback		
Transactions		

6. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES

Item	Current Year	Last Year
Personnel expenses	4,766,082.63	4,645,110.39
Amortization and depreciation		5,975.35
Others expenses	61,674.62	661,111.82
Total	4,827,757.25	5,312,197.56
Including::Expensed research and development expenses Capitalized research and development expenses	4,827,757.25	5,312,197.56

7. CHANGES IN THE SCOPE OF CONSOLIDATION

1. Business combinations involving entities not under common control

None

2. Business combinations involving entities under common control

None

- 3. Disposal of a subsidiary
 - (1) The transactions or events resulting in the loss of control over a subsidiary in the current year.

						The difference						
						between the					The	
						disposal price					determination	The amoun
						and the					method and	of othe
						share of the					key	comprehensi
						net assets					assumptions	incom
						of the		The carrying	The fair		for the fair	related
						subsidiary		value of the	value of the		value of	to the equit
						enjoyed by the		remaining	remaining	The gain or	the remaining	investmen
						consolidated	The	equity on the	equity at the	loss arising	equity at the	in the forme
	The					financial	proportion	consolidated	consolidated	from the	consolidated	subsidiar
	disposal	The disposal	The disposal		The basis for	statement at	of remaining	financial	financial	remeasurement	financial	transferre
	price at	ratio at the	method at		determining	the time of	equity on	statement on	statement	of the	statement	to investmen
	the point	point of	the point of	The timing	the timing	disposal	the date	the date	level	remaining	level on the	income o
Nameof	of loss	loss of	loss of	of loss of	of loss	of the	of loss	of loss of	on the date of	equity at fair	date of loss	retaine
Subsidiary	of control	control	control	control	of control	investment	of control	control	loss of control	value	of control	earning

						THE COULT						
Shanghai Withub reducing the			appointed									
Zhirui Hi-Tech			consolidatio	on 21 November,	bankruptcy	bankruptcy						
Co., Limited	0.00	82%	scope	2023	liquidation	administrator	417,272.02	0.00	0.00	0.00	-	0.00

Notes: Shanghai Withub Zhirui Hi-Tech Co., Limited. is a subsidiary within the consolidation scope of our company with a controlling interest of 82%. In 2022, it applied for compulsory liquidation. On November 21st, 2023, Shanghai Third Intermediate People's Court issued the Announcement (2023) Hu 03 Po No. 902, stating: "The court has decided to accept the bankruptcy liquidation case of Shanghai Withub Zhirui Hi-Tech Co., Limited. In accordance with Article 13 of the Enterprise Bankruptcy Law of the People's Republic of China and Article 27 of the Provisions of the Supreme People's Court on the Designation of Administrators in Enterprise Bankruptcy Cases, Beijing Dacheng (Shanghai) Law Offices is appointed as the administrator of Shanghai Withub Zhirui Hi-Tech Co., Limited." On January 10th, 2024, Shanghai Third Intermediate People's Court issued another Announcement (2023) Hu 03 Po No. 902, stating: "The court has ruled to declare the bankruptcy of Shanghai Withub Zhirui Hi-Tech Co., Limited. and terminate its bankruptcy liquidation procedure."



8. **RIGHTS IN OTHER ENTITIES**

8.1 Interests in subsidiaries

(1) Structure of the Group

				Registered/issued,			
		Principal place of	Place of	and fully	Percentage of sha	areholding (%)	
Name of subsidiaries	Business nature	operation	registration	paid-up capital	Direct	Indirect	Principal business
Jiaoda Withub (Hong Kong) Limited	Private Limited	Hong Kong	Hong Kong	HKD 12,000,000	100		No operation
	Company						
Shanghai Withub Information and	Sole Trader	Shanghai	Shanghai	1,000,000	100		No operation
Professional Training School							
(The School)							

Note: The School is a non-profit making entity with a paid-in capital of RMB1,000,000. According to the articles of association of the School and the relevant regulations in the PRC governing educational institutions, all earnings and profits of the School can only be used to improve its internal facilities and training standard, and cannot be used for any other purposes or be distributed to its organiser.

8.2 Interests in joint ventures or associates

(1) Significant joint ventures and associates

						The accounting
						treatment methods
		Place of				for investments
		incorporation/				in joint
	Principal place	establishment and		Percentage of sha	reholding (%)	ventures or
Name	of operation	operation	Business Type	Direct	Indirect	associates.
Shanghai TonTron Information			Development and sales			
Technology Company Limited			business solution & computer			
("Shanghai Tong Tron*")	Shanghai	Shanghai	accessories	33.94	-	Equity Method Accounting
Shanghai Withub Duogao Information			Design and installation			
Construction Company Limited	Shanghai	Shanghai	Intelligent Home System	34.00		Equity Method Accounting
Union Genesis Limited	British Virgin Island	British Virgin Island	Investment	-	38.30	Equity Method Accounting
			Design, produce and sales			
			on electronics hardware and			
C-NOVA Microsystems Limited	Hong Kong	Hong Kong	software	-	38.30	Equity Method Accounting
			Design, produce and sales			
			on electronics hardware and			
C-NOVA Microsystems (Shanghai)Limited	Shanghai	Shanghai	software	-	38.30	Equity Method Accounting

8. RIGHTS IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued)

8.2 Interests in joint ventures or associates (Continued)

(2) Main financial information of significant associates

Shanghai TonTron Techonology Co., Ltd

	Ending	Beginning
Item	Balance	Balance
Current assets	22,671,188.28	22,114,396.34
Non-current assets	2,792,096.21	1,046,032.49
Total assets	25,463,284.49	23,160,428.83
Current liabilities	9,608,907.63	9,278,704.87
Non-current liabilities	365,283.94	780,000.00
Total liabilities	9,974,191.57	10,058,704.87
Minority shareholders' equity		
Attributable to the parent company shareholders'		
equity	15,489,092.92	13,101,723.96
Net asset calculated by proportion of shareholding	5,256,270.14	4,446,725.11
Adjustment		
– Goodwill		
 – Unrealized profit of internal trading 		
– Others		
Book value of joint venture equity investment	5,256,270.14	4,446,725.11
Operation income	51,519,993.14	45,493,292.83
Net Profits	1,525,882.31	486,921.84
Others comprehensive income		
Total comprehensive income	1,525,882.31	486,921.84
Dividends from the joint venture in Cur-rent Year		



8. RIGHTS IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued)

8.2 Interests in joint ventures or associates (Continued)

(2) Main financial information of significant associates (Continued)

Shanghai Withub Duogao Information Construction Co., Ltd

	Ending	Beginning
Item	Balance	Balance
Current assets	22,230,491.42	26,423,233.70
Non-current assets	107,591.19	126,390.70
Total assets	22,338,082.61	26,549,624.40
Current liabilities	15,557,781.37	20,174,534.76
Non-current liabilities		
Total liabilities	15,557,781.37	20,174,534.76
Minority shareholders' equity		
Attributable to the parent company shareholders'		
equity	6,780,301.24	6,375,089.64
Net asset calculated by proportion of shareholding	2,305,302.42	2,167,530.49
Adjustment		
– Goodwill	75,000.00	75,000.00
 Unrealized profit of internal trading 		
– Others		
Book value of joint venture equity investment	2,380,302.42	2,242,530.49
Operation income	22,044,542.42	28,799,165.50
Net Profits	405,211.60	-2,389,012.83
Others comprehensive income		
Total comprehensive income	405,211.60	-2,389,012.83
Dividends from the joint venture in Current Year		

8. **RIGHTS IN OTHER ENTITIES** (Continued)

8.2 Interests in joint ventures or associates (Continued)

(2) Main financial information of significant associates (Continued)

Union Genesis Limited and other subsidiaries (C-NOVA Microsystems Limited C-NOVA Microsystems (Shanghai)Limited)

	Ending	Beginning
Item	Balance	Balance
Current assets	37,493,750.70	33,998,909.71
Non-current assets	973,389.72	973,389.72
Total assets	38,467,140.42	34,972,299.43
Current liabilities	74,668,962.24	68,598,679.41
Non-current liabilities		
Total liabilities	74,668,962.24	68,598,679.41
Minority shareholders' equity		
Attributable to the parent company shareholders'		
equity	-36,201,821.82	-33,626,379.98
Net asset calculated by proportion of shareholding		
Adjustment		
– Goodwill	2,624,000.00	2,624,000.00
 Unrealized profit of internal trading 		
– Others		
Book value of joint venture equity investment		
Operation income		469,716.99
Net Profits	-19,511.16	-137,638.23
Others comprehensive income		-
Total comprehensive income	-19,511.16	-137,638.23
Dividends from the joint venture in Current Year		-

Note: As at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, the company's share of the UGL group's accumulated losses exceed the company's interests in the UGL group, so the company's interest in UGL group was fully impaired and never recognized further losses any more.

(3) An excess of loss in joint ventures or associates

Name of joint ventures or associates	Unconfirmed– accumulated losses of previous year	Unconfirmed– losses of current year	Unconfirmed- accumulated losses at 31 Dec. 2023
Total	41,204,153.38	7,472.77	41,211,626.15

9. GOVERNMENT GRANT

1. "The government subsidy recognized based on the receivable amount at the end of the year."

The year-end balance of receivables is RMB0.00.

2. liability items related to government grants

None

3. Government grants recognized in current period income or loss

Item	Current Year	Last Year	
Other Income	5,014.36	2,337.00	

10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company's major financial instruments include trade receivables, available-for-sale investment, trade payables, etc. Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in notes 6. The risks associated with these financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

10.1 Financial risk management objectives and policies

The objectives of the company's risk management are to balance the risk and income, reduce the negative risk impact of operating performance to the lowest level, maximize the interests of shareholders and other equity investors. Based on these objectives, the basic strategy of risk management is to ensure and analyse various risks faced by the Company, establish appropriate risk tolerance level and manage risks, as well as monitor all risks in a timely and reliable manner, and control risks in a limited range.

10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

10.1 Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

(1) Market risks

1) Exchange risks

The Company's foreign exchange exposure is mainly related to HKD. Except for the operation conducted by the Company's subsidiaries settled in HKD and USD, other main business operations are settled in RMB. As of 31 December 2023 except for assets and liabilities with balances in HKD and USD balances depicted as below, all other assets and liabilities of the Company are denominated in RMB. The exchange rate risk arisen from those foreign currency assets and liabilities may affect the results of operation of the Company.

	Ending	Beginning
Item	balance	balance
Monetary funds - USD	60.66	60.66
Monetary funds - HKD	322,605.14	754,540.14
Monetary funds - JPY	1.00	1.00

The Company has paid close attention to the influence generated from exchange rate changes.

2) Interest rate risks

The Company is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to its variable-rate deposits with bank and is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to fixed-rate bank deposits. To mitigate the impact of interest rate fluctuations, the Company continually assesses and monitors the exposure to interest rate risk.

The Company's cash flow interest rate is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of prevailing market rates arising from the Company's bank balances denominated in RMB base deposit rate stipulated by the People's Bank of China arising from the Company's bank balances denominated in RMB. At 31 December 2023, the balance of non-term deposit is RMB17,599,693.12 (2022: RMB19,752,614.15), and the balance of term deposit is RMB0.00 (2022: RMB0.00), and the balance of deposit for letter of guarantee is RMB232,284.58.



10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

10.1 Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

(2) Credit risk

Our company manages credit risks on a portfolio basis. Credit risks mainly arise from monetary funds, accounts receivable, other receivables, etc.

To mitigate credit risks, our company strictly selects counterparties to limit the credit risks faced. We conduct transactions with selected government agencies that have stable financial conditions, thereby reducing the risks associated with accounts receivable. Additionally, certain new customers are required to deposit cash with our company as a security deposit to mitigate the maximum credit risk exposure. Furthermore, our company reviews the recovery status of each individual receivable on each balance sheet date to ensure that sufficient bad debt provisions are made for unrecoverable amounts. Therefore, our management believes that the credit risks borne by our company have been significantly reduced.

Our company deposits its liquid funds in banks with high credit ratings, thus the credit risk associated with liquid funds is relatively low.

Our company has adopted necessary policies to ensure that all sales customers have good credit histories. Apart from the top five customers in terms of accounts receivable amounts, the company does not have any other significant credit concentration risks. The total amount of the top five customers in our company's accounts receivable is:RMB5,949,300.49, This accounts for 61.07% of the total amount of the Company's accounts receivable.

1) Significant Increase in Credit Risk

On each balance sheet date, our company determines whether the credit risk of financial instruments has increased significantly since their initial recognition by comparing the estimated default probability within the expected remaining term determined at the time of initial recognition with that determined on the balance sheet date. However, if our company determines that the financial instrument only has a low credit risk on the balance sheet date, it can be assumed that the credit risk of the financial instrument has not increased significantly since the initial recognition.

The main criteria for our company to judge a significant increase in credit risk include significant unfavorable changes in the debtor's operating environment, internal and external credit ratings, actual or expected business results, etc.

10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

10.1 Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

(2) Credit risk (Continued)

2) Definition of Credit-impaired Assets

When one or more events that have a negative impact on the expected future cash flows of financial assets occur, such financial assets become credit-impaired assets. The main criteria for our company to determine the occurrence of credit impairment are that the overdue days exceed the credit period granted by six months. However, in some cases, if internal or external information indicates that the full contract amount may not be recoverable before considering any credit enhancements held, the company will also consider it as credit impairment. Credit impairment of financial assets may be caused by the combined effect of multiple events, rather than a single identifiable event.

Evidence of credit impairment in financial assets includes observable information such as significant financial difficulties of the debtor, breach of contract by the debtor, concessions made by the company to the debtor due to economic or contractual considerations related to the debtor's financial difficulties that would not be made in any other circumstances, the likelihood of the debtor's bankruptcy or other financial restructuring, and the disappearance of an active market for the financial asset due to the debtor's financial difficulties.

3) Credit Risk Exposure

As of December 31, 2023, the maximum credit risk exposure that may cause financial losses to our company mainly arises from the losses of financial assets generated by the failure of the other party to fulfill its obligations under the contract.

The carrying amount of financial assets recognized in the consolidated balance sheet represents the risk exposure for financial assets measured at fair value, but it is not the maximum risk exposure. The maximum risk exposure will change as the fair value changes in the future.



10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

10.1 Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

(3) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company could not engage the financial obligations at the maturity date. The method of the Company to manage liquidity risk is to ensure adequate cash flows to perform obligations at maturity, so that not to cause any unacceptable losses or damages of the Company reputation. The analysis of liabilities structure and durations would be made periodically to ensure the cash is adequate.

The analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities held by the Company is analysed as below, in terms of the maturity of undiscounted remaining contractual obligations:

31	Decem	ber	2023	:

Item	Within 1 year	1-2 years	2-3 years	3 years or above	Total
Financial assets					
	-		-	-	-
Monetary funds	17,869,475.62		-	-	17,869,475.62
Accounts receivable	5,327,616.59	-	-	-	5,327,616.59
Other receivable	968,477.76	-	-	-	968,477.76
Financial liabilities					
Accounts payable	10,954,005.19	-	-	-	10,954,005.19
Other payable	2,167,622.78	-	-	-	2,167,622.78
Non-current liabilities maturing					
within one year	2,386,800.00	-	-	-	2,386,800.00

10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

10.2 Sensitivity analysis

The Company adopted sensitivity analysis of reasonableness and the probable change effect of risk variables on equity or profit or loss. Since risk variables rarely change in isolation, the correlation between the variables can bring significant influence to the financial statement. The following sensitivity analysis is assumed the risk variable is independently carried out.

(1) Sensitivity analysis of exchange rate risks

The reasonable movements of exchange rate with all other variables unchanged may have the following impact on the profit or loss and equities for the current period (after tax):

		Year 2023		Year	2022
		Effect on	Effect on	Effect on	Effect on
Item	Exchange rate change	net profit	owner's equity	net profit	owner's equity
All the Foreign currency	5% appreciation of RMB	-75.22	-391,435.62	-214.95	-385,767.81
	5% depreciation of RMB	75.22	391,435.62	214.95	385,767.81

(2) Sensitivity analysis of interest rate risks

The reasonable movements of interest rate with all other variables unchanged may have the following impact on the profit or loss and equities for the current period (after tax):

		Year 2023		Year 2022	
		Effect on	Effect on	Effect on	Effect on
Item	Interest rate change	net profit	owner's equity	net profit	owner's equity
Deposit	Increase 1%	178,694.76	178,694.76	1,500.42	1,500.42
	Decrease 1%	-178,694.76	-178,694.76	-1,500.42	-1,500.42



11. DISCLOSURE OF FAIR VALUE

11.1 Year-end Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value

	Fair value at the end of year			
	First-level	Second-level	Third-level	
	fair value	fair value	fair value	
Item	measurement	measurement	measurement	Total
1 Continuous Fair Value Measurement				
(1) Trading Financial Assets				
1. Financial Assets Measured at Fair				
Value through Profit or Loss				
2. Designated Financial Assets				
Measured at Fair Value through				
Profit or Loss				
(2) Other Debt Investments				
(3) Other Equity Investments			4,377,656.91	4,377,656.91
(4) Receivables Financing				
Total Amount of Assets Continuously				
Measured at Fair Value			4,377,656.91	4,377,656.91
(5) Trading Financial Liabilities				
1. Financial Assets Measured at Fair				
Value through Profit or Loss				
2. Designated Financial Assets				
Measured at Fair Value through				
Profit or Loss				
Total Amount of Liabilities Continuously				
Measured at Fair Value				
2 Non-continuous Fair Value				
Measurement				
Total Amount of Assets Measured at Fair				
Value on a Non-continuous Basis				
Total Amount of Liabilities Measured at Fair				
Value on a Non-continuous Basis				

11. DISCLOSURE OF FAIR VALUE (Continued)

11.2 Basis for Determining the Market Price of Continuously and Non-continuously Measured First-tier Fair Value Items

The first-tier input value is the unadjusted quoted price of the same asset or liability that the company can obtain in an active market on the measurement date.

11.3 Qualitative and Quantitative Information on Valuation Techniques and Key Parameters Used for Continuously and Non-continuously Measured Second-tier Fair Value Items

For continuously and non-continuously measured second-tier fair value items, in addition to the first-tier input value, observable input values directly or indirectly related to the asset or liability are used.

11.4 Qualitative and Quantitative Information on Valuation Techniques and Key Parameters Used for Continuously and Non-continuously Measured Third-tier Fair Value Items

The third-tier input value is the unobservable input value of the relevant asset or liability. The thirdtier input value includes future cash flows that cannot be directly observed and cannot be verified by observable market data, as well as financial forecasts made by the enterprise using its own data.

The main items that our company adopts the third-tier fair value measurement are equity investments in non-listed companies and financial wealth management products. Among them, if there is no recent equity transaction price for non-listed companies, and there are no significant changes in the business environment, operating conditions, and financial status of the companies, our company will measure the fair value by referring to the investment cost and the share of the net assets of the invested entity as a reasonable estimate of the fair value. Trading financial assets are mainly wealth management products held by our company. Our company estimates the fair value by discounting the future cash flows calculated based on the agreed expected rate of return.

11.5 Changes in valuation techniques and their reasons during the reporting period

None.



12. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

12.1 Related party relationship

(1) Persons who have significant control over the Company

The significant controller of the company is the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of Shanghai Municipality.

(2) The status of the Company's subsidiaries

For details of subsidiaries, please refer to this notes 8.1. (1) Structure of the Group.

(3) The status of the Company's joint ventures and associated companies

Detailed information on the Company's significant joint ventures and associated companies can be found in the relevant section of "8. 2. I Interests in joint ventures or associates " in this notes.

Type of related party		
relationship	Name of related party	Main transaction content
Other related parties	Shanghai Jiao Tong University	Leasing and provision of labor services
Other related parties	Shanghai Jiao Tong University Design and Research Institute Co., Ltd.	Provision of labor services

Note: Shanghai Jiao Tong University and Shanghai Jiao Tong University Design and Research Institute Co., Ltd. were the original actual controller and its related parties of Shanghai Jiao Tong University Industrial Investment Management (Group) Co., Ltd., an important shareholder of the Company. However, as the actual controller of the Company's important shareholder has been changed from Shanghai Jiao Tong University to the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of Shanghai Municipality, the relevant companies are not considered as related parties in 2023.

12.2 Related party transaction

(1) Related party transactions for the purchase and sale of goods, provision and receipt of labor services

1) Provision of labor services

Polotod porty	Related party	Current Voor	Loot Voor
Related party	transactions	Current Year	Last Year
Shanghai Jiao Tong University			
Design and Research Institute			
Co., Ltd.	Project design		200,872.64
Total			200,872.64

12. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

12.2 Related party transaction (Continued)

2) Related party leasing information

(1) Rental description

Lessor	Type of leasing property	Current Year confirmed lease income	Last Year confirmed lease income
Shanghai Jiao Tong University	House		2,165,913.85

12.3 Account balance between related parties

(1) Receivables

(2)

		Ending Bala	ince	Beginnir	
		Book	Bad debt	Book	Bad deb
ltem	Related parties	Balance	provision	Balance	provisio
Receivables	Shanghai Withub Duogao	14,210.00	-	14,210.00	
	Information Construction				
	Company Limited*) ("Duogao")				
	Subtotal	14,210.00	-	14,210.00	
Others Receivables	Shanghai Withub Duogao Information Construction	14,103.18	-	14,103.18	
	Company Limited*) ("Duogao") Shanghai Jiao Tong University			200,000.00	
				200,000.00	
	Subtotal	14,103.18	-	200,000.00	-
payables					
			E	Inding	Beginning
Item	Related parties	6	Ba	alance	Balance
Others payables	Shanghai Jiao T				,400,000.00

12. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

12.4 Directors, Supervisors and Employees' Compensation

(1) The details of directors' and supervisors' remuneration are as follows

	S	ocial insurance,			
	Salaries and	housing fund		share-based	
Item	allowance	and pension	Bonus	payment	Total
This year amount	-	_	-	-	-
Executive directors	900,900.00	151,093.02	-	-	1,051,993.02
Mr. Zhang Xiaobo (Appointed on					
September 4, 2023)	-	-	-	-	-
Mr. Chang Jiang (Resigned on September 4, 2023)					
Mr. Shuai Ge	-	-	-	-	-
Mr. Shang Ling (Resigned on June					
30, 2023)	320,100.00	49,231.20			369,331.20
Mr. Chen Guoliang (Resigned on					
June 20, 2023)					
Ms. Cao Zhen (Appointed on					
September 4, 2023)	580,800.00	101,861.82	-	-	682,661.82
Ms. Sun Jingchen (Appointed on					
June 20, 2023)	-	-	-	-	-
Ms. Gu Xiaomin	-	-	-	-	-
Mr. Hu Lunjie					
Supervisors	655,195.00	172,206.23			827,401.23
Mr. Rong Yinsheng	-	-	-	-	-
Mr. Yang Binghua	266,300.00	79,860.10	-	-	346,160.10
Ms. Sun Guofang	388,895.00	92,346.13	-	-	481,241.13
Ms. Sun Yunyun (Appointed on					
October 9, 2023)	-	-	-	-	-
Ms. Panli (Resigned on August 18,					
2023)					
Mr. Yang Qing	-	-	-	-	-
Independent non-executive					
directors	300,000.00	-	-	-	300,000.00
Mr. Liu Feng	100,000.00	-	-	-	100,000.00
Mr. Yuan Shumin	100,000.00	-	-	-	100,000.00
Mr. Zhou Guolai	100,000.00	-	-	-	100,000.00
Total	1,856,095.00	323,299.25			2,179,394.25

12. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

12.4 Directors, Supervisors and Employees' Compensation (Continued)

(1) The details of directors' and supervisors' remuneration are as follows (Continued)

		Social insurance,			
	Salaries and	housing fund		share-based	
Name	allowance	and pension	Bonus	payment	Total
Last year amount					
Executive directors	614,250.00	152,174.00	-	-	766,424.00
Mr. Chang Jiang	-	-	-	-	-
Mr. Shuai Ge	-	-	-	-	-
Mr. Shang Ling	614,250.00	152,174.00	-	-	766,424.00
Mr. Chen Guoliang	-	-	-	-	-
Ms. Gu Xiaomin	-	-	-	-	-
Mr. Hu Lunjie					
Supervisors	453,600.00	177,170.20			630,770.20
Mr. Rong Yinsheng	-	-	-	-	-
Mr. Yang Binghua	184,800.00	80,265.85	-	-	265,065.85
Ms. Sun Guofang	268,800.00	96,904.35	-	-	365,704.35
Ms. Pan Li	-	-	-	-	-
Mr. Yang Qing	-	-	-	-	-
independent non-executive					
director	300,000.00	-	-	-	300,000.00
Mr. Liu Feng	100,000.00	-	-	-	100,000.00
Mr. Yuan Shumin	100,000.00	-	-	-	100,000.00
Mr. Zhou Guolai	100,000.00	-	-	-	100,000.00
Total	1,367,850.00	329,344.20			1,697,194.20

Note: Ms. Cao Zhen is also the Vice President of the Company, and the above disclosed remuneration includes the remuneration for the services she provided as the Vice President.



12. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

12.4 Directors, Supervisors and Employees' Compensation (Continued)

(2) Top 5 paid employees

One of the top five individuals with the highest remuneration this year is a director (last year: one), and one is a supervisor (last year: none). The remuneration of the director and supervisor is stated in Note "12 4. (1)", and has been reflected in the remuneration of directors and supervisors. The remuneration of the other three individuals (last year: four) is as follows:

Item	Current Year	Last Year
Salaries and allowances	1,079,236.12	1,581,710.00
Social Insurance, Housing fund and Retirement benefit plan		
contributions	317,095.48	524,400.47
Annual Bonus	60,000.00	158,000.00
Equity-based compensation		
Total	1,456,331.60	2,264,110.47

Highest emoluments within the following groups (per capita)

Item	Current Year	Last Year
Nil to RMB1,000,000	5	5
RMB1,000,001 to 2,000,000	0	0
RMB2,000,001 to 2,500,000	0	0

(3) There's no motivated monetary funds provided for any 5 staff with highest emoluments joining or upon-joining the Company, and there's no compensation provided for them resigning for giving up the positions.

(4) Key management compensation

The key management compensation (including the amount paid and payable to directors, supervisors and senior management) is as follows:

Item	Current Year	Last Year
Wages and subsidies	1,856,095.00	1,908,800.00
Social Insurance, Housing fund and Retirement benefit plan		
contributions	323,299.25	481,518.20
Bonus		53,000.00
Equity-based compensation		
Total	2,179,394.25	2,443,318.20

13. QUOTATIONS ON COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT ITEMS

As of the balance sheet date, the Company has no significant commitments or contingencies that require disclosure.

14. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

14.1 Profit distribution

Item	Content
Proposed profit or dividend distribution	The board of directors of the Company resolved on March 21, 2024 to propose not paying any dividends for the year ended December 31, 2023.
Profits or dividends declared after review and approval	None

14.2 Sales return

There were no significant sales returns after the balance sheet date.

14.3. Apart from the aforementioned events after the balance sheet date that have been disclosed, the Company has no other significant events after the balance sheet date.

15. OTHER SIGNIFICANT MATTERS

15.1 Segment information

(1) Basis for determining reportable segments and accounting policies

According to the internal organizational structure, management requirement and internal reporting system of the Company, the business operation is classified into 2 reporting segments, business application project (development and provision of business application project service, including business solution, application software, installation and maintenance and data security products) and sales products (sales and distribution computers and electronic products and accessories). These reporting segments have been laid down in the internal organization structure, management requirements and internal reporting system. The management of the Company will evaluate the operating results of these report segments to determine the distribution of resources and evaluation on its results.

By segment information is exposed in accordance with the accounting policy and standards for measurement. Such basis of measurement remains the same as the accounting policy and standards for measurement when preparing the financial statements.



15. OTHER SIGNIFICANT MATTERS (Continued)

15.1 Segment information (Continued)

(2) Financial information of reportable segments in this annual report

Reporting segments for 2023

	Business application project and application	Sales	Undistributed	
Item	software	Products	portion	Offset Total
Operating Income	39,733,168.08	1,366,340.30		41,099,508.38
Including: Income from external transactions	39,733,168.08	1,366,340.30		41,099,508.38
Income from inter-segment transactions	,,	.,,		_
Operating costs	28,769,342.76	912,280.63		29,681,623.39
Dividend of associations			947,316.97	947,316.97
Interest income			134,350.35	134,350.35
Undistributed income			2,675,906.62	2,675,906.62
Period expenses			22,159,013.75	22,159,013.75
Undistributed other expenses			12,158.40	12,158.40
Segments' total profits (total loss)	10,963,825.32	454,059.67	-18,413,598.21	-6,995,713.22
Total assets	5,067,576.63	936,283.21	33,395,439.61	39,399,299.45
Equity of associates			7,636,572.57	7,636,572.57
Other non-current financial assets			4,377,803.44	4,377,803.44
Unallocated corporate assets			21,381,063.60	21,381,063.60
Total liabilities	11,833,798.82	1,971,337.01	6,826,256.66	20,631,392.49
Undistributed liabilities			6,826,256.66	6,826,256.66
Supplementary information				-
Capital expenditure				-
Impairment loss recognized for the period	-735,056.20			-735,056.20
Including: Impairment loss of account				
receivable	103,480.22			103,480.22
Revesal of impairment loss				
recognised on account receivables	-838,536.42			-838,536.42
Inventory impairment				-
Reversal of impairment loss				
recognised on inventory				-
Depreciation and amortisation				
expenses	335,383.60		593,348.50	928,732.10

15. OTHER SIGNIFICANT MATTERS (Continued)

15.1 Segment information (Continued)

(2) Financial information of reportable segments in this annual report (Continued)

Segmented report for the year 2022 (referring to the previous year)

ltem	Business application project and application software	Sales Products	Undistributed portion	Offset	Total
Operating Income	32,881,851.05	1,993,461.47		-	34,875,312.52
Including: Income from external transactions Income from inter-segment transactions	32,881,851.05	1,993,461.47		-	34,875,312.52
	26,145,396.90	1,598,476.23		-	- 27,743,873.13
Operating costs Dividend of associations	20,145,390.90	1,090,470.23	-647,003.09	-	-647,003.09
Interest income			-647,003.09 150,041.94	-	-647,003.09
Undistributed income			1,854,687.84	-	1,854,687.84
			24,414,879.04	-	24,414,879.04
Period expenses Undistributed other expenses			5,912,542.25	-	5,912,542.25
Segments' total profits (total loss)	6,736,454.15	394,985.24	-28,969,694.60	_	-21,838,255.21
Total assets	6,192,077.00	74,061.34	41,944,473.64		48,210,611.98
Equity of associates	0,192,011.00	74,001.04	11,911,238.82		11,911,238.82
Other non-current financial assets			4,362,563.80		4,362,563.80
Unallocated corporate assets			25,670,671.02	_	25,670,671.02
Total liabilities	8,887,265.77	2,540,235.63	11,133,938.35	_	22,561,439.75
Undistributed liabilities	0,001,200.11	2,040,200.00	11,133,938.35	_	11,133,938.35
Supplementary information			11,100,000.00	_	-
Capital expenditure				_	_
Impairment loss recognized for the period	864.736.42			_	864,736.42
Including: Impairment loss of account	001,100.12				001,100.12
receivable	864,736.42			_	864,736.42
Revesal of impairment loss	001,100.12				001,100.12
recognised on account receivable	s			_	_
Inventory impairment	-			_	
Reversal of impairment loss					
recognised on inventory				_	
Depreciation and amortisation expenses	718,911.37		1,472,502.19	_	2,191,413.56



15. OTHER SIGNIFICANT MATTERS (Continued)

15.1 Segment information (Continued)

(2) Financial information of reportable segments in this annual report (Continued)

Geographical information

All the Company's income was generated from customers in the PRC as at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, and all the Company's assets were in the PRC. Therefore, no geographical segment information is presented.

Information about major customers

The customers with whom the Company transacted business exceeding 10% of the Company's total revenue for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

			Revenue
Customer Name	Contract classification	Income	Proportion
Shanghai Big Data	Installation and maintenance of		
Center	network and data security products	7,075,471.71	16.59%

16. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE PARENT COMPANY

16.1 Account receivables

(1) Presentation of accounts receivable by age

The average credit period granted by the Company to customers is between 90 and 180 days. For customers with good credit records and selected government agencies with strong financial support, the credit period can be extended beyond 180 days. The aging analysis of accounts receivable (net of bad debt provisions) reported based on the date of delivery of goods or the date of service rendered (approximately estimated to be the respective recognition dates) is as follows:

	Ending	Beginning
Aging	Balance	Balance
Within 1 year	4,029,619.39	4,560,045.00
Of which: 0-3 months	1,959,776.37	4,560,045.00
4 months to 6 months	1,078,389.53	
7 months to 12 months	991,453.49	
1-2 years	941,547.00	988,426.64
2-3 years	218,130.22	
Over 3 year	4,551,878.55	4,648,063.84
Total	9,741,175.16	10,196,535.48
Less: Bad debt provisions	4,413,558.57	5,148,614.77
Total	5,327,616.59	5,047,920.71

16. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE PARENT COMPANY (Continued)

16.1 Account receivables (Continued)

(2) Presentation of accounts receivable classified by bad debt provision method

			Ending Balance		
	Book bal	ance	Bad debt pr	ovision	
Category	Amount	Percent %	Amount	Percent %	Book value
Bad debt provision on portfolio	9,741,175.16	100.00	4,413,558.57	45.31	5,327,616.59
Of which: ageing portfolio	8,443,177.96	86.68	4,413,558.57	52.27	4,029,619.39
Others	1,297,997.20	13.32			1,297,997.20
Total	9,741,175.16	100.00	4,413,558.57	45.31	5,327,616.59
			Beginning Balance		
	Book bal	ance	Bad debt pr	ovision	
Category	Amount	Percent %	Amount	Percent %	Book value
Bad debt provision on					
portfolio	10,196,535.48	100.00	5,148,614.77	50.49	5,047,920.71
Of which: ageing portfolio	9,708,659.77	95.22	5,148,614.77	53.03	4,560,045.00
Others	487,875.71	4.78			487,875.71
Total	10,196,535.48	100.00	5,148,614.77	50.49	5,047,920.71



16. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE PARENT COMPANY (Continued)

16.1 Account receivables (Continued)

3) Accounts receivable for which bad debt provisions are calculated based on age as a credit risk feature within the portfolio

	Ending Balance		Beginning Balance			
Aging	Accounts receivables	Bad debt provision	Provision ratio (%)	Accounts receivables	Bad debt provision	Provision ratio (%)
Within 1 year	4,029,619.39			4,560,045.00		
Of which: 0-3 months	1,959,776.37			4,560,045.00		
4 months to 6 months	1,078,389.53					
7 months to 12 months	991,453.49					
1-2 years	23,850.00	23,850.00	100.00	864,736.42	864,736.42	100.00
2-3 years	198,830.22	198,830.22	100.00			
Over 3 year	4,190,878.35	4,190,878.35	100.00	4,283,878.35	4,283,878.35	100.00
Total	8,443,177.96	4,413,558.57	52.27	9,708,659.77	5,148,614.77	53.03

4) Accounts receivable for which bad debt provisions are calculated based on other credit risk features within the portfolio

	Ending Balance			
	Book	Bad debt	Provision	
Aging	balance	provision	ratio	
Guarantee deposit and project payment within credit				
period	1,283,787.20		0%	
Related party with regular transactions	14,210.00		0%	
Total	1,297,997.20			

16. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE PARENT COMPANY (Continued)

16.1 Account receivables (Continued)

(4) Accounts receivable for which bad debt provisions are calculated based on other credit risk features within the portfolio (Continued)

	Be		
Aging	Book balance	Bad debt provision	Expected credit loss rate for the whole duration
Guarantee deposit and project payment within			
credit period	473,665.71		0%
Related party with regular transactions	14,210.00		0%
Total	487,875.71		

(5) The movement of bad debt provision

	Ending	Beginning
Aging	Balance	Balance
At 1 st January	5,148,614.77	4,283,878.35
Cancellation of bad debts		
Additional bad debt provision	103,480.22	864,736.42
Reversal of bad debt provision	838,536.42	
At 31 st December	4,413,558.57	5,148,614.77

(6) Analysis of overdue receivables but not be impaired at balance date

Aging	Ending Balance	Beginning Balance
Not overdue and no impairment Overdue but no impairment	4,336,163.10	4,560,045.00
7 months to 12 months (inclusive)	991,453.49	
Over 1 year		487,875.71
Total	5,327,616.59	5,047,920.71

Note 1: The account receivables, which are not overdue and not be impaired, are mainly the customers currently without defaulted records.

Note 2: The account receivables, which are overdue but not be impaired, are mainly the customers with good payment records. According to previous experiences, management believes provision for bad debts are not needed, because there is no change in credit quality and the balance of total accounts receivables are recoverable.

16. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE PARENT COMPANY (Continued)

16.1 Account receivables (Continued)

(7) The top 5 of accounts receivable

		Percentage of	
		total ending	Ending
		balance of	balance of
		accounts	bad debt
Company	Ending Balance	receivables (%)	provision
No.1	2,251,500.00	23.11	2,251,500.00
No.2	1,066,118.00	10.95	
No.3	917,697.00	9.42	
No.4	912,153.49	9.36	
No.5	801,832.00	8.23	
Total	5,949,300.49	61.07	2,251,500.00

16. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE PARENT COMPANY (Continued)

16.2 Other receivables

Item	Ending Balance	Beginning Balance
Interest receivables	-	_
Dividend receivables	-	_
Other receivables	968,477.76	926,618.04
Total	968,477.76	926,618.04

16.2.1 Other receivables

(1) Other receivables classified by nature

Nature	Ending Balance	Beginning Balance
Margin deposit Reserve fund returnable deposit	921,945.97	996.673.84
Accounts payable and receivable	7,146,325.31	11,477,642.93
Total	8,068,271.28	12,474,316.77

(2) Other receivables made by using ageing analysis method

	Ending	Beginning
Aging	Balance	Balance
Within one year	610,859.58	430,874.20
More than 1 year	7,457,411.70	12,043,442.57
Total	8,068,271.28	12,474,316.77
Bad debt provisions	7,099,793.52	11,547,698.73
Net amount	968,477.76	926,618.04



16. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE PARENT COMPANY (Continued)

16.2 Other receivables (Continued)

(3) Bad debt provision of other receivables

		Ending	Balance				
	Book b	alance	Bad debt	Bad debt provision			
Category	Amount	Percent %	Amount	Percent %	Book value		
Bad debt provision							
on portfolio	8,068,271.28	100.00	7,099,793.52	88.00	968,477.76		
Of which: ageing							
portfolio	659,581.79	8.18	613,050.00	92.95	46,531.79		
Related party							
portfolio within							
the consolidation							
scope	6,486,743.52	80.40	6,486,743.52	100.00			
Others	921,945.97	11.42			921,945.97		
Total	8,068,271.28	100.00	7,099,793.52	88.00	968,477.76		

Note1: The related party portfolio within the consolidation scope refers to the Company's transactions with its subsidiary Jiaoda Huigu (Hong Kong) Limited and its controlling subsidiary Shanghai Huigu Zhirui High-tech Co., Ltd. The decrease in the current period was due to the bankruptcy liquidation of Shanghai Huigu Zhirui High-tech Co., Ltd.

Note2: Other portfolios include security deposits, standby funds, and deposits.

			Beginning Balance	9	
	Book b	alance	Bad debt		
Category	Amount	Percent %	Amount	Percent %	Book value
Bad debt provision					
on portfolio	12,474,316.77	100.00	11,547,698.73	92.57	926,618.04
Of which: ageing					
portfolio	654,977.63	5.25	613,050.00	93.60	41,927.63
Related party					
portfolio within					
the consolidation					
scope	10,934,648.73	87.66	10,934,648.73	100.00	
Others	884,690.41	7.09			884,690.41
Total	12,474,316.77	100.00	11,547,698.73	92.57	926,618.04

16. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE PARENT COMPANY (Continued)

16.2 Other receivables (Continued)

(4) The movement of bad debt provision

Aging	Ending Balance	Beginning Balance
At 1st January	11,547,698.73	12,441,561.89
Cancellation of bad debts	3,960,013.15	
Additional bad debt provision		
Reversal of bad debt provision	487,892.06	893,863.16
At 31st December	7,099,793.52	11,547,698.73

(5) The top 5 other receivables:

					Ending
				Percentage of	Balance of
		Ending		ending	bad debt
Companynames	s Nature	Balance	Aging	balance (%)	provision
	Accounts payable and				
No.1	receivable	6,486,743.52	Over 1 year	80.40	6,486,743.52
No.2	Bid bond	364,000.00	Within 1 year	4.51	
	Accounts payable and				
No.3	receivable	280,460.00	Over 1 year	3.48	280,460.00
	Accounts payable and				
No.4	receivable	200,000.00	Over 1 year	2.48	200,000.00
No.5	Deposit	200,000.00	Over 1 year	2.48	
Total	_	7,531,203.52		93.35	6,967,203.52



16. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE PARENT COMPANY (Continued)

16.2 Other receivables (Continued)

(5) Receivables of employees' borrowing

Administration

	and Management			
Department	Department	Digitization	Internet of Things	Total
Purpose	Petty cash	Petty cash	Petty cash	Petty cash
Amount	-	-		-
-Current year -Last year	23,025.68	7,881.62	45,000.00	75,907.30
Bad debt provision				

16.3 Long-term equity investment

		Ending Balance			Beginning Balance)
	Book	Provision for	Book	Book	Provision for	Book
Item	Balance	impairment	value	Balance	impairment	value
Investment in						
subsidiaries	13,769,200.00	13,769,200.00		17,869,200.00	17,869,200.00	
Investment in						
joint ventures						
and associates	17,636,572.57	10,000,000.00	7,636,572.57	25,420,614.34	13,509,375.52	11,911,238.82
Total	31,405,772.57	23,769,200.00	7,636,572.57	43,289,814.34	31,378,575.52	11,911,238.82

16. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE PARENT COMPANY (Continued)

16.3 Long-term equity investment (Continued)

(1) Investment in subsidiaries

	Increase/Decrease for the year								
Investee	Beginning Balance		Additional Investment	Reduction of Investment		Announced cash dividend or profit	Others	Ending Balance	
Jiaoda Withub (Hong Kong) Limited Shanghai Withub Information and Professional Training	12,769,200.00	12,769,200.00						12,769,200.00	12,769,200.00
School (the "School")	1,000,000.00	1,000,000.00						1,000,000.00	1,000,000.00
Shanghai Withub Zhirui Hi-Tech Co., Limited	4,100,000.00	4,100,000.00					-4,100,000.00		
Total	17,869,200.00	17,869,200.00					-4,100,000.00	13,769,200.00	13,769,200.00

(2) Investment in associates

	Increase/Decrease for the year											
					Investment							
		Beginning			Gain or Loss	Other		Announced				Ending
		balance of			recognized	comprehensive		cash				balance of
	Beginning	provision for	Additional	Reduction	under equity	income	Changes in	dividends	Provision for		Ending	provision for
Investee	Balance	impairment	Investment	of Investment	method	adjustment	other equity	or profit	impairment	Others	Balance	impairment
Associated Companies												
Including: Hold by the Company												
Shanghai Jiaoda Withub Techonology Limited	8,731,358.74	3,509,375.52								-8,731,358.74		
Shanghai Jiaoda Techonology Park and information techonology												
(Shangrad) Limited	10,000,000.00	10,000,000.00									10,000,000.00	10,000,000.00
Shanghai TonTron Information and techonology co.Limited	4,446,725.11				809,545.03						5,256,270.14	
Shanghai Withub Duogao Information Engineer Limited	2,242,530.49				137,771.94						2,380,302.43	
Total	25,420,614.34	13,509,375.52			947,316.97					-8,731,358.74	17,636,572.57	10,000,000.00

Note: Shanghai Jiaoda Withub Techonology Limited's liquidation plan was confirmed by the Shanghai Railway Transport Court with '(2021) Hu 7101 Qiangqing II' and the compulsory liquidation was completed

16.4 Operating income & Operating cost

(1) Operating income & Operating cost

	Curren	t Year	Last Year			
Items	Income	Cost	Income	Cost		
Main operation	41,099,508.38	29,681,623.39	34,875,312.52	27,743,873.13		
Other operation	1,561,985.81	593,348.50	1,127,518.00	1,472,502.19		
Toal	42,661,494.19	30,274,971.89	36,002,830.52	29,216,375.32		

Note: The income from other operation was mainly the income of rental.



16. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE PARENT COMPANY (Continued)

16.4 Operating income & Operating cost (Continued)

(2) Information relating to income from contracts

1) Income from main operation by category

	Curren	t Year	Last `	Year	
Contract					
classification	Income	Cost	Income	Cost	
the sales of electrical					
products	1,366,340.30	912,280.63	1,993,461.47	1,598,476.23	
Commerial application					
program and software	21,637,580.91	15,690,763.83	26,030,617.26	21,503,284.22	
Installation and					
maintenance of					
network and data					
security products	18,095,587.17	13,078,578.93	6,851,233.79	4,642,112.68	
Total	41,099,508.38	29,681,623.39	34,875,312.52	27,743,873.13	

2) Operating income – classified by region

	Curren	t Year	Last Year		
Region	Income	Cost	Income	Cost	
Mainland China	41,099,508.38	29,681,623.39	34,875,312.52	27,743,873.13	
Total	41,099,508.38	29,681,623.39	34,875,312.52	27,743,873.13	

3) Operating income – classified by recognition time

Marra	the sales of electrical	Commerial application program and	Installation and maintenance of network and data security	0
Item	products	software	products	Current year
Within a certain period				
of time		21,637,580.91	18,095,587.17	39,733,168.08
At a certain point of time	1,366,340.30			1,366,340.30
Total	1,366,340.30	21,637,580.91	18,095,587.17	41,099,508.38

16. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE PARENT COMPANY (Continued)

16.4 Operating income & Operating cost (Continued)

(2) Information relating to income from contracts (Continued)

3) Operating income – classified by recognition time (Continued)

ltem	the sales of electrical products	Commerial application program and software	Installation and maintenance of network and data security products	Current year
Within a certain period		00,000,017,00	0.051.000.70	
of time		26,030,617.26	6,851,233.79	32,881,851.05

16.5 Investment Income

Item	Current Year	Last Year
Investment income of financial assets measured at fair value		
through profit or loss during the holding period	22,200.00	28,800.00
Long-term equity investment income calculated by equity		
method	947,316.97	-647,003.09
Investment income from disposal of long-term equity		
investment	132,757.02	356,066.13
Investment income from disposal of financial assets		
held for trading	9,041.10	219,849.32
Total	1,111,315.09	-42,287.64



17. THE AUTHORIZATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Return on Equity (ROE) and Earnings Per Share (EPS):

	Weighted average	Earnings per share (Chinese yuan per share)		
Profit in the reporting period	return on equity (%)	Basic earnings per share	Diluted earnings per share	
Net profit attribute to the equity holders of the parent company	-31.39	-0.0146	-0.0146	
Net profit attributed to the equity holders of the parent company after deducting non-recurring				
gains and losses	-36.38	-0.0169	-0.0169	

Five-Year Financial Summary

RESULTS

	Year ended 31 December				
	2023	2022	2021	2020	2019
	RMB	RMB	RMB	RMB	RMB
Turnover	42,661,494.19	36,002,830.52	50,527,611.11	46,901,226.64	74,496,520.52
Profit (loss) before tax	-6,995,713.22	-21,838,255.21	-4,485,769.33	-23,671,434.24	5,089,300.93
Income tax expense	-6,702.28	-232,108.66	219,797.46	-	-
Profit (loss) for the year	-6,989,010.94	-21,606,146.55	-4,705,566.79	-23,671,434.24	5,089,300.93
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to:					
 Owners of the Company Non-controlling interest 	-6,989,010.94 _	-21,606,146.55 -	-4,705,566.79	-23,671,434.24 -	5,092,000.93 -2,700.00
Dividend	-		_	-	
Earnings (loss) per share (in RMB)					
- Basic and diluted	-0.0146	-0.0450	-0.0098	-0.0493	0.0106



Five-Year Financial Summary

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

	Year ended 31 December				
	2023	2022	2021	2020	2019
	RMB	RMB	RMB	RMB	RMB
Non-current assets	14,572,606.24	21,336,790.97	28,253,794.72	20,830,517.81	23,244,402.69
Current assets	24,826,693.21	26,873,821.01	37,882,223.55	48,400,488.56	70,176,625.93
Total assets	39,399,299.45	48,210,611.98	66,136,018.27	69,231,006.37	93,421,028.62
Current liabilities	20,306,505.41	19,686,009.43	14,338,790.33	17,363,105.54	17,735,817.05
Non-current liability	324,887.08	2,875,430.32	4,686,257.07		-
Total liabilities	20,631,392.49	22,561,439.75	19,025,047.40	17,363,105.54	17,735,817.05
Total net assets	18,767,906.96	25,649,172.23	47,110,970.87	51,867,900.83	75,685,211.57
Share capital	48,000,000.00	48,000,000.00	48,000,000.00	48,000,000.00	48,000,000.00
Reserves	-29,232,093.04	-22,350,827.77	-858,902.80	3,898,027.16	27,715,337.90
Equity attributable to owners					
of the Company	18,767,906.96	25,649,172.23	47,141,097.20	51,898,027.16	75,715,337.90
Non-controlling interests	-	-	-30,126.33	-30,126.33	-30,126.33
Total equity	18,767,906.96	25,649,172.23	47,110,970.87	51,867,900.83	75,685,211.57